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WA MAZARS

ADRIANZA, GARCIA & ASOCIADOS

(Translation into English of a report and financial statements originally issued in Spanish

solely made for the convenience of readers)

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco Universatl:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco
Universal and its Grand Cayman branch, as of December 31 and June 30, 2007, and the
related statements of income and allocation of net income, changes in the stockholders'
equity and cash flows for the six-month pericds then ended. These financial statements,
their notes and exhibits are the responsibility of the Bank's management. Qur responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
Venezuela. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion,

As explained in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Bank presents its financial statements
in conformity with accounting standards provided by Superintendencia de Bancos y Otras
Instituciones Financieras — SUDEBAN (the Superintendence of Banks and Other Financial
Institutions of Venezuela, hereinafter referred to as “SUDEBAN") applicable to the
Venezuelan financial system. These accounting standards differ in certain respects from
accounting principles generally accepted in Venezuela.



In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco Universal and its
Grand Cayman branch as of December 31 and June 30, 2007, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the six-month periods then ended in conformity with
accounting standards provided by the SUDEBAN.

As explained in Note 21, the Bank has been issued certain tax, civil and other claims. The
Bank has taken the corresponding legal actions and has filed reconsideration appeals in
each case before the competent entities; the outcome of which is unknown. Management
considers that the arguments and grounds exposed will allow obtaining a favorable opinion
from the regulator body, and accordingly, there will not be significant adjustments that might
affect the accompanying financial statements. In the opinion of Management, based on the
specific evaluation of each case and, in the opinion of its external legal advisors, the
provisions created by the Bank as of December 31 and June 30, 2007, sufficiently cover the
liabilities that might result from these issues.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements stated in historical amounts of Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco Universal
and its Grand Cayman Branch taken as a whole. The supplemental information, included
in Exhibits | to V, referred to the financial statements adjusted for inflation, is presented upon
request of the SUDEBAN for purposes of additional analysis. This supplemental information
is based on the historical financial statements, adjusted to incorporate the effects of inflation
on the basic financial information. We have reviewed the entries prepared to reflect such
adjustments and, in our opinion, the entries have been properly applied to the basic

historical financial statements.

ZA, GARLAA & ASOCIADOS
MEMBERS OF THEfINTERNATIONAL FIRM MAZARS

|

——
WILSON E. GARcIA D.

Caracas, Venezuela CPCN° 16114

January 10, 2008 Registered with the CNV under N° G- 875

and with the SUDEBAN under N° CP 435
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VENEZOLAKO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007

{Stated in thousands of historical bolivars)

ASSETS

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS:
Cash
Banco Central de Venezuela (Note 3)

Due from domestic banks and other financlal institutions

Due from foreign banks and correspondents
Due from main office and branches
Clearing house funds

(Allowance for cash and due from banks)

INVESTMENT SECURITIES {Note 4):
Placements in Banco Centra! de Venezuela and
interbank transactions
Trading investment securities
Available-for-sale investment securities
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Restricted cash investments
Other investment securities
(Allowance for investment securities)

LOAN PORTFOLIO (Nota §):
Current loans
Restructured loans
Past-due loans
Loans in litigation
(Allowance for loan portfolio)

INTERESTS AND COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE:
*  Accrued interest receivable from c¢ash and due from banks

Accrued interest receivable from investment securities
Accrued interest receivable from loan portfolio
Commissions receivable

Accrued interest and commissions receivable from ather accounts receivable

{Allowance for accrued interes! receivable and other)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATES
AND BRANCHES (Note 6):
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates
Investments in branches
{Allowance for investments In subsidiaries, affiliates
and branches)

FORECLOSED ASSETS (Note 8)

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT (Note $)

OTHER ASSETS {Note 10}

MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS {Note 16):
Contingent debit accounts
Trust assets
Other trusts
Other debit memorandum accounts

The accompanying notes {1 to 26) are an integral part of these financial statements.

311207 30-06-07
123.807.255 53.751.101
973.539.205 694.863.556

56 -

18.888.108 22.919.222

28.933.328 112.183.571
1.146.167.952 863.727.450
770.352.942 762.338.579

10.336.193 1.119.442

122.602.372 151.121.615

10.742.916 210.232.744
914.043.423 1.154.812.360
1.686.897.050 1.172.325.564
2.733.062 3.384.850
4.198.856 9:324.025
1.939.649 1.024.519

(22.520.467) (17.217.466)
1.677.248.150 1.168.841.402
42.474 5.308
8.701.071 6.380.003
20.962.690 8.947.087
59.270 1.983.731

{160.430) {98.853)
29.604.975 17.217.276
5.254.185 5.247.727

{28.301) (28.301)
5.225.884 5.210.426
707.326 892.583
28.694.315 26.138.705
49.138.739 33.042.236
3.849.831.763  3.290.791.548
219.294.588 436.015.501
£26.466.567 728.749.697
3.851.519.556 3.642.709.880
4.897.280.711 4.807 475,078
3
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VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
(Stated in thousands of historical bolivars)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS (Note 11):
Deposits in current accounts
Non-interest-bearing current accounts
Interest-bearing current accounts

Other demand obligations

Money transaction table obligations

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Investment securities issued by the Bank
Restricted customers' deposits

Rights and participations In investment securities

OBLIGATIONS WITH BANCO CENTRAL OE VENEZUELA

DEPOSITS AND OBLIGATIONS WITH BANCO
NACIONAL DE AHORRO Y PRESTAMO

OTHER BORROWINGS (Note 12):
QObligations with domestic financial institutions due in one year or less
Obligations with domestic financial institutions due over one year
Obligations with foreign financial institutions due in one year or less
QObligations with foreign financial Institutions due over one year
Qbligations resulting from other borrowings due in one year or less
QObligations resulting from other borrowings due over one year

OTHER FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS

INTERESTS AND COMMISSIONS PAYABLE:
Accrued expenses for customers' deposits
Accrued expenses for obligations with Banco Central de Venezuela
Accrued expenses for deposits and obligations with
Banco Naclonal de Ahorro y Préstamo
Accrued expenses for other borrowings
Accrued expenses for other financial intermediation obligations
Accrued expenses for obligations convertible Into capital
Accrued expenses for underiying obligations

ACCRUALS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Note 13)

UNDERLYING OBLIGATIONS

OBLIGATIONS CONVERTIBLE INTO CAPITAL
Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Noto 14}:
Paid-in capital
Uncapitalized equity contributions
Capital reserves
Other equity accounts
Retained eamings
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investment securities
(Freasury stock)
Total stockholders’ equity

PER CONTRA MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS

The accompanying notes (1 to 26) are an integral part of these financiat statements.

311207 30-08-07
1.129.020.762 846.254.977
752.187.010 579.916.241
1.891.207.773 1.426.171.218
656.131.602 885.478.462
§27.101.066 460.446.260
13.659.812 5.105.101
125.508.164 119.341.753
47.348.689 6.905.960
3.260.957.106 2.903.448.754
31.627.624 18.573.397
45.322.342 10.328.236

50.430.340 -
1.075.988 1.075.988
128.456.294 29.977.621
16.891.061 5.944,862
1.946.105 1.138.917
128.109 32,433
- 1.316
2.074.214 1.172.666
118.120.803 91.784.955
3.626.499.468 3.032.328.858
69.888.000 69.888.000
27.285.896 27.385.896
71.894.729 64.263.999
152.945.247 96.173.247
1.218.423 751,548
321.332.295 258.462.690
3.849.831.763 3.200.791.548
4.897.280.711 4.807.475.078



VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND ALLOCATION OF NET INCOME
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
(Stated in thousands of historical bolivars, excepd (or net eamings per share and

of shares)

FINANCIAL REVENUES:
Gash and due from banks
Investment securitfes
Loan portfollo
Other accounts recelvable
Investments in subsidiaries, affiiates and branches
Main office and branches
Other

FINANCIAL EXPENSES:
Customers’ deposits
Obligations with Banco Central de Venezuela
Deposits and cblligations with
Banco Nacional de Ahorre y Préstamo
Qther borrowings
(Other financial intermediation obligations
Undertying obligations
Obligations convertible into capital
Main office and branches
Other

Gross financlal margin
INCGME FROM RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

EXPENSES FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE AND IMPAIRED
FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Uncollectible loans and other accounts receivable
Creatlon of allowance and adjustments of cash and due from banks

Meat financial margin

OTHER OPERATING INCOME {Note 15)
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Financial intarmediation margin

LESS- OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personne!
General and adminisirative expensas
Contributions to Fondo de Garantla de Depdsitos y Proteccidn Bancaria
Contributions to Superintendencla de Bancos y Otras Instituciones Financieras

Gross operating margin

Income from (oreclosed assets (Note 8)

Income from special programs

Miscellaneous operating income

Expeanses for foreclosed assets

Expenses for depracialion, amoriization and impaired miscellaneous assets
Miscellaneous operating expenses

Net oparating margin
EXTRAORDINARY INCOME {Note 9)
EXTRAQRDINARY EXPENSES

Grogs income before income taxaes
INCOME TAXES (Note 18}

Net income

ALLOCATION OF INCOME, net:
Legal reserve {Note 14)
Statutory eamings-

Board of Directors
Officers and employees

Retained eamings-

Restricled undistributed eamings
Avallable undistributed eamings

MET EARNINGS PER SHARE (in bolivars)

AVERAGE OF QUTSTANDING SHARES
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD {in thousands)

The accompanying notes (1 1o 26) am an integral part of these financial staternents.

311207 20-06-07
58,257 49.097
69.068,194 62.927.321
115.575.666 76.190.308
2.457.926 2,001.052
3.50 300
187.163.51 141.168.078
45.259.670 26.221.274
1.103.716 478.5T1
140,020 251993
78.084 96.774
46.501.430 70.048 612
140.582.081 112.110.466
303.723 453
7.603.788 4.245.463
7.603.786 4.248 403
133.282.016 107.875.634
66.377.226 60.048.029
_. 5582874 5038536
194.076.370 162.685.127
54.579.247 45,486,235
34.146.207 20,860,731
8.228.035 5,234,884
__1.919.259  __ 1.552.025
96,872,838 82.143.875
$7.203.532 80.741.252
1.005.864 2,062,091
10.067.50% 6.052.070
(604.484) {8.301.819)
{312.730) (67.140)
{5.945.666) (3.580.679)
4.209.500 (T.814.477)
101.413.049 78.926.175
12,241,680 804,741
415.137 298.500
113.239.5684 76.333.016
16.500.000 13.330.000
96.339.584 £6.003.015
7.630.730 6,600,302
B.AT4.934 5,327.005
B.174.934 5.327.605
37.889.739 28,583,147
42.644.181 25.491.662
~80.533.920 54.074.809
$6.339.584 66.003.016
631 554
139.776 109.465
5
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VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
{Stated in thousands of historical bolivars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income for the six-month period
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
from operating activities-
Income from recovery of financial assets
Income from sale of foreclosed assets
Extragrdinary incecme
Allowance for uncollectible and impaired financial assets
Depreclation and amortization
Equity for the six-month period
Net change in other assets
Net change in Interests and commissions receivable
Net change In accruals and other liabilities
Net change in interests and commissions payable
Statutory earings

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in customers' deposits
Net change in other bofrowings
Net ¢hange in other financial intermediation obligations
Dividends paid

Net cash from financing activities

CASH FLOWS {USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Loans granted for the period
Loans collected for the period
Net change in placemenits in Banco Central de Venezuela and
interbank transactions
Net change in avaitable-for-sale investment securities
Net change in held-to-maturity investment securities
Net change in restricted cash investments
Sale price of premises and equipment and foreclosed assets
Additions to premises and equipment and foreclosed assets, net

Net cash {used in} from Investing activities
Net increase in cash and due from banks
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, at the beginning of the six-month period

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, at the end of the six-month period

The accompanying notes (1 {o 26) are an integral part of these financial statements.

311207 30-06-07
96.339.584 66.003.016
(229.823) .
{1.005.864) (2.082.091)

{11.999.480) -
7.603.786 4.248.463
4.795.703 9.684.741

{6.458) {11.609)
{17.319.871) (3.527.394)
{12.449.276) (2.106.924)
27.154.044 (1.910.399)
901.548 379.245
(8.174.934) {5.327.505)
85.608.929 £5.349.143
357.508.352 548.356.059
98.478.673 (398.065.835)
10.946.189 1.439.142
(23.761.920) (27.136.704)
443.171.294 124.592.662

(1.687.235.992)

{1.374.029.922)

1.171.287.123 1.166.847.902
21.975.637 {13.789.472)
{8.749.876) 1,378.464
28.519.243 (4.198.547)
199.489.828 235.151.887
12.417.523 1.857.303
(5.043.207) (1.019.322)
(267.339.721) 12.198.293
261.440.502 202.140.098
883.727.450 £681.587.352
1.145.167.952 863.727.450
7
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VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL

AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 1.- INCORPORATION, OPERATIONS AND LEGAL REGIME:

Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco Universal is a bank incorporated in Caracas on June 4,
1925. The principal business purpose of the Bank and its foreign branch is to conduct
banking operations and business as allowed by laws. Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco
Universal is domiciled in Caracas and has incorporated branches and agencies within the

country and in Grand Cayman.

The Bank and its Branch are members of Grupo Venezolano de Crédito and Grupo Vencred

and carry out transactions with other members of these Groups.

Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. is a Universal Bank ruled by the General lLaw of Banks and
Other Financial Institutions; and Trust Law, and ruled by the applicable regulations of the
SUDEBAN, Banco Central de Venezuela — BCV (the Central Bank of Venezuela, herein
referred to as “BCV") and Fondo de Garantia de Depésitos y Proteccion Bancaria -
FOGADE (the Guarantee Fund of Deposits and Banking Protection, herein referred to as
“FOGADE"). Additionally, the Bank is listed on “Bolsa de Valores de Caracas” (Caracas
Stock Exchange); therefore, it is also ruled by the Capital Market Law and the standards of
Comisién Nacional de Valores (the Venezuelan Securities and Exchange Commission).

The Grand Cayman Branch is subjected to the supervision and control of The Cayman
Islands Monetary Authority (CIMA) and the SUDEBAN.

In addition to the legal regulations referred to above, which rule the Venezuelan financial
system, financial institutions are ruled by other social or economic laws and regulations that
set forth limitations or restrictions on lending and saving interest rates and on bank
commissions receivable from or payable to customers and/or that require the placement of
resources in certain economic sectors. A summary of the most important regulations that
have an impact on the development of banking activities in Venezuela and affect the Bank's

operations is shown as follows:
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Effective May 1, 2005, BCV, through special resolutions, has set forth maximum and
minimum limits for lending and saving rates, collectible or payable by the national
financial system to its customers. In this regard, for the six-month periods ended
December 31 and June 30, 2007, the maximum ceiling on interest rate receivable by
domestic financial institutions for any credit transaction is 28% per year and up to 3%
additiona! for delay, while the minimum interest rate payable for savings deposits is 10%
per year (6.5% per year as of June 30, 2007) and for time deposits is 11% per year
(10% per year as of June 30, 2007). These limits have been determined on the basis of
interest rates fixed by BCV for discount, rediscount, repo and advance transactions, as
provided by Resolution N° 07-11-03 published in the Official Gazette N° 38.823 dated
December 3, 2007 (Resolfution N° 06-09-01 published in the Official Gazette N° 38.517
dated September 7, 2006 for the six-month period ended June 30, 2007).

BCV, through special resolutions, has set forth limits or restrictions to the collection of
commissions, tariffs or extra charges to be applied on its lending and saving
transactions with its customers, among them: no collection of charges on savings
accounts, charges for services for maintenance of minimum balances of current
accounts of individuals are limited up to 0.5% of the monthly balance, no collection of
commissions for the payment of checks within the business hours of the bank or in other
offices, commissions for withdrawal of cash from credit cards are limited up to 5% and
for factoring and financial leasing are limited up to 3%.

The Special Protection Law of Housing Mortgage Debtor and Resolutions issued by the
Popular Power Ministry for Dwelling and Habitat set forth that banks at December 31 of
the prior year to the financing of construction projects and acquisition of housing, which
would be subject to preferential interest rates provided by the Venezuelan Government.
This percentage shall be distributed as follows: 5% for short-term financing projects of
construction of housing and 5% for long-term direct financing for the acquisition and
remodeling of principal housing of mortgage debtors (as of March 5, 2007, these
percentages were 7% and 3%, respectively). For these loans, the Popular Power
Ministry for Dwelling and Habitat fixed the maximum social interest rate by 10.11% per
year (9.87% until Apri! 3, 2007).

The Tourism Law published on June 23, 2005 sets forth that universal and commercial
banks are liable to destine between 2.5% and 7% of its annual loan portfolio to the
financing of the tourism sector, which would be subject to preferential interest rates



provided for this purpose. Through Resolution N° DM/N°® 013 dated February 6, 2007,
the Popular Power Ministry for Tourism fixed this percentage at 3% of the gross loan
portfolio at December 31, 2006. This percentage will be progressively reached during
2007. During the second six-month period of 2007, the preferential interest rate for loans
destined to the tourism sector ranged between 11.93% and 17.92% per year (between
11.95% and 14.39% per year for the first six-month period of 2007).

The Law for Loans for the Agricultural Sector published on November 5, 2002 and
Resolutions N® DM/010/2007, N° DM/1.856 and N° 1940, published in the Official
Gazette N° 38.618 dated February 2, 2007 and N° 38.759 dated August 31, 2007, set
forth the progressive increase of the minimum percentage that commercial and
universal banks shall destine to the agricuitural sector every year, which shall reach
21% at December 2007, based on average of balances shown as gross loan portfolio at
December 31, 2005 and as of December 31, 2006 (over the total gross loan portfolio of
the prior year for the six-month period ended June 30, 2007). As of December 31 and
June 30, 2007, these percentages of agricultural porifolioc reach 21% and 18%,
respectively. The borrowings granted to the agricultural sector have the benefit of a
preferential interest rate published weekly by BCV and calculated in accordance with the
parameters mentioned in such law. During the six-month period ended December 31,
2007, the preferential lending rate for these loans ranged from 11.88% and 17.28% per
year, (between 12.04% and 13.91% per year for the six-month period ended June 30,
2007).

Financial institutions must destine at least 3% of the prior six-month period loan portfolio
to the microfinancial system, as provided by the Decree-Law of the Amendment Law of

the General Law of Banks and Other Financial institutions.

Banks and other financial institutions must make special contributions in order to
support the operations of the SUDEBAN, calculated on the basis of 0.6 per thousand of
the semiannual average of the Bank’s assets, and of FOGADE, calculated on the basis
of 0.25% of the customers’ deposits at the end of the six-month period. These
contributions are shown in the “Operating expenses” caption in the accompanying

statements of income.

According to the General Law of Banks and Other Financial Institutions, universal banks
should maintain their net foreign currency position within limits provided by BCV through
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special resolutions. As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the maximum limit of foreign
currency position has been fixed in 30% of the net stockholders' equity. Additionally,
foreign currency arbitration and foreign exchange are subjected to limits and restrictions
set forth in the laws and standards referred to the current exchange control and those
set by the BCV to universal banks (see Notes 23 and 24).

Financial institutions should maintain certain levels of liquidity in BCV, determined on
the basis of customers' deposits, as provided by BCV (see Note 3}.

The Organic Law against the illicit traffic and consumption of Drugs and Psychotropic
Substances and Resolution N° 185-01 issued by the SUDEBAN on September 12, 2001
set forth that financial institutions must destine 1% of their annual net income to the
implementation of integral prevention programs against the traffic and consumption of
drugs and keep an integral structure of internal control for the prevention and control of
money laundering from illicit activities, as provided by the SUDEBAN.

The Science, Technology and Innovation law sets forth that, effective January 2006,
those companies with annual gross income exceeding 100,000 tax units (Bs. 3,763
million) shall make a contribution or investment in scientific and technological activities
that promote the social development, which is estimated based on a percentage of
gross income. Companies shall present a final return of such investments and/or

contributions before the entity as the income tax is declared (see Note 19).

NOTE 2.- ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES:

A summary of the most significant accounting policies and practices followed by the Bank
and its branch in the preparation of their financial statements is as follows:

a. Basis of presentation-

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting practices provided by the SUDEBAN. These practices differ in certain respects
from accounting principles generally accepted in Venezuela commonly applied when
preparing financial statements of other industries. For reporting purposes of the Bank, the
most significant differences are as follows:
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- The non-recognition of the effects of inflation in the financial statements as basic

information but as supplemental information (see Exhibits | to V).

- The amortization of repossessed chattels and real estate, which are not required under

accounting principles generally accepted in Venezuela,

- The creation of general provisions for loan portfolio, which are not required under

generally accepted accounting principles,

- The non-consolidation of investments in subsidiaries on which the Bank has the total
control.

- The criteria of provision of interests on the past-due and restructured loan portfolio that
consider additional parameters to assessments of recovery applicable in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles.

- The non-consideration of investment securities easily translated into short-term cash as

cash and cash equivalents, when they are not subject to significant value fluctuation
risks.

- The non-recording of deferred income tax assets as their recovery or certain allowance
for loan portfolio considered as permanent differences are expected under Resolution
N° 198 dated June 17, 1999.

- The recording of investments allowed being partially presented as a deduction of

accounts of “Investment securities” and partially presented in “Customers’ deposits”.

b. Use of estimates-

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates based
on certain assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.

c. Conversion and integration of the foreign branch’s financial statements-

The financial statements include the accounts of Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco
Universal and its Grand Cayman branch. For combination or integration purposes of the
accounts of the Bank with its foreign branch, the accounting records of which are stated in
US dollars, the financial statements of such branch have been translated into bolivars by
applying the year-end official exchange rate. Significant balances of loans between the Bank

and its branch were eliminated in the integration.
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The exchange rates applied by the Bank as of December 31 and June 30, 2007 for the
conversion of the financial statements of its foreign branch were Bs. 2,144.60 per US dollar
for both six-month periods (see Notes 7 and 24).

d. Cash and equivalents-

For reporting purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Bank considers cash and due
from banks in local and foreign currency represented by cash, gold in coins and bars,
deposits in BCV, demand deposits in banks and other financial institutions and

clearinghouse funds to be cash.

e. Investment securities-

Placements in BCV and interbank placements include liquidity surplus investments made
with BCV and through ovemight obligations, deposits or obligations issued by local and
foreign financial institutions due in 60 days or less, which are recorded at their realizable

value, equivalent to nominal cost and value.
Restricted cash investments are recorded at fair value, which is similar to cost.

Investment securities other than those referred to in the preceding paragraphs are classified
as trading, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity. This classification is based on the
management's intent with respect to these investment securities at the acquisition date.
Those investment securities acquired to obtain benefits from short-term price fluctuations are
classified as trading investment securities and carried at fair market vaiue; the unrealized
gains/losses are included in income. Held-to-maturity investment securities correspond to
debt securities on which the Bank has the intention and capacity of holding until maturity.
Such investment securities are accounted for at cost adjusted for the amortization of
premiums or discounts. Available-for-sale investment securities are those not classified as
trading nor as held-to-maturity investment securities; they are accounted for at fair market

values and the unrealized gains/losses are reported in the stockholders’ equity.

The Bank uses the acquisition cost of the security to be traded as calculation basis to

determine the realized gain or loss from the sale of investment securities.

Permanent impairments in the fair values of available-for-sale or held-to-maturity investment

securities are charged to income for the period as they arise.
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Investments granted to the public for total or partial sale of equity rights in conformity with
the Bank’s objectives are presented based on Resolution N° 092,07 dated March 28, 2007,
in accordance with circular SBIF-DSB-II-GGTE-GNP-08518 dated May 29, 2007, through
which the SUDEBAN set forth that the balance as of May 31, 2007 of rights and participation
in investment securities granted to public be presented in “Investment securities” at that date
and from June 1, 2007, they shall be progressively transferred to liability accounts for
“Customers’ deposits” in 47 months or less; in other words, at a ratio of 1/47 per month.
Renewals and new transfers of securities made from June 1, 2007, in excess of the amount
maintained in investment securities as of May 31, 2007, once the transfer of the respective
month has been made, the liability referred to above is recorded. Accordingly, investments
granted to the public are presented distributed in the caption “Investment securities” as a
deduction thereof and in the caption “Customers’ deposits” based on calculations resulting

from such provision.

f. Repo transactions-

As of June 30, 2007, the Bank enters into short-term agreements to resell securities (repo
agreements) with BCV. The amounts placed for these transactions are recorded in the
‘Restricted cash investments” caption. The Bank monitors the credit risk of the
counterparties of repo agreements under agreements to resell for the purpose of assessing
the necessity of adjusting the book value of the repo at market value of the underlying

assets.

g. Mutual transactions or securities loans-

The Bank enters into agreements with third parties whereby it acts as mutuary or mutuant by
lending (asset mutual) or borrowing (liability mutual) securities with the commitment to
receive or deliver, at a specific date the same amount of securities or with characteristics
similar to those securities lent, as well as any payment of interests, dividends or
amortizations of capital carried out by the issuer of the security during the term of the
agreement and the consideration for the loan transaction. Lent securities are presented in
the caption “Loan portfolio” at the current value effective at the transaction date because
Management has estimated that such agreements do not have a significant value fluctuation
risk given the short term of transactions. Those loans received are shown in “Other

borrowings” caption and are estimated at their fair value.
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h. Allowance for loan portfolio and contingent portfolio-

The allowance for loan portfolio and contingent portfolio is maintained at levels adequate to
cover potential losses from loans determined on the basis of the standards provided by the
SUDEBAN through Resolution N° 009-1197 dated November 28, 1997 and Resolution N°
010-02 dated January 24, 2002. Management determines the adequacy of such allowance
through specific credit reviews, recent loss experience, current economic conditions, risk
characteristics of loan categories, fair value of guarantees received and other important
factors. The allowance for loan portfolio is increased with charges to income and is reduced

by losses recognized in the portfolio.

In addition to the individual provisions determined on the criteria mentioned in the preceding
paragraph, the allowance for loan portfolio includes a genera! provision that is over 1% of the
gross loan portfolio, except for the loan portfolio to microentrepreneurs that requires a
general provision of 2%. Besides, the balance of the loan portfolio shall not be less than the
balance of the past due and in litigation portfolio. Therefore, as of December 31 and June
30, 2007, the general provision is equivalent to 1.03% and 1.09% of the total loan portfolio,
respectively.

The general provision for contingent loans is recorded based on 1% of the balance of such

portfolio and is shown in the “*Accruals and other liabilities” caption.

i. Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates-

Those investments in companies over 20% owned by the Bank are accounted for under the
equity method. Under this method, the interest in the investment is recorded in income as
“Other operating income” or “Other operating expenses”, as applicable, and the dividends
are credited to the investment account as declared. Pursuant to the SUDEBAN, income from
equity in subsidiaries or affiliates is reclassified to the “Restricted undistributed earnings”
account until they are available, which occurs once dividends are paid by such subsidiaries
or affiliates, then they are reclassified to the "Available undistributed earnings” account.

j- Foreclosed assets-

Foreclosed assets are mainly composed of real estate and works in process received in
payment, which are accounted for at the lower of amounts due by the customer or market
value, legal foreclosure value, appraisal value. Improvements or additions that may increase

the useful life of assets or their realizable value are added to the cost of the related asset.
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The costs derived from maintaining these assets are expensed as incurred. According to
current regulations, assets received in payment, real estate and chattels must be sold within
a maximum term of one and three years, respectively, period over which they are amortized.

Upon sale or disposal of assets included in the “Foreclosed assets” caption, the related cost
and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss
is reported in the income for the period in the “Income from foreclosed assets” account, as
revenues are collected. Gains from installment sale of assets are deferred and recognized in
the statement of income as collected, while losses from the sale are accounted for as they

arise.

k. Premises and equipment-

Premises and equipment correspond to chattels and real estate owned by the Bank for its
use. These assets are recorded at acquisition cost and depreciated using the straight-line
method based on the estimated useful lives of assets. Expenditures for maintenance and
repairs are charged directly to income and improvements and renewals that may increase
the capacity of service and efficiency or extend the useful life are added to the cost of the
related properties. Upon sale or disposal of assets, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in

income for the period.

I. Deferred expenses-

Deferred expenses mainly include disbursements for goodwill, software, purchased licenses,
and leasehold improvements, which are not recognized as expenses as paid but allocated to
future periods, since the benefits derived thereof extend further than the period in which they

were incurred.

The goodwill included in the “Deferred expenses’ caption represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the book value of the net assets of the absorbed entities.

Deferred expenses are recorded at cost and are amortized over a maximum term of four
years, except for goodwill that is amortized over 20 years or less.
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m. Aliowance to cover other uncollectibility and impairment risks-

Management determines the adequacy of the allowance to cover potential losses of
collectibility or recoverability of other assets through the application of criteria similar to those
applied for the loan portfolio, as applicable, and considering the aging analysis of balances,
as required by the SUDEBAN and the evaluation of other relevant risk factors. The
allowance for other assets is increased by charges to income and reduced by losses

recognized of such assets through the related write-offs.

n. Benefits for employees and directors-

* Accrual for labor indemnities-

Accrual for labor indemnities is monthly recorded based upon the actual obligation
calculated in accordance with the Labor Law and the current collective contract. During the
month following each monthly closing, the Bank deposits the simple labor indemnities in a
trust on behalf of its employees, which are reported in “Memorandum accounts”. Those
liabilities not transferred at the end of each month are reported in “Accruals and other
liabilities®. Penalty indemnities paid for unjustified dismissals are charged to expenses as

paid.

e Participation of directors and employees in profits and statutory participations-
The bylaws, the labor law and the collective and individual contracts entered into with
directors and/or employees set forth their participation in the profits of the Bank. The Bank

recognizes such cost based on the current regulations during the period when caused.

* Retirement pension plan-

The costs of a noncontributory pension plan are accumulated based upon actuarial
calculations. For the last actuarial calculation made by the Bank, the effective discount rates
and salary increases used to calculate the obligation for the benefit projected in long term
were 5% and 1% on an annual basis.

0. Income taxes-

The provision for income taxes is calculated on the basis of net taxable income determined
pursuant to the current Venezuelan tax [aw. The income tax liability calculated on this basis
is shown in the “Accruals and other liabilities” caption. Due to the uncertain recovery of the
deferred tax asset, the Bank has not recorded the contingent asset resulting from deferring
the tax effect caused by the temporary differences between book and taxable income.
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p. Trust assets-

Trust assets are valued based on the same standards the Bank uses to value its own
assets, except for the loan portfolio, for which no general provision was created given that
Management considered it to be non applicable, and the recording of investment securities
at acquisition cost adjusted for the amortization of premiums or discounts, as applicable,
according to the standards of the SUDEBAN,

q. Financial revenues and expenses-

Interest income and expense are recorded in the income for the period when earned,
depending on the effectiveness of the transactions generating the income or expense, in

conformity with the accounting criteria provided by the SUDEBAN as follows:

¢ Accrued interests on past due loans and loans in litigation and the loan portfolio
classified as high-risk or irrecoverable, although current, are recorded in memorandum

accounts and recognized as income when collected.

o Accrued interests receivable are provisioned based on the risk classification determined
for the loan portfolio that originated them, except for accrued interests on the portfolio
with a loss risk over 15% classified as actual risk, high-risk or irrecoverable. Accrued
interests on loan portfolio classified as past due or in litigation and instaliment loans 30

days or over due, which are fully provisioned.

The Bank determines lending and saving interest rates with its customers, taking into
consideration the financial market conditions and limitations fixed by the BCV for lending and
saving rates in Resolution N° 07-11-03 dated November 30, 2007 (Resolution N° 06-09-01
dated September 7, 2006 for the six-month period ended June 30, 2007). (See Note 1)

r. Other income-

Income from commissions, income from the sale of the Bank’s assets and miscellaneous
income from services or recovery of disposed, written-off or depreciated assets, are
recorded as collected or extinguished in the “Income from recovery of financial assets”,
“Other operating income”, “Income from foreclosed assets” and “Miscellaneous operating

income” captions.
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Income from commissions, tariffs, surcharges and supplementary and related services were
agreed upon by the Bank with its customers, considering the financial market conditions and
in accordance with the limitations fixed by BCV in Resolutions N° 07-07-03 dated July 26,
2007, N° 07-03-01 dated March 13, 2007, N° 06-08-01 and N° 06-04-02, dated August 24,
2006, and April 18, 2006. (N® 07-03-01 dated March 13, 2007, N° 06-08-01and N° 06-04-02,
dated August 24 and April 18, 2006 as of June 2007) (See Note 1)

s. Foreign currency transactions and balances-

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate in effect at the transaction
date. As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, foreign currency balances were adjusted at the
official year-end exchange rate, which was fixed by BCV upon application of the exchange

control regime (see Note 24).

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the exchange rate used by the Bank was
Bs. 2,144.60 per US dollar.

The foreign currency balances included in the balance sheets as of December 31 and June
30, 2007, are detailed in Note 23.

t. Net earnings per share-

Net earnings per share shown in the accompanying statements of income and allocation of
net income have been determined by dividing the net income for the six-month period, less
the statutory earnings, by the average number of outstanding shares existing during the six-
month periods ended December 31 and June 30, 2007.

NOTE 3.- RESERVE BALANCES AND OTHER DEPOSITS MAINTAINED IN

BCV:

Under current legal regulations, financial institutions are required to maintain certain levels of
cash liquidity deposited in BCV, as provided by such institute through special resolutions.
The reserve balance fixed by BCV shall reach the resulting amount from including: a} 17%
(15% as of June 2007} of the balances of deposits, customers’ deposits and saving
transactions (net obligations) held at July 14, 2006; b) 17% of the balance of investments
held at July 14, 2006 (13% as of June 2007); and ¢) 30% of the balance named Marginal
Balance that is represented by those weekly increases of the balances of net obligations and
investments granted generated from July 14, 2006. Nevertheless, these percentages are
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reduced when the addition of net obligations and investments granted weekly reported do
not exceed the amount of Bs. 90,000 miilion, in this case the coefficient of 17% (15% and
13% as of June 2007, respectively)} will be applied. This percentage is maintained at 17%
(15% as of June 2007) as the marginal balance is originated in foreign currency.

The reserve balance must be made in US dollars when the liabilities have been contracted in
foreign currency. The reserve balance does not generate any yield.

As of December 31, 2007, the reserve balance required by the BCV in local currency
amounts to Bs. 918,112 million {Bs. 523,154 million as of June 30, 2007), while the reserve
balance required by the BCV in foreign currency amounts to US$ 1,614,000 equivalent to
Bs. 3,461 million (US$ 666,000 equivalent to Bs. 1,428 million as of June 30, 2007). The
Bank maintained balances available in the BCV to cover such reserve balances.

NOTE 4.- INVESTMENT SECURITIES:

Investments in debt securities and capital have been classified in the financial statements
based on management's intent with respect to these investment securities. As of December
31 and June 30, 2007, investment securities are represented as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)

Investment securities-

Placements in BCV and interbank transactions 934,481,253 985,801,419
Less: Investments transferred (164,118,311) {193,462,840)
770,362,942 792,338,579
Available-for-sale investment securities 10,336,193 1,119,442
Held-to-maturity investment securities 122,602,372 151,121,615
Restricted cash investment securities 10,742,916 210,232,744

814,044,423 1,154,812,380
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a. Placements in BCV and interbank transactions-

Placements in BCV and interbank transactions are as follows:

Placements in BCV and interbank transactions:
Bonds and obligations issued by BCV-

Registered demand certificates of deposit issued by BCV, nominal
value of Bs. 928,030 million, annual yields between 11% and 12%
and due bhetween January and February 2008 {nominal value of
Bs. 963,018 million, annual yields between 6% and 10% and due in
July 2007, as of June 2007)

Overnight obligations -

Overnight placements with domestic financial institutions-

nominal value of Bs. 19,500 million, annual yield between 0.50% and
3% and due in July 2007

Banco Provincial, S.A. Banco Universal
Helm Bank de Venezuela, S.A.

Overnight placements with foreign financial institutions-
nominal value of US$ 3,008,138, annual yield of 2.56% and due in
January 2008 (nominal value of US$ 1,531,017, annual yield of
4.81% and due in July 2007, as of June 2007)
JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York
Brown Brothers Hariiman & Co, New York
Bank of America

Less - Investments transferred through an association agreement with
annual interest rate of 11% (annuval interest rate of 10%, as of June
2007)

b. Available-for-sale investment securities-

31-12407

30-06-07

(In thousands of bolivars)

928,030,000 963,018,000"
- 18,000,000°
-0- 1,500,000'
- 19,500,000
4,132,940’ 2,727,968'
2,168,191' 555,451
150,122" -0-
6,451,253 3,283,419
(164,118,311) _ (193,462,840)
770,362,942 792,338,579

Available-for-sale investment securities, stated at their fair market value, are detailed as

follows:

As of December 31, 2007 Gross
unrealized unrealized

Acquisition

cost gain

Gross

loss

Fair market
value/ book
value

Available-for-sale investments:

Obligations issued by domestic private nonfinancial
companies-
Mercantil Servicios Financieros, C.A. (with a

nominal value of Bs. 9,400 million, annual
yield between 10.33% and 11.64% and due
between March and September 2008)

8,749,877 221,663

(In thousands of bolivars)

-

8,971,540°

Equity in domestic private nonfinancial companies-
Caja Venezolana de Valores, S.A. (21,167

shares with a nominal value of Bs. 6,459

each and a 17.64% capital share) 133,083 3,635

! The market value corresponds to nominal value.
2 The fair value is equivalent to the current value of discounted future cash flows.

? The market value comresponds to equity value as per last avallable financial statements,

0-

136,718’
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As of December 31, 2007 Gross Gross Fair market
Acquisition unrealized  unrealized value/ book
gain {oss value
Available-for-sale investments: (in thousands of bolivars)
Vencred, S.A. (112,404 shares, nominal value of
Bs. 66.65 each and a 0.04% capital share) 16,875 53,928 0- 70,803
Corporacién Industrial de Energia, C.A,, SACA.
(661,122 shares, nominal value of Bs. § each
and a 0.02% capital share) 5,201 6,038 - 11,2398
Corporacidn Suiche 7B, C.A. (83,600 shares,
nominal value of Bs. 1,000 each and an §.12%
capital share) 9,923 0- -0- 9,923°
Desarrollos del Sol, C.A., (180 shares, nominal
value of Bs. 100 each and an 18% capital
share) 18 0- -0- 18¢
165,100 63,601 - 228,701
Equity in foreign private nonfinancial companies-
MasterCard International (2,294 shares, nominal
value of US$ 0.21 equivalent to Bs. 450.37 151,353 907,369 0- 1,058,722
each)
SW.UIF.T. s.crl. (19 shares, nominal value of
€ 2,440 equivalent to Bs. 6,608,072 each) 40,131 0- -0- 40,131°
International Briquettes Holding (6,705 shares,
nominal value of US$ 0.01 equivalent to
Bs. 21.45 each) 11,309 25,790 -0- 37,099
202,793 933,159 0- 1,135,952
9,117,770 1,218,423 -0- 10,336,193
As of June 30, 2007 Gross Gross Fair market
Acquisition  unrealized unrealized value/
cost gain loss bock value
Available-for-sale investments: {In thousands of bolivars)
Equity in domestic private nonfinancial companies-
Caja Venezolana de Valores, S.A. (21,167 shares,
nominal value of Bs. 6,459 each and a 17.64%
capital share) 133,083 3,635 -0- 136,718’
Vencred, S.A. (112,404 shares, nominal value of
Bs. 66.65 each and a 0.04% capital share } 16,875 47,195 -0- 64,070°
Corporacién Industrial de Energia, C.A., S.ACA.
(661,122 shares, nominal value of Bs. 10 each and a
0.02% capital share) 5,201 9,674 -0- 14 875
Corporacién Suiche 7B, C.A. (83,600 shares, nominal
value of Bs. 1,000 each and an 8.11% capital share) 9,924 Q- - 9,924°
Desarrollos del Sol, C.A. (180 shares, nominal value of
Bs. 100 each and an 18% capital share) 18 -0- -0- 18"
165,101 60,504 -0- 225,605
Equity in foreign private nonfinancial companies-
MasterCard International (2,294 shares, nominal vaiue
of Bs. 450 each) 161,353 654,679 0- 816,032°
SW.LFE.T. s.c.rl. (19 shares, nominal value of € 2,440
equivalent to Bs. 6,608,072 each) 40,131 -0- -0- 40,131"
International Briquettes Holding (6,705 shares, nominal
value of US$ 0.01 equivalent to Bs. 21.45 each) 11,309 26,365 -0- 37,674
202,793 691,044 0- 893,837
367,894 751,548 0- 1,119,442

* The market value corresponds to quotation value in the Caracas or foreign stock exchange, as applicable.

* The market value corresponds to acquisition cost.
* The market value corresponds to nominal value.

7 The market value corresponds to equily value as per last available financial statements,
* The market value carresponds to quotation value in the Caracas or foreign stock exchange, as applicable.

* The market value corresponds to acquisition cost.
* The market value corresponds to nominal value.
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During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank sold available-for-sale

investment securities for Bs. 1,556,634 million (Bs. 1,041,374 million for the six-month period

ended June 30, 2007}, thus recording realized gains on the sale of such investment

securities for Bs. 19,264 million in “Other operating income” (Bs. 20,716 million for the six-

month period ended June 30, 2007). Additionally, the Bank recorded losses from the sale of

available-for-sale investment securities for approximately Bs. 181 million (Bs. 36 million as of

June 2007}, which were recorded in the "Other operating expenses” caption.

c. Held-to-maturity investment securities-

Held-to-maturity investment securities 6orrespond to debt securities on which the Bank has

the intention and capacity of holding until maturity. Such investment securities are as follows:

As of December 31, 2007

Held-to-maturity investment securities:

Time _deposits in foreign financial _insfitulions-
(nominal value of US$ 49,655,904, Bs. 106,492
million, annual yields between 3.75% and 5.35%
and due between January and March 2008}

JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York
Standard Chartered Bank, New York
Barclays Bank PLC, Miami
Wachovia Bank, N.A. Miami

Obligations issued by foreign financial institutions-

Prudencial Funding Corp. (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 -Bs. 2,145 million-, effective
annual yield of 4,83% and due in January 2008)

AIG Funding Inc. {nominal value of US$ 1,000,000
- Bs. 2,145 million-, effective annual yield of
5.01% and due in January 2008)

KFW International Finance, INC {nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 -Bs. 2,145 million-, effective
annual yield of 4.59% and due in March 2008)

Merrill Lynch Co (nominal value of US$ 1,000,000
= Bs. 2,145 million —effective annual yield of
4.82% and due in April 2008)

International Bank for Reconstruction &
Development (nominal value of US$ 500,000 -
Bs. 1,072 million-, annual yie!d of 4.75% and due
in December 2014)

Obligations_issued by foreign private nonfinancial

companies -
Unilever Capital Corporation (nominal value of

US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145 million-, annuat yiek
of 7.125% and due in November 2010}

Nestlé Capital Corporation Discount (nominal
value of US$ 1,000,000 — Bs. 2,145 million -
effective annual yield of 4.81% and due in
January 2008)

" The fair value corresponds to nominal value.

' The fair value corresponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.

Amortized Gross Gross
cost/ unrealized unrealized Fair market
book value gain loss value
(In thousands of bolivars)
36,887,120 -0- 0- 36,887,120"
33,129,491 -0- Q- 33,129,491"
32,856,415 0- 0- 32,856,415"
3,619,028 -0- -0- 3,619,028"
106,492,054 -0- -0- 106,492,054
2,141,475 242 0- 2,141, 7172
2,137,272 775 0- 2,138,047
2,123,958 184 -0- 2,124,142"
2,118,001 1,302 -0- 2,119,303%
1,070,067 4,485 -0- 1,074,552"
9,590,773 6,988 - 9,597,761
2,243,513 56,448 0- 2,299,961%
2,138,106 465 0- 2,138,571
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As of December 31, 2007

American Honda finance (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 — Bs. 2,145 million - effective
annual yield of 4.52% and due in January
2008)

As of June 30, 2007

Held-to-maturity investment securities:

Time depcsits in foreign financial institutions-
(nominal wvalue of US$ 51,095,432,
-8s. 109,579 million- annual yields between
5.20% and 5.41% and due between July and
March 2008)

Barclays Bank PLC, Miami

Standard Chartered Bank, New York
JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York

. Wachovia Bank, N.A. Miami

Obligations issued by foreign financial
institutions-

AlG Funding Inc. (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145 million-,
effective annual yield of 5.25% and due in
September 2007)

UBS Finance (Delaware) LLC (nominal
value of US$ 1,000,000 -Bs. 2,145 million-
effective annual yield of 5.29% and due in
August 2007)

KFW Intl Finance Inc (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145 million -
effective annual yield of 5.26% and due in
August 2007}

Royal Bank of Canada (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145 milion -
effective annual yield of 5.25% and due in
August 2007}

Bankamerica Corp (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 -~ Bs. 2,145 million —
effective annual yield of 5.30% and due in
August 2007)

Memill Lynch Co (nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145 milion -
eflective annual yield of 5.25% and due in
July 2007)

3 The fair value corresponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.

* The tair value corresponds to nominal value.

Amortized Gross Gross
cost/ unrealized unrealized Fair market
book value gain loss value
(In thousands of belivars)
2,137,926 119 -0- 2,138,045%
6,519,545 57,032 0- 6,576,577
122,602,372 64,020 0- 122,666,392
Amortized Gross Gross
costf unrealized unrealized Fair market
book value gain loss value
(In thousands of bolivars)
35,238,437 -0- -0- 35,238,437%
32,173,882 -0- -0- 32,173,882"
31,954,540 -0- -0- 31,954,540
10,212,401 -0- -0- 10,212,401
109,579,260 -0- -0- 109,579,260
2,121,809 -0- {576} 2,121,233"
2,128,400 -0- (376) 2,128,024
2,130,068 -0- (480) 2,129,588"
2,133,270 -0- {555} 2,132,715%
2,133,926 -0- {272) 2,133,654
2,143,982 -0- (326) 2,143,656
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As of June 30, 2007 Amortized
cost/
book value

Gross
unreaiized
gain

Gross
unrealized
loss

Fair market
value

International Bank for Reconstruction &
Development {nominal value of
US$ 500,000 -Bs. 1,072 million-, annual
yield of 450% and due in December
2014) 1,069,904

(In thousands of bolivars)

0-

(9,399)

1,060,505

13,861,359

0-

(11,984)

13,849,375

Obligations issued by foreign private nonfinancial
companies -

Honeywell International {(annual yield of

5.29%, nomina! value of US$ 1,000,000

-Bs. 2,145 million- and due in August

2007) 2,128,057
HBOS Treasury Services PLC {annual

yield of 5.31%, nominal value of

US$ 1,000,000 -Bs. 2,145 million- and

due in September 2007) 2,120,853
AT&T Inc (annual yield of 5.28%, nominal

value of US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145

million- and due in July 2007) 2,136,500
Cargill Inc. (annual yield of 5.31%, nominal

value of US$ 1,000,000 - Bs. 2,145

million- and due in August 2007) 2,130,186
Honeywell International (annual yield of

5.25, nominal value of US$ 1,000,000 -

Bs. 2,145 million- and due in September

2007) 2,120,199
General Electric Capital Corp (annual yield

of 5.26%, nominal value of US$

1,000,000 -Bs. 2,145 million- and due in

July 2007} 2,141,818
United Parcel Service (annual yield of

5.24%, nominal value of US$ 1,000,000

- Bs. 2,145 million- and due in July 2,135,127

2007)
7 Eleven (annual yield of 5.24%, nominal

value of US$ 1,000,000 -Bs. 2,145

million- and due in July 2007) 2,141,812
IBM Capital Inc {annual yield of 5.19%,

nominal value of US$ 1,000,000 -

Bs. 2,145 million- and due in September

2007) 2,117,256
Procter & Gamble {annual yield of 5.29%,

nominal value of US$ 1,000,000 -

Bs. 2,145 miillion- and due in September

2007) 2,118,790
Coca-Cola Enterprise (annual yield of

5.28%, nominal value of US$ 1,000,000

-Bs. 2,145 million- and due in October

2007) 2,112,568
American Honda Finance (annual yield of

£.27% - nominal value of US$1,000,000-

Bs. 2,145 million and due in July 2007)

2,141,497

¥ The fair value corresponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.

.0-

0-

(346)

{243)

(393)

(285)

(836}

(363)

(592}

(357)

(1.008)

(361)

(620)

(357)

2,127,711%

2,120610"

2,136,107"

2,129,901"

2,119,363"

2,141,455"

2,134,535"

2,141,455%

2,116,248"

2,118,429"

2,111,948"

2,141,140
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As of June 30, 2007 Amortized Gross Gross
cost/ unrealized unrealized Fair market
book value gain loss value

{In thousands of bolivars}
Nestlé Capital Corporation Discount
(annual yield of 5,23% - nominal value of
US$ 1,000,000- Bs. 2,145 million and

due in July 2007) 2,136,333 0- {540) 2,135,793"
27,680,996 -0- {6.301) 27,674,695
151,121,615 -0- (18,285) 151,103,330

Maturities for held-to-maturity investment securities are as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
Amortized Fair market Amortized Fair market
cost value cost value
(In thousands of bolivars)

Due in one year or less 119,288,792 119,291,879 150,051,711 150,042,825

Due from one to five years 2,243,513 2,299,961 -0- -0-

Due from five to ten years 1,070,067 1,074,552 1,069,804 1,060,505
122,602,372 122,666,392 151,121,615 151,103,330

d. Restricted cash investments-

Restricted cash investments are composed as follows:

31-1207 30-06-07
Market Market
Cost value Cost value
{In thousands of bolivars)

Restricted cash investments:
Investment securities subject to repo
{agreements to reselli)-
Banco Central de Venezuela: Repo of
BOPN, nominal value of Bs. 203,752
million, annual yields between 6% and
9.25% and due in July 2007. -0- -0- 203,752,0007 203,752,000
Other
Time deposits in foreign financial institutions
with nominal value of US$ 5,009,287,
annual yield of 2.56% and monthly due
(nominal value of US$ 3,021,890, annual
yield of 4.81% and monthly due, as of
June 2007).
Citibank, N.A. 10,742,916  10,742,916" 6,480,744" 6,480,744"
10,742,816 10,742,916 210,232,744 210,232,744

™ The fair value corresponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.
7 The fair value corresponds to nominal value.
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Restricted cash investments are represented by time deposits maintained in foreign financial
institutions destined to guarantee to Visa International Service Association and MasterCard
International Inc. those transactions related to the license contract on the nonexclusive and
free use of VISA and MASTERCARD trademarks in the credit cards.

The Bank controls the concentration risk of investments through the implementation of
approval, supervision and control mechanisms. The Bank has focused its investing activities
mainly in obligations issued by the BCV, which represent 84% of the total investments for
both six-month periods and placements in foreign financial institutions, which represent 14%
of the total investment securities (10% as of June 30, 2007).

NOTE 5.- LOAN PORTFOLIO:

The loan portfolio is mainly composed of loans and discounts granted to private entities in
accordance with the Bank's objectives. The loan portfolio is classified by the debtor's

economic activity as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
{In thousands of balivars)

Commercial 571,848,911 348,148,291
Agriculture 219,112,988 177,170,617
Construction 137,883,691 87,759,158
Industrial 134,645,697 80,108,999
Consumer credits 86,802,225 74,184,461
Mines and hydrocarbons 52,916,404 45,236,825
Services 25,865,680 21,344,304
Miscellaneous 470,693,021 352,106,303

1,699,768,617 1,186,058,958
Allowance for loan portfolio {22,520,467) (17,217,466)

1,677,248,150 1,168,841,492

As of December 31, 2007, Miscellaneous balance includes Bs. 100,485 million (Bs. 72,973
million as of June 30, 2007) corresponding to loans destined to the acquisition and
remodeling of houses and Bs. 370,208 million (Bs. 279,134 million as of June 30, 2007),
corresponding to loans to debtors, the economic activity of which is the financing of

insurance policies and vehicles, among other financial activities.
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The loan portfolio is classified by type of credit as follows:

31-12-07

30-06-07

Time loans

Installment loans

Consumer credits

Financial lease

Current account credits

Factoring

Letters of credit issued and traded

{In thousands of bolivars)

1,123,637,596

335,279,121
86,802,226
48,061,977
70,391,573
16,426,853
19,169,271

759,104,143
231,634,059
74,184,462
51,590,775
52,832,756
10,138,547
6,574,216

1,699,768,617

Allowance for loan portfolio

(22,520,467)

1,186,058,958
(17,217,466)

1,677,248,150

1,168,841,492

The loan portfolio is classified by type of guarantee as follows:

Type of guarantee
Collateral
and
As of December 31, 2007 Total Unsecured Pledge Mortgage guaraniees Other
{In thousands of bolivars}
Current 1,688,897,050 1,088,936,067 16,538,053 101,387,796 338,225,689 143,809,445
Restructured 2,733,062 -0- -0- 1,264,914 -0- 1,468,148
Past-due 4,198,856 2,731,260 1,740 459,279 901,612 104,965
In litigation 3,939,649 233,746 0- 2,467 656 791,425 446,822
1,699,768,617  1,091,901,073 16,539,793 105,579,645 339,918,726 145,829,380
Allowance for loan portfolio {22,520,467)
1,677,248,150
Type of guarantee
Collateral
and
As of June 30, 2007 Total Unsecured Pledge Mortgage guarantees Other
{In thousands of bolivars)
Current 1,172,325,564 685,521,630 27,853,481 84,749,941 231,221,408 142,979,104
Restructured 3,384 850 104,223 -0- 1,314,350 -0- 1,966,277
Past-due 9,324,025 2,161,579 26,660 1,848,969 5,226,996 59,821
In {itigation 1,024,519 180,269 -0- 558,507 103,800 181,943
1,186,058,958 687,967,701 27,880,141 88,471,767 236,552,204 145,187,145

Allowance for loan portfolio (17,217,466}
1,168,841,492

The loan portfolio is classified by maturity as follows:

Due from Due from
Duein 30 IMto B0 Due from 61 Due from 81 181 to 360 Due over
As of December 31, 2007 Totat days days {o 90 days o 180 days days 360 days

{In thousands of bolivars)

Current 1,688,897,050 353,223,738 78,223,406 451,838,348 185,115,217 135,958,594 484,537,747
Restructured 2,733,062 -0- 0- Q- -0- 0. 2,733,062
Past-due 4,198,856 1,859,914 315,000 927,611 2,540 60,248 1,033,543
In {itigation 3,939,649 977,617 0- 393,675 235 164,550 2,403 572

1,699,768,617 356,061,269 78,538,406 453,159,634 185,117 992 136,183,392 490,707,924

Allowance for loan portfollo __ (22,520,467}
1,677,248,150

A ———
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Due from Dug from

Duein 30 Mo 60 Due from 81 Due from 91 181 to 360 Duse over

As of June 30, 2007 Total days days to 90 days to 180 days days 360 days
{in thousands of bolivars)

Current 1,172,325,564 302,456,181 33,349,772 337,660,633 125,505,386 92,723,708 280,629,793
Restructured 3,384,850 -0 - 0- -0 -0- 3,384,850
Past-due 9,324,025 5,548,147 -0- 2,028,350 -0- 116,966 1,632,562
In litigation 1,024,518 472,07 - 33.000 235 166,882 777,085

1,168,058,958 308,051,645 33,348,772 339,719,983 125,505,621 93,007,647 286,424,290

Allowance for loan portfolio (17,217 486)
1,168,841,492

The movement of the allowance for loan portfolio is shown as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)
Balances, at the beginning of the six-month period 17,217,466 13,751,962
Add:
Increase in allowance-
Allowance charged to income 7,565,611 3,499,017
Transfers of “Allowance for accrued interest receivable” -0- 29,428
Less:
Decrease in allowance-
Transfers to “Allowance for accrued interest receivable” (23,402) -0-
Loans charged off {2,239,208) {62,941)
Balances, at the end of the six-month period 22,520,467 17,217 466

As of December 31, 2007, the allowance for loan portfolio includes general provisions
amounting to approximately Bs. 17,585 million (Bs. 12,986 million as of June 30, 2007).

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank recovered loan portfolio
charged off in previous six-month periods for Bs. 74 million (Bs. 5 million as of June 30,
2007), which were recorded in the “Income from recovery of financial assets” caption.

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, unrecognized interests on past-due
and in litigation loan portfolioc amount to approximately Bs. 496 million (Bs. 62 million as of
June 30, 2007). On the other hand, the Bank collected approximately Bs. 436 million
(Bs. 350 million, as of June 30, 2007), corresponding to past-due interests in prior six-month
periods, which were recorded as “Financial revenues”.

As of December 31, 2007, the non-interest bearing past-due and in litigation portfolio
amounts to approximately Bs. 8,139 million (Bs. 10,349 million as of June 30, 2007).
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As of December 31, 2007, the Bank reported loans destined to the microfinancial system for
Bs. 58,633 million (Bs. 50,156 million as of June 30, 2007}, which exceeds the minimum
level of 3% of the loan portfolio for the prior six-month period, as required by the Law-Decree
of the Amendment Law of the General Law of Banks and Other Financial Institutions.

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank destined financial resources to the agricultural loan
portfolio for approximately Bs. 219,113 million (Bs. 177,171 million, as of June 30, 2007). In
accordance with the Law of Credits for the Agricultural sector, the minimum loan portfolio to
be destined to the agricultural sector was Bs. 179,570 million (Bs. 176,208 million as of June
2007), equivalent to 21% of the total gross loan portfolio at the prior year-end (18% at
December 2006).

In compliance with the Special Law of Protection to the Mortgage Debtor of Dwelling, and as
per Resolution N° 012 dated February 26, 2005 issued by the Ministry of Dwelling and
Habitat, as of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the minimum mortgage loan portfolio
required for short-term loans for the construction of housing solutions was Bs. 48,947 million
and long-term loans for the acquisition, remodeling or self-construction of dwelling was Bs.
48,947 million. The measurement of the compliance with percentages required is made on
an annual basis; accordingly, the Bank shall comply with the minimum amounts as of
December 31, of every year. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank maintains short-term
mortgage loans for construction for Bs. 3,549 miillion (Bs. 1,665 million, as of June 30, 2007)
and long-term mortgage loans for the acquisition of dwelling for Bs. 51,973 million (Bs.
35,328 million, as of June 30, 2007). (See Note 2)

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the loans granted to debtors of the tourism sector
amount to Bs, 32,618 million and Bs. 26,366 million, respectively, and the required minimum
loan portfolic destined to this sector, as provided by the Tourism Law and Resolution N°
DM/N® 013 issued on February 6, 2007 by the Ministry of Tourism is Bs. 29,368 million and
Bs. 19,579 miltion, respectively. (See Note 2)

NOTE 6.- INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES:

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Bank has significant control over the
administration of the following financial institution:
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Equity in the capital stock

As of Dacember 31, 2007 N* of income from
common value per equity Company's  Carrying
shares % parlicipation _net equity amount

Investments in domestic financial institutions:

(In thousands of bolivars)

Participaciones Vencred, S.A. 44,652,340 88,30 6,458 5,883,746 5,254,185
Allowance for investments in subsidiaries
and affillates 28,301
5,225,884
As of June 30, 2007 Equity in the capital stock
N* of Income from
common equity Company's  Carrying
shares % patticipation _netequity _ amount
{In thousands of bolivars)
investments in domestic financial institutions:
Participaciones Vencred, S A. 44 652,340 89,30 11,609 5.876,513 5.247,727
Allowance for investments in subsidiaries
and affiliates {28,301}
5,218,426
A summary of the financial statements of Participaciones Vencred, S.A. is as follows:
311207 30-08-07

BALANCE SHEETS
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Investment securities
Loan portfolio
Interests and commissions receivable
Premises and equipment
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Customers’ deposits
Interests and commissions payable
Accruals and other liabilities
Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Paid-in capital
Capital reserves
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Financial revenues
Financial expenses

Gross financial margin
Expenses for uncollectibility and impairment of financial assets

Net financial margin

Other operating income
Other operating expenses

Financial intermediation margin
Operating expenses

Net income

(tn thousands of bolivars)

27,817 27,399
5492463 5,437,170
485,353 520,001
-0- 1,170
-0- -0-
-0- -0-
6,005,633 5,085,740
42,973 28,369
188 1,085
78,726 79,773
121,887 109,227
5,000,000 5,000,000
352,987 351,540
530,759 524,973
5883746 5,876,513
6,005,633 5,985,740
190,479 165,513
20- (103}
190,479 165,410
-0- -0-
190,479 165,410
- -0-
(11,649) 3,341
178,830 157,069 |
(171,597) _ (144,069) |
7,233 13,000 ;
|
|
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On August 17, 2007, the Bank and the rest of the stockholders of Participaciones Vencred,
S.A. entered into an agreement named “Bilateral purchase-sale commitment” through which
the parties commit to sell all the shares of this financial institution to the purchasers for a
total price of Bs. 13,600 million. Such sale will be completed upon authorization of such
transaction by the SUDEBAN, which shall not exceed 60 days and may be extendable prior
agreement of the parties. Such agreement has been extended until March 31, 2008, and the
purchasers have paid all the sale price through a first payment of Bs. 4,080 million and a
second payment of Bs. 9,520 million. The last payment is reimbursable in case the
purchasers decide not execute the purchase commitment. To date, the Bank and the
purchasers are waiting for the approval of the sale transaction by SUDEBAN to make the
ownership transfer. The amounts received by the Bank for a total of Bs. 12,145 million
related to its equity in this subsidiary are shown in the account “Items to be applied” included
in the “Accruals and other liabilities” caption and the resulting gain on sale will be recognized
as the ownership transfer is made (see Note 13). Additionally, the Bank has decided to
maintain this investment in “Investments in subsidiaries”, because of the expected approval
of the transaction by the regulating entity and on the basis that the Bank has the rights,
administration and control of the subsidiary to the effective date of the ownership transfer.

NOTE 7.- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE FOREIGN BRANCH:

A summary of the financial statements of the Grand Cayman branch, which have been
integrated with the financial statements of the Bank, is shown as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
Bs. uss Bs. uUs$
(In thousands)
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks 876,191 409 1,255,795 586
Investment securities 139,677,317 65130 160,264,693 74,729
Loan portfolio 1,267,036 591 1,502,822 701
Interests and commissions receivable 19,415,682 9,053 176,518 82
Other assets 161,236,226 75,182 163,199,828 76,098
LIABILITIES:
Customers’ deposits 145,611,783 67,897 143648080 66,981
Other borrowings 899,786 420 -0- 0-
interests and commissions payable 1,663 1 2,350 1
Accruals and other liabilities 47 112 22 112,618 53

146,560,344 68,339 143,763,048 67,035

ALLOCATED CAPITAL AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 14,675,882 6,843 19,436,780 9,063

161,236,226 75182 163,199,828 76,098

STATEMENTS OF INCOME:

Financial revenues 4,104,164 1,914 4,181,966 1,950
Financial expenses {636,040) (297) (762,231) _ (355)
3,468,124 1,617 3419736 _ 1,595
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311207 30-06-07
Bs. Us$ Bs. Uss
(In thousands)

Other operaling income 428,388 200 294,679 137
Other cperating expenses (165,943) {77} (173,579} (81)
Operating expenses {316,160} {147} (381,275) (178)
Other {expense) income, net (88,921) (41} (79.684) (37
Extraordinary expenses {44,137) (21) -0- 0-
(186,773) {86} (339,859) (159}

Income for the six-month period 3,281,351 1,530 3,079,876 1,436

MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS:

Debit contingent accounts 130,012 61 -0- -0-

Other debit memorandum accounts 38,603 18 38,603 18

NOTE 8.- FORECLOSED ASSETS:

Foreclosed assets shown in the balance sheets are represented by:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)
Assets received in payment 27,042 31,528
Works in process received in payment 1,081,251 1,081,251
1,108,293 1,113,179
Allowance for foreclosed assets {400,968) (220,596)
707,325 892,583

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank sold fully amortized
foreclosed assets (with a net book value of Bs. 7 million for the six-month period ended June
30, 2007), which generated a realized gain on sale of assets for Bs. 418 million (Bs. 1,850
million for the six-month period ended June 30, 2007}, which are shown in the income for the

six-month period in the “Income from foreclosed assets™ account.

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank recognized gains from the
collection of loans generated from installment sales of assets for Bs. 588 miillion (Bs. 232
million as of June 30, 2007). Such gain was recorded as “Income from foreclosed assets”
with charge to deferred gain from the sale of assets shown in “Accruals and other liabilities”
caption.

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank recorded expenses for

amortization of foreclosed assets for Bs. 185 million (Bs. 6,234 million for the six-month
period ended June 30, 2007).

33



NOTE 9.- PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT:

Premises and equipment shown in the balance sheets are represented by:

Estimated
useful life
31-12-07 30-06-07 (years)
' (In thousands of bolivars)
2 Buildings and facilities 22,452,016 22,455,257 40
1' Computers 12,031,859 8,611,709 3
- Furniture 3,262,356 3,176,531 10
Other equipment 18,916,044 17,378,813 3
' 56,662,275 51,622,310
‘l R Accumulated depreciation {28,902,629) (26,418,794)
27,759,646 25,203,516
. Land 923,630 924,150
Other assets 11,039 11,039
'I T 28,694,315 26,138,705
I' - During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank acquired computers,

: furniture and other equipment for Bs. 5,043 million (Bs. 1,027 million for the six-month period
ll : ended June 30, 2007).

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank sold real estate with a net

“ O book value of Bs. 520 thousand, thus generating a realized gain on the sale of assets for Bs.
o 11,999 million, which are shown in the income for the six-month period in the “Extraordinary
|I 1 income” account.
P
I| 7 During the six-month period ended June 30, 2007, the Bank transferred Bs. 382 million from

“Premises and equipment” to "Other assets”, corresponding to software and transportation
l‘ Cor equipment.

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank recorded expenses for
depreciation of premises and equipment for Bs. 2,487 million (Bs. 2,419 million for the six-
month period ended June 30, 2007).

NOTE 10.- OTHER ASSETS:

3 /s

I - QOther assets shown in the balance sheets are as follows:
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The “Advances to suppliers” account is mainly composed of disbursements made for the
installation works in agencies and counters of the Bank, and advances for the purchase of

software and equipment.

As of June 30, 2007, the account “Recoverable expenditures” includes approximately
Bs. 2,468 million that corresponds to payments to suppliers on account of the Bank’s
customers, which were collected during the first days of the month following year-end.

The “Other” item includes insurance premiums receivable from employees, value-added tax

receivable from customers for financial leasing, among other less significant concepts.

Deferred expenses are amortized over 4 years. During the six-month period ended
December 31, 2007, the Bank recorded amortization expenses of deferred charges and
miscellaneous assets for Bs. 2,147 million (Bs. 1,032 million as of June 30, 2007) and fully
amortized assets for Bs. 821 million (Bs. 543 million as of June 30, 2007) were disposed.

Additionally, the Bank provisions the other assets based on the particular analysis of
recovery and aging in conformity with the standards of the SUDEBAN. The movement of the

allowance for other assets is composed as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bofivars}
Balances, at the beginning of the six-month period 260,788 84,780
Add: increases in allowance-
Allowance charged to income 3,605 220,140
{ ess: decrease in allowance
Write off -0- (38,695)
Allowance charged to income from recovery of assets {2,491) (5,437}
Balances, at the end of the six-month period 261,902 260,788

NOTE 11.- CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS:

Customers’ deposits bear annual interest rates fluctuating between the following parameters:

31-12-07 30-06-07
Rates Rates Rates Rates
denominated denominated in denominated in denominated

in Bs. uss Bs. in US$
Interest-bearing current accounts 1% - 1.60% 0.50% 1% - 1.50% 1.25%
Other demand obligations 0.50% - 17% -0- 0.50% - 6% -0-
Savings deposits 10% -0- 6.50%-7.50% -0-
Time deposits 1% 0.75% -1.75% 10% 1.50% - 2.50%
Restricted customers' deposits 10% 0.50% 6.50%-7.50% 1.25%
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As of December 31, 2007, “Other demand obligations” are mainly represented by registered
demand certificates of deposit for Bs. 540,724 million (Bs. 512,153 as of June 30, 2007),
cashier's checks sold for Bs. 74,184 million (Bs. 333,385 million as of June 30, 2007),
Bank's trust current accounts for Bs. 15,435 million (Bs. 12,679 million as of June 30, 2007)
and customers’' payment orders pending to be applied to their accounts for Bs. 14,341
million (Bs. 22,723 million as of June 30, 2007).

As of December 31, 2007, “Restricted customers’' deposits” include Bs. 75,648 million

corresponding to savings deposits and inactive current accounts in local and foreign
currency (Bs. 63,884 million, as of June 30, 2007) and Bs. 46,271 million corresponding to
the total of restricted customers’ deposits in foreign currency that guarantee current account

credits, among other credit transactions (Bs. 51,194 million, as of June 30, 2007).

The maturities of “Customers' deposits” are shown in Note 18.

NOTE 12.-

OTHER BORROWINGS:

Other borrowings shown in the balance sheets consist of the following:

Obligations with domestic financial
institutions due in one year or less:
Overdrafts in demand deposits
Demand deposits
Other

Obligations with foreign financial
institutions due in one year or less:
Demand deposits
Borrowings from foreign financial
institutions

Obligations for other borrowings due
in one year or less:
Other borrewings due in one year or
less
Obligations for other borrowings due
over one year

31-12-07 30-06-07
Interest Interest
Bs. rate Bs. rate
{In {In
thousands) thousands)

19,534,375 -0- 8,784,219 -0-
8,497,720 8% -11% 8,550,730 7.6%
3,595,529 -0- 1,238,448 0-

31,627,624 18,573,397

28,165,542 0.50% 10,328,236 1% - 3%

17,156,800 7.425% -0- -0-

45,322,342 10,328,236

50,430,340 2.75% -0- -0-
1,075,988 6.92% 1,075,988 6.92%

128,456,294 29,977,621

/4%



exchange operator for the purchase and sale of foreign currency related to imports and
exports, which were settled by the BCV in the month following the year-end. Additionally, as
of December 31, 2007, this account includes amounts received from customers for the
settlement of credit transactions pending to be applied for Bs. 3,339 million
{Bs. 1,645 million as of June 2007), and an advance received in vitue of the sale
commitment agreement of the shares of the subsidiary Participaciones Vencred, S.A. for Bs.
12,145 million (see Note 6)

The profit-sharing payable to employees and statutory earnings are calculated on the basis
of the liquid profits for the six-month period, as provided by the current collective contract
and the Bank’s bylaws.

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the “Provisions for contingencies” item includes the
estimations made by Management to cover future tax, labor andfor civil contingencies,

among others (see Note 21).

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, deferred income is composed as follows

31-12-07 30-06-07
{In thousands of bolivars)
Deferred income from sale of assets 5,751,336 6,339,678
Financial interest collected in advance 971,605 510,514
Compensatory indemnity for occupation of real estate 139,873 -0-
Other 141,338 339,270
7,004,152 7,189,462

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the “Deferred income from sale of assets” account
corresponds to the unrealized gain obtained from the instaliment sale of assets. The
corresponding borrowings granted are recorded in the “Loan portfolio™ caption (see Notes 5
and 8).

The account “Checks removed from the system” corresponds to cashiers’ checks issued by
the Bank to its customers with an aging over one year, which have been reclassified for
control purposes.

During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank reversed allowances for
contingent loans considered in excess for Bs. 230 million, which were recorded with credit to

“Income from recovery of financial assets” .
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On December 28, 1999, the SUDEBAN issued Resolution N° 329-99 through which it
required the reclassification of 50% of the semi-annual income and 50% of the balance of
the “Available undistributed earnings” account for the six-month periods prior to December
31, 1999 to the “Restricted undistributed earnings” account, The amounts included in the
latter account could not be available to be distributed as cash dividends and could only be

used for capital stock increases.

Certain legal nullification proceedings have arisen against the Resolution N° 329-99, referred
to the 50% restriction of liquid profits of the six-month period; accordingly, certain cautionary
measures have been obtained by the Bank before the competent courts by alleging the
unconstitutionality of such rule, as well as the requirement of the SUDEBAN of restricting Bs.
159,927 million of accumulated earnings from prior periods that have been shared as
dividends in the past under the protection of the innominate cautionary measure revoked on
April 25, 2005. The SUDEBAN has exerted the pertinent actions before the courts in the
defense of its requirements. To date, the First Court in Contentious Administrative matters
has not issued any pronouncement related to the proceedings in course and the Bank has
restricted 50% of accumulated earnings of prior periods for up to the amounts not subject to
the cautionary measure granted (Bs. 50,955 million) and 50% of the net income for the six-
month period (Bs. 42,644 million), which are recorded in “Restricted undistributed earnings”

account,

During the six-month periods ended December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Bank restricted
net income generated by its foreign branch amounting to Bs. 3,281 million
{Bs. 3,080 million as of June 30, 2007) and the unrealized gain from equity in its subsidiary
for Bs. 6 million (Bs. 12 million as of June 2007). In accordance with current regulations,
these amounts are not available for distributions as dividends until the subsidiary declares
the corresponding dividend or the Branch sends to its main office the accumulated income

generated in prior periods.

During the six-month period ended December 31, the Bank transferred the available
undistributed earnings amounting to Bs. 8,042 million (Bs. 3,217 million as of June 2007),
from the Restricted undistributed earnings to Available undistributed earnings, which
correspond to remittances received from its Branch for US$ 3,750,000 (US$ 1,500,000 as of
June 2007), provided from earnings generated in prior periods. As of June 30, 2007, the
Bank stopped restricting 50% of earnings received from its foreign branch (Bs. 1,608

41



million}, as required by Resolution 329.99 referred to above. Such amount was restricted in
July 2007.

- Stock dividends declared:

During the regular Stockholders' meeting held on March 1, 2007, the stockholders approved
a capital stock increase of the Bank by Bs. 17,472 million, equivalent to 34,944 000 shares
with a nominal value of Bs. 500 each, through the decree of a stock dividend with charge to
“Restricted earnings”. On Aprit 26, 2007, through official document N° SBIF-DSB-GGCJ-
GALE-06493, the SUDEBAN authorized such capital increase.

During the regular Stockholders’ meeting held on August 15, 2008, the stockholders
approved a capital stock increase of the Bank by Bs. 2,016 million, equivalent to 4,032,000
shares with a nominal value of Bs. 500 each, through the decree of a stock dividend with
charge to “Restricted earmings”™. On November 29, 2008, through official document N° SBIF-
DSB-II-GGCJ-GALE-23635, the SUDEBAN authorized such capital increase, which was
recorded in the first six-month period of 2007.

- Cash dividends declared:

During the regular Stockholders' meeting held on August 9, 2007, the stockholders approved
to declare two cash dividends of Bs. 10 per share, payable in September and December
2007 and one extraordinary cash dividend of Bs. 150 per share, payable in August 2007,
that as a whole total Bs. 23,762 million. These dividends will be cashed with charge to
Available undistributed earnings as of June 30, 2007.

During the extraordinary Stockholders’ meeting held on April 30, 2007, the stockholders
approved two cash dividends of Bs. 10 per share, payable in May and June 2007 and three
extraordinary cash dividends, payable as follows: (a) Bs. 100 per share, payable in May
2007, (b) Bs. 2 per share, payable as the Executive Committee determines so (payable in
June 2007, as approved by the Executive Committee on May 17, 2007) and (c) an
extraordinary dividend payable before August 15, 2007, the day determined by the Executive
Committee, the amount of which shall not be less than Bs. 2 or higher than Bs. 100 per
share. On May 29, 2007, the Executive Committee declared such extraordinary dividend of
Bs. 100 per share, payable on June 14, 2007. All these dividends total Bs. 27,117 million
and are cashed with charge to Available undistributed earnings as of December 31, 20086.
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Additionally, on February 1, 2007, the Executive Committee declared an extraordinary
dividend of Bs. 0.20 per share, equivalent to Bs. 20 million, payable on February 21, 2007,
with charge to Available undistributed earnings as of June 30, 2006, as authorized by the
Regular Stockholders' Meeting held on August 15, 2006.

d. Risk capital indexes-

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the indexes maintained, which are calculated by the
Bank on the basis of the amounts shown in its financial statements, and the indexes required
in accordance with the standards provided by the SUDEBAN are as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
Index Index Index Index
maintained required maintained required
Risk capita! — Global 14.75% 12% 14.58% 12%
Stockholders’ equity / total assets 8.35% 8% 8.37% 8%

NOTE 15.- OTHER OPERATING INCOME:

Other operating income shown in the statements of income are composed as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)
Commissions for services 45,777,823 39,146,918
Income from sale of investment securities 19,264,204 20,715,999
Income from exchange difference (Note 23) 1,328,741 173,503
Income from equity participation (Note 6) 6,458 11,609
66,377,226 60,048,029

Income from exchange difference mainly results from arbitration of foreign currencies and
valuation of gold in coins at year-end.

NOTE 16.- MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS:

Memorandum accounts shown in the balance sheets correspond to the following
transactions carried out by the Bank:
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Contingent debit accounts:
Guarantees granted
Letters of credif issued not traded
Letters of credit confirmed not traded
Loan commitments
Repo investment securities

Trust assets

Other debit memorandum accounts-
Guarantees received
Custodials received
Lines of credit granted pending to be used
Other record accounts
Consignments received
Collections

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)
170,912,716 194,115,960
48,288,876 36,451,425
92,880 -0-

116 1,696,116
-0- 203,752,000
219,294,588 436,015,501
826,466,567 728,749,697

1,741,618,374
1,614,323,827
239,677,738
173,367,106
73,436,100
9,096,411

1,5633,5653,062
1,787,745,625
198,439,899
115,609,076
-0-

7,272,218

3,851,519,556

3,642,709,880

4,897,280,711

4,807,475,078

a, Contingent debit accounts and other debit memorandum accounts-

Credit financial instruments:

In the normat course of business, the Bank maintains off-balance sheet credit financial
instruments in order to meet its customers’ financial needs. As of December 31, 2007, these
instruments mainly consist of guarantees, letters of credit and other nonrevokable credit
commitments for Bs. 219,295 million (Bs. 232,264 million as of June 30, 2007), and are
recorded in the “Contingent debit accounts” caption.

The lines of credit immediately available are considered nonbinding because the Bank
maintains full and absolute discretion of revoking these commitments in case of credit
impairment; accordingly management considers that there is no immediate credit risk.
Consequently, these operations are reported in “Other debit memorandum accounts”.

As of June 30, 2007, Repo investment securities for Bs. 203,752 million correspond to short-
term purchase agreements of securities to resell, namely Repo, entered into with BCV (see
Note 4).

The consignments received correspond to cash in bank notes and coins denominated in

strong bolivars (Bs.F) received by the Bank on consignment from BCV in accordance with

the monetary reconversion process (see Note 25).
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The maximum potential credit risk of these off-balance sheet contingent commitments is
equal to the nominal value of the contracts if the other parties involved in the financial
instrument fail to comply with the terms of the contracts. The Bank controls the credit risk of
these instruments by establishing mechanisms of credit approvals, collateral requirements
and other supervision and control procedures. The Bank evaluates each client's credit
capacity, based on the same criteria applied for credit financial instruments recognized in the

balance sheet.

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the provisions for contingent portfolio amount to
approximately Bs. 2,191 million and Bs. 2,421 million, respectively, and are recorded in the
“Accruals and other liabilities” caption. (See Note 13).

b. Trust assets

The Bank manages trusted assets on behalf of third parties. The summarized balance

sheets of the trust are presented as follows:

311267 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks 65,863,654 56,536,378
Investment securities 268,033,160 240,975,595
Loan portfolio 472,240,380 411,608,661
Interests and commissions receivable 2,670,704 1,887,991
Assets received for administration 303,612 1,054,689
Other assets 17,355,057 16,686,383
826,466,567 728,749,697
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Other accounts payable and other liabilities 100,691 2,034,919
Stockholders' equity 826,365,876 726,714,778
826,466,567 728,749,697

Trust assets are classified by purpose and type of contracting entity as follows:

As of December 31, 2007:
Public, state, Decentralized
Natural and municipal and entities and other
juridicat Central central entities with
Type of trust persons Administration administrations special regime Total
{In thousands of bolivars)

Investment 12,009,888 0- -0- -0- 12,009,888
Guarantee 17,297,516 -0- -0- 0- 17,297,516
Administration 796,481,303 124,761 75,671 477,428 797,159,163
825,768,707 124,764 75,671 477,428 826,466,567
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As of June 30, 2007;

Public, state, Deceniralized
Natural and municipal and entities and other
juridical Central central entities with special
Type of trust persons Administration administrations regime Totat
(In thousands of bolivars)

Investment 12,460,415 -0- -0- -0 12,460,415
Guarantee 21,063,102 -0- -0- -0- 21,063,102
Administration £94,543,969 151,475 73,849 456,887 695,226,181

728,067,486 151,475 73,849 456,887 728,749,697

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, funds granted in trust by private entities represent
99.91% of the trusted funds. '

Under Article N° 51 of the Decree-Law of the General Law of Banks and Other Financial
Institutions the total amount of the trusted funds will not exceed 5 times the stockholders’
equity of the trust institution. The Bank filed a nullification appeal before the First Court in
Contentious Administrative matters against such Article, which is pending sentence.
However, to date, the Bank does not maintain trusts exceeding the referred to limit.

Trusts’ investment securities:

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, investment securities are valued and presented at
the acquisition cost, adjusted by the amortization of premiums or discounts, as applicable, A

detail of such investments is shown as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of bolivars)
Locat currency 259,921,940 223,979,652
Foreign currency 8,111,220 16,995,943

268,033,160 240,975,595

Trusts' investments for the periods ended December 31 and June 30, 2007, are presented
as follows:
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Invesiment securities issued andf/or quaranteed by

the Government-

Treasury bills, with annual effective yield
between 8% and 8.95%, nominal value of
Bs. 8,000 million and due between 2 and 44
days, as of December 2007

National Public Debt Bonds, with annual yield
between 12.25% and 14.09%, nominal value
of Bs. 1,100 miflion and due between 115 and
627 days, as of December 2007 (annual yield
between 6.49% and 16.32%, nominal value of
Bs. 3,450 million and due between 5 and 811
days, as of June 2007).

Time deposits in foreign financial institutions'*-
Barclays Bank, PLC, with annual yield between

4.65% and 4.70%, nominal value of
USS 2,076,493 and due between 14 and 28
days, as of December 2007 {annual yield
between 5.23% and 5.25% , nominal value of
US$ 4,425,461 and due between 9 and 27
days, as of June 2007)

Bank of America, with annual yield of 2.86%,
nominal value of US$ 1,141,953 and due in 2
days, as of December 2007 (annual yield of
4.51%, nominal value of US$ 1,110,603 and
due in 2 days, as of June 2007).

Obliaations issued by foreign financial institutions'*-
Federal NATL MTG, with annual yield of 5.11%,

nominal value of US$ 1,120,000 and due in
88 days, as of June 2007.

Lehman Bros Inc., with annual yield of 6.50%,
nominal value of US$ 169,000 and due in 106
days, as of December 2007 (annual yield of
B.50%, nominal value of US$ 169,000 and
due in 290 days, as of June 2007).

Barclays Bank PLC, with annual yield of 7.40%,
nominai value of US$ 115,000 and due in 899
days, as of June 2007.

% The fair value is equivalent to the current value of discounted future cash flows.

" |t corresponds to Customer-directed trusts.
# The fair value corresponds to nominal value.

# The fair value corresponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.

311207 30-06-07
Amortized
or Amortized or
acquisition Fair market acquisition Fair market
cost value cost value
{In thousands of bolivars)
7,950,622 7,930,343" -0- -0
1,096,604 1,152,454" 3,444,183 3,528.641"
9,047,226 9,082,797 3,444,183 3,528,641
4,453,247 4,453,247% 9,490,843 9,490,843
2,449,033 2,449,033 2,381,800 2,381,800%
6,902,280 6,902,260 11,672,643 11,872,463
-0- - 2,372,281 2,372 648"
363,793 364,250" 356,145 365,315
- -0- 260,927 256,839%
363,793 364,250 2999 353 2,994,802
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311207 30-06-07
Amaortized
or Amortized or
acquisition Fair market acquisition Fair market
cost value cost value

Obligations issued by foreign private nenfinancial

companies“-
International Business Machs Corp, with annual

yield of 6.45%, nominal value of US$ 112,000

and due in June 2007. 0- 0- 240,849 240,291%
Texaco Capital, with annual yield of 5.50%,

nominal value of US$ 97,000 and due in 381

days, as of December 2007 (annual yield of

5.50%, nominal value of US$ 97,000 and due

in 565 days, as of June 2007) 208,782 208,363% 209,148 208,592
Anheuser Busch, with annual yield of 5.38%,

nominal value of US$ 72,000 and due in 259

days, as of December 2007 (annual yield of

5.38%, nominal value of US$ 72,000 and due

in 443 days, as of June 2007} 154,607 155,183 154,745 154,2157
363,389 363,546 604,742 603,098
Obligations issued by domestic private nonfinancial
cecmpanies-
Desamcllos Forestales San Carlos I, with

annuat yield of 12.94% and 15.55%, nominal

value of Bs. 12,500 million, and due batween

1,320 and 1,345 days, as of December 2007. 12,500,000 12,500,000% 0- -0-
Manufacturas de Papel, C.A., with annual yield

of 15.01%, nominal value of Bs. 10,000

million, and due in 1,363 days, as of

December 2007. 10,000,000 10,000,000* 0 0-
Mercantit Servicios Financieros, C.A., with

annual yield between 14.41% and 15.66%,

nominal value of Bs. 13,600 million, and due

between 1,057 and 1273 days, as of

December 2007 (annual yield beiween

11.51% and 14.44%, nominal value of

Bs. 14,600 million, and due between 145 and

1,457 days, as of June 2007). 13,600,000 13,600,000% 14,600,000 14,600,000
UNICON, C.A., with annual yield between

15.23% and 17.21%, nominal wvalue of

Bs. 3,500 million, and due hetween 580 and

1,490 days, as of December 2007 {annual

yield between 12.78% and 13.62%, nominal

value of Bs, 3,500 million and due between

764 and 1,674 days, as of June 2007), 3,500,000 3,500,000%* 3,500,000 3,500,000%
General Motors de Venezuela, with annual yield

between 12.02% and 14.43%, nominal value

of Bs. 25,000 milion and due between 661

and 802 days, as of December 2007 (with

annual yield of 11.53%, nominal value of Bs.

20,000 million, and due between 895 and 986

days, as of June 2007). 25,000,000 25,000,000 20,000,000 __ 20,000.000*

64,600,000 64,600,000 36,100,000 38,100,000

¥ |t corresponds to Customer-directed trusts.
3 The fair value comesponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.
™ The fair value corresponds to nominal value.
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Corporate commercial papers issued by domestic

private nonfinangial companies-

Procesadora Venezolanz de Cereales, S.A.
(PROVENCESA), with annual effective yields
between 9% and 16%, nominal value of
Bs. 34,742 million and due between 21 and
49 days, as of QOecember 2007 {annual
effective yield between 6% and 6.5%,
nominal value of Bs. 25,000 wmillion and due
between 44 and 100 days, as of June 2007).

Manufacturas de Papel, S.A.CA. (MANPA) with
annual effective yield between $% and
10.50%, nominal value of Bs. 10,000 million
and due between 32 and 120 days, as of
December 2007 {annual yield between 6.75%
and 7.10%, nominal value of Bs. 10,000
million and due between 69 and 124 days, as
of June 2007).

UNICON, with annual yield of 12%, nominal
value of Bs. 3,500 million and due in 178
days, as of December 2007 (annua! yield of
7%, nominal vatue of Bs. 3,500 million and
due in 3 days, as of June 2007).

Citibank Mercado de Capitales, with annual
yield of 6.25%, nominal value of Bs. 5,000
million and due between 47 and 61 days, as
of June 2007.

Mercantil Servicios Financieros, C.A., with
annual effeclive yields between 7.25% and
11.25%, value of Bs. 25,047 miliion and due
between 84 and 163 days, as of December
2007 (annual effective yield between 6.75%
and 7.25%, value of Bs. 26,386 million and
due between 54 and 322 days, as of June
2007).

Inversiones Selva, C.A., with annual effective
yield between 8% and 10.5%, nominal value
of Bs. 1,500 million and due between 8 and
67 days, as of December 2007 (annual
effective yield of 7.75%, nominal value of
Bs. 1,305 million and due in 95 days, as of
June 2007).

Other obligations-

Banco Exterior, C.A. Banco Universal, with
annual yield between 6.75% and 11.5%,
nominal value of Bs. 24 572 million and due
between 2 and 23 days, as of December
2007 (annual yleld between 5% and 8%,
nominal value of Bs. 29,540 million and due
between 3 and 25 days, as of June 2007).

Banco del Caribe, C.A. Banco Universal, with
annual yield between 8% and 12.5%, nominal
value of Bs. 16,069 million and due between
9 and 24 days, as of December 2007 (annual
yield between 4.50% and 4.75%, nominal
value of Bs. 15,480 million and due between
3 and 25 days, as of June 2007).

311207 300607
Amortized
or Amortized or
acquisition Fair market acquisition Fair market
cost value cost value
34,180,169 34,180,169 24,726,373 24,726,373%
9,781,789 9,781,780% 9,812,826 9,812,826%
3,309,772 3,309,772% 3,497,986 3,497,986
0- -0- 4,953,247 4,953,247
24,180,608 24,180,608% 25,795,892 25,795,892%
1,475,274 1,475,274 1,279,465 1,279,465
72,927,612 72,927,612 70,065,789 70,065,789
24,572,349 24,572,349° 29,540,471 29,540,471%°
16,069,049 16,069,049%° 15,480,272 15,480,272

2 The fair value is equivalent to amortized or acquisition cost, as applicable.
® The fair value corresponds to nominal value.
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31-12-07 30-06-07
Amaortized
or Amortized or
acquisition Fair market acquisition Fair market
cost value cost value
ABN AMRO BANK, annual yield between 3.5%,
nominal value of Bs. 7,245 million and due in
10 days, as of June 2007. - 0- 7,244,710 7,244,710
Banco de Venezuela, S.A. Banco Universal,
with annual yield between B% and 13%,
nominal value of Bs. 72,708 million and due
between 2 and 25 days, as of December
2007 {annual yield of 6.5%, nominal value of
Bs. 60,104 million and due between 4 and 23
days, as of June 2007) 72,705,704 72,705,704 60,104,227 60,104,227%
113,347,102 143,347,102 112,369,680 112,369,680
Obligations _issued by foreign public nonfinancial
entities-
United States Government, with annual yield
between 4.63% and 5.50%, nominal value of
US$ 223,000 and due between 46 and 91
days, as of December 2007 (with annual yield
of 4.38%, nominal value of US$ 710,000 and
due between 184 and 540 days, as of June
2007). 481,758 479,749% 1,519,205 1,518.402%
268,033,160 267,067,336 240,975,595 241,053,055
Maturities for investment securities are as follows:
31-12-07 30-06-07
Amortized or Amortized or
acquisition Fair market acquisition Fair market
cost value cost value
(In thousands of bolivars}
Due in six months or less 202,522,202 202,514,793 195,573,454 195,618,566
Due from six months {o one year 154,607 155,183 6,880,157 6,905,584
Due from one to five years 65,356,351 65,397,360 38,521,984 38,528,905
268,033,160 268,067,336 240,975,595 241,053,055

As of December 31, 2007, investment securities are mainly composed of time placements in
domestic financial institutions that represent 51% of total investments (47% as of June 30,

2007) and obligations issued by domestic private nonfinancial companies that represent

42% of total investments (45% as of June 30, 2007).

Trust loan portfolio;

The trust loan portfolio is mainly composed of loans granted to beneficiaries, which amounts

to Bs. 472,240 million (Bs. 411,609 million, as of June 30, 2007).

7 The fair value cormesponds to nominal value.
* The fair value corresponds to the quotation value in foreign stock exchanges.
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The loans granted to beneficiaries are mainly destined to the construction, acquisition,
improvement or repair of housing, acquisition of vehicles and transportation vehicles and

other, such as school pensions or medical services expenses.

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the loans to beneficiaries are mainly composed of
loans guaranteed with labor indemnities granted to trusters and loans granted with funds of
customer-directed trusts, which have been created by trusters for the purpose of granting
borrowing programs for the acquisition, improvement or repair of housing to its employees
(trust beneficiaries), which are guaranteed through real estate mortgages. Trust contracts
release the Bank from loan risk losses.

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, loans to beneficiaries are classified as normal risk
according to parameters provided by Resolution N° 009-1197 on "Standards related to the
Classification of the Loan Portfolio Risk and Calculation of its Provisions®, considering for

those social interest trusts the particular conditions set forth therefor.

Loans receivable from beneficiaries are classified by type of guarantee as follows:

31-12-07 30-068-07
In thousands of bolivars
Guarantees on monies 293,099,509 242,536,436
Chattel guarantee 96,064,391 84,709,355
Mortgage guarantee 67,302,875 67,104,044
Dominion reserve 15,138,699 16,620,295
Coltateral and guaraniees 634,906 638,531

472,240,380 411,608,661

The “Guarantees on monies” correspond to loans receivable from beneficiaries guaranteed
on labor indemnities or monies held by trusters in savings and loan entities or funds

managed by the trust.

Loans to beneficiaries are classified by maturity as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
In thousands of bolivars
Due in 6 months or less 11,359,833 13,405,560
Due from 6 to 12 months 13,124,863 6,457,717
Due from 12 to 24 months 21,575,585 20,030,469
Due over 24 months 151,944,685 124,852,386
Undefined maturity 274,235,414 246,862,529
472,240,380 411,608,661
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As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Undefined maturity loans mainly correspond to
loans receivable from beneficiaries guaranteed with their labor indemnities or on their
monies maintained in savings funds or savings and loan entities without a defined payment
date or capital amortization, as provided by the trust contracts. However, the total payment
of such loans will be effective as the beneficiary terminates its labor or contractual

relationship with the truster.

NOTE 17.- FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

The accounting standards of the SUDEBAN require the disclosure of information on the fair
value of those financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate such value. The fair
values included herein do not necessarily show the amounts for which the Bank might

negotiate its financial instruments in the market.

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Bank applied the following methods and
assumptions to estimate the fair value of those financial instruments for which it is practical

to calculate such value:

a. Cash and due from banks: The book value for these short-term instruments is equivalent
to the fair value.

b. Investment securities, including investments in shares of unconsolidated subsidiaries:

« Investment securities listed on the stock exchange: the market price effective at the
end of the six-month period is considered as fair value.

¢ Shares in subsidiaries: as of June 2007, fair value is considered as equity value in
accordance with the subsidiary’s financial statements. As of December 2007, fair
value is the sale agreed-upon value, in accordance with the bilateral commitment
entered into in the six-month period.

« Deposits in banks and other financial institutions: the nominal value of these short-
term instruments is similar to fair value.

o Debt securities not listed on the stock exchange: the fair value of investment
securities issued by Banco Central de Venezuela is equivalent to nominal value since
they are short-term investments, while in medium-term obligations the fair value is
similar to book value since such investments adjust their interest rates on a monthly

basis.
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¢. Loan portfolio: the productive loan portfolio of the Bank (current and restructured loans)

is mainly composed of short-term credits. The Bank modifies the amount of their loans

on a monthly basis, according to the market rates. Accordingly, the book value of the

productive loan portfolio (except for the general provision) is equivalent to its fair value.

The net book value of the nonproductive loan portfolio (past due and in-litigation loans),

totally or partially provisioned or non-interest bearing, is equivalent to its fair value.

d. Customers’ deposits: The fair values shown for demand deposits are equivalent to the

amount payable on demand at year-end, in other words, their book value.

c. Other financial intermediation obligations and other borrowings: Loans received from

financial institutions approximate their fair values.

The book and fair values estimated for the financial instruments of the Bank and its Branch

are as follows:

ASSETS:

Cash and due from banks
Investment securities

Loan portfolio

Interests and commissions receivable
Investments in subsidiaries, affiliates
and branches

LIABILITIES:

Customers’ deposits

Other borrowings

Other financial intermediation obligations
Interests and commissions payable

MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS:
Contingent debit accounts

Trust assets

Other debit memorandum accounts

NOTE 18.-

311207 30-06-07
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
{In thousands of balivars})
1,145,167,952 1,145167,952 883,727,450 883,727,450

914,044,423 914,108,443 1,154,812,380 1,154,794,095
1,677,248,150  1,694,832,764 1,168,841492 1,181,827697
29,604,975 29,604,975 17,217,276 17,217,276
5,225,884 12,144,800 5.219,426 5,247,727
3,771,291,384  3,795,858,934 3,229.818,024 3,242,814,245
3,260,957,106  3,260,957,106 2,903,448,754 2,003,448,754
128,456,294 428,456,294 29,977,621 29,877.621
16,891,051 16,891,051 5,944,862 5,944,862
2,074,214 2,074,214 1,172,666 1,172,666
3,408,378,665  3,408,378,665 2,940,543,903 2,940,543,903
219,294,588 219,294,588 436,015,501 436,015,501
826,466,567 826,500,847 728,749,697 728,827,156
3,851,519,556  3,851,519,556 3,642,709,880 3,642,709,880
4,897,280,711 4,897,314,991 4,807,475,078 4,807,552,537

MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

Maturities of financial assets and liabilities shown in the balance sheets are as follows:
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As of December 31, 2007:

Due from Due over
Dueiné Due from 6 Due from 12 18 to 24 24
months or less 1o 12 months to 18 months months months Total
{In thousands of bolivars)
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks 1,145,167,952 -0- -0- 0- £0- 1,145,167,952
investment securities-
Placements with BCV and
interbank transactions 934,481,253 0- £- 0- 0- 934,481,253
Investments transferred (164,118,311} -0- 0- 0- - {164,118,311)
770,362,942 0 £- £0- 0- 770,362,942
Available-for-sale investment
securities 6,637,558 3,698,635 0. 0. 0. 10,336,193
Held-to-matusity investment
securities 119,288,792 0- -0- - 3,313,580 122,602,372
Restricted cash investment
securities 10,742,916 - -0- -0- -0- 10,742,916
Loan portfolio, net 1,370,524,040 71,915,824 156,744,745 38,257,730 39,805,811 1,677,248,150
Interests and commissions
receivable 29,604,975 0- «0- 0- 0. 29,604,975
Investments in subsidiaries -0- 0- -0- 0- 5,225,884 5,225,884
3,452,239,175 75,614,459 156,744,745 38,257,730 48,345,275 3,771,291,384
LWABILITIES: .
Customers’ deposits 3,260,957,106 0- Q- Q- 0- 3,260,857,106
Other borrowings 127,380,306 -0- - 0- 1,075,988 128,456,294
Other financial intermediation
obligations 16,891,051 -0- -0- -0- 0- 16,891,051
Interests and commissions payable 2,074,214 £0- 0. <0- 0- 2,074,214
3,407,302,677 0- -0- -0- 1,075,988 3,408,178,665

As of June 30, 2007:

Due from Due from
Duein 6 Due from & 12 to18 18 t0 24 Due over 24
months or less 10 12 months months months months Total
{In thausands of bolivars)
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks 883,727,450 £ -0- -0- -0- 883,727 450
Investment securities-
Placements with BCV and
interbank transactions 985,801,419 -0- -0- -0- -0 985,801,419
Investments transferred (193,462,840} -0 Q- £ - {193,462,840)
792,338,579 -0- -0- 0 -0 792,338,579
Avallable-for-sale investment
securities 1,119,442 -0- Q- -0~ 0 1,110,442
Held-to-maturity investment
securities 135,338,645 14,715,068 -0 -0- 1,069,904 151,121,615
Restricted cash investment
securities 210,232,744 -0 -0- -0 -0 210,232,744
Loan portfolio, net 795,549,701 91,720,422 6,674,114 40,629,212 234,268,011 1,168,841,492
Interests and commissions
receivable 17,247,276 -0 £ £ -0 17,217,278
lnvestments in subsidiaries -0- -0- - 0= 5219,426 5,218,426
2,835,521,837 108,435 488 6,874 146 40,628,212 240,557,341 3,229,818,024
LIABILITIES:
Custorners' deposits 2,903,440,754 -0- 0- - -0- 2,903,448,754
Other barrowings 28,901,633 -0- 0 L +3 1,075,988 29,977,821
Other financial intermediation
obligations 5,044,862 -0- 0- -0- 0= 5,644 862
Interesis and commissions payable 1,172,668 -0- -0- -0~ -0 1,172,668

2,939,467,915 0 -0- -0- 1,075,688 2,840,543,903

NOTE 19.- TAX REGIME AND OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS:

a. Income taxes-

The Income Tax Law sets forth, among other issues, the regime for the payment of income
taxes on operating income and capital gains, worldwide income system, international tax

transparency regime, transfer-pricing system and inflation adjustment. The concepts related




to the calculation of the income tax expense in accordance with the current Venezuelan laws
that affect the Bank are described below:

- Book to tax reconciliation of income tax expense:
The Bank’s fiscal year ends December 31. The Bank presents its income tax returns on an

annual basis and estimates the income tax expense on a semiannual basis at the end of
each accounting period.

The provisions for income taxes are calculated on the basis of an income that differs from
book income due to nontaxable or deductible items, which are permanent or temporary. The
reconciliation of the estimated tax expense determined on book income and the income tax
expense calculated on taxable income is shown as follows:

Six-month Six-month
period ended period ended
311207 30-06-07

(In thousands of bolivars)

Income tax expense determined on the book income 35,703,165 25,142,921
Differences between book and tax expense, net for:
Loss deductible for tax inflaticn adjustment (11,455,952) (7.432,978)
Exempted income for public securities (6,992,433) (7.791,345)
Valuation allowance of assets, net of write-cffs 1,753,624 1,146,407
Payments for retirements and other, net of accruals {790,824} 1,039,266
Unrealized gain for valuation of shares (679) (1,020,877)
Income from equity and dividends (5,919) (230,199)
Expenses related to exempted income 54,322 124,516
Income from gold revaluation (314,758) {25,281)
Other, net of reversals (529,845) 80,884
{18,282,464) (14,109,607}
Income tax caused 17,420,701 11,033,314

The Bank was qualified as special taxpayer from May 1995 by the Tax Administration
(SENIAT).

- Regular adjustment for inflation:
The regular adjustment for inflation represents the higher (or lower) value of the

stockholder's equity resulting from recognizing the effects of inflation over nonmonetary
assets and liabilities through the application of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) issued by the
BCV on the basis of the procedures provided by the Venezuelan tax law. The tax adjustment
for inflation is considered as taxable income or loss deductible in the calculation of the
income tax expense, as applicable. For the six-month periods ended December 31 and June
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30, 2007, the effect of the regular adjustment for inflation generated a deduction in the

income tax expense of Bs. 11,456 million and Bs. 7,433 million, respectively.

- Loss carryforwards:

The Venezuelan Income Tax Law authorizes the carryforward of operating losses not offset
for up to three years subsequent to the period in which they were incurred and the
carryforward of tax losses not offset from tax inflation adjustment for up to one subsequent
year. As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Bank has not incurred any tax loss

carryforwards.

- Transfer-pricing system:

Taxpayers subject to income taxes that carry out transactions with foreign stockholders or
related companies shall determine their income from exports made and their costs for goods
and services acquired from foreign related parties, by applying the methods provided by the
Law. The assessment of the Bank's activities and the applicable regulations on transfer
pricing carried out by Management and its tax advisors concluded that the Bank does not

carry out activities that might be subject to this system.

- Tax on capital qains:

The Income Tax Law sets forth a tax on dividend with a taxable basis represented by the
excess of the net financial income of the Company, not exempted or exonerated on its net
income levied with the income tax. The applicable tax rate is 34% and shall be totally
withheld by the Bank that declares dividends. The Bank is subject to this regime for the
dividends received from its subsidiaries and affiliates and it is a tax withholding agent for the
dividends declared to its stockholders.

b. Value-added tax-

The Value-added Tax (VAT) Law levies the alienation of assets and the rendering of
services through the application of a tax rate that varied during these two six-month periods
of 2007 from 14% to 9% (15% through September 2005). The VAT collected and paid every
month is offset and the resulting tax debits or credits are paid to the Tax Administration or
deferred to be offset in the future, as applicable. The main operations of the Bank do not
generate tax debit; therefore, tax credits are charged to the cost of the asset or service
acquired.
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The passive taxpayers qualified as special by SENIAT will serve as VAT withholding agents,
as they purchase real estate or receive services from suppliers that are considered as
regular taxpayers. The amount to be withheld will be 75% of the tax caused, and in certain
situations it may reach 100%. For taxes withheld by customers (active} not offset in 3
months or over may request to SENIAT a total, partial or accumulated recovery of the
balance. The taxes withheld by suppliers (passive) are monthly withheld (see Notes 10 and
13).

c. Law of Science, Technology and Innovation-

The Partial Regulation of the Law of Science, Technology and Innovation referred to the
investment contributions was published on October 16, 2006, and the Law was passed by
on August 3, 2005. These standards set forth that companies with gross revenues
exceeding 100,000 tax units (1 tax unit is equivalent to Bs. 37,632, as of December 31,
2007) are liable to invest during the period in technological and scientific activities of social
development mentioned in the Law or, otherwise, to the payment of a contribution equivalent
to the amount not invested to the competent entity under the Ministry of Science and
Technology. Such contribution or investment ranges from 0.5% to 2% of total gross income
of companies, depending on the economic activity carried out thereby, and it is determined

on the basis of the total gross revenues of the prior period.

This law entered into effect from its publication on August 3, 2005, and the contributions set
forth thereby shall be made from January 1, 2006. Those entities liable to make this
contribution shall be registered with Observatorio Nacional de Tecnologia (National
Technology Observatory) and shall file a final return of investments or contributions made in
the economic period (from January 2006) within the same lapse of time that corresponds to
filing the income tax return and making the payment of the difference within the 30 days
following the filing.

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Bank has determined that the contribution or
investment amounts to approximately Bs. 718 million for each semiannual period, and during
the period it has made investments that exceed the referred to amount; accordingly, no

additional provisions were created for this concept.
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d. Organic Law against the illicit traffic and consumption of Drugs and

Psychotropic Substances-

In October 2005, the Organic Law against the illicit traffic and consumption of Drugs and
Psychotropic Substances was published and it derogates the law issued in 2003. Such law
sets forth that companies with more than 50 employees shall destine 1% of their annual net
income to the implementation of integral prevention programs against the traffic and
consumption of drugs that benefit their employees or families; of such percentage 0.5% will
be destined to programs for children and teenagers.

Entities shall file a return and annual payment of this contribution to the competent authority
within the 15 calendar days following the origin date. Oficina Nacional Antidrogas (ONA)
published that the process to make the special contributions were extended until new notice.
To date, neither the Regulation nor the new Law have been issued, the ONA has not issued

any pronouncement in this regard.
As of December 31, 2007, the Bank has created provisions to cover these contributions for

the amount of Bs. 882 million (Bs. 607 million as of June 30, 2007}, which is reported in

“Miscellaneous operating expenses”.

NOTE 20.- RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN:

The Bank has a noncontributory pension plan. The plan's benefits payable are based upon
the years of service and the employee's last salary. The obligation under this plan is
calculated on the basis of actuarial surveys made on an annual basis.

From January 2008, the Pension plan is managed by a domestic financial institution through
a trust contract aimed at administering and investing the funds received from the Bank
related to the payments of pensions. To that date, the administration of the plan was

responsibility of the Bank’s management.

The reconciliation of the financial position of the projected pension plan is as follows:

311207 30-06-07
{In thousands of bolivars}

Obligation from projected benefits {29,735,314) (23,274,926)

Net assets of the Plan, placed in trust 13,643,073 10,033,474

Net financial position of the ptan (16,092,241) (13,241,452)

Unrecognized beginning obligation 1,078,605 1,112,460

Unrecognized projected net loss 15,013,636 10,452,499

Liability for pension plan -0- {1,676,493)
58



[

The trust net assets were taken from the actuary’s report, which do not significantly differ

from financial statements of the trust, not audited by independent public accountants.

The unrecognized actuarial net loss amounts to Bs. 15,014 million (Bs. 10,452 million for the
six-month period ended June 30, 2007), and results from differences between the actuarial
premises applied and the current values for differences in the salary increases, higher or
lower rotation and mortality occurred and adjustments to actuarial premises, among others.
These net losses are amortized generally over the remaining average years necessary for
retirement of the active group. For the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank
adjusted its estimates based on the report submitted by the independent expert in December
2007.

Premises used by independent actuaries to calculate the obligation for projected benefits,
the costs for services and interests, according to the last actuarial report at December 2007,

are as follows:

Actual Nominal

rates rates
Discount rate 5% 13%
Salary increase 1% 9%

The periodical cost of the pension plan for both six-month periods is composed as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands)
Cost of service 737,082 737,082
Interest cost 1,330,210 1,330,210
2,067,292 2,067,292
Projected return on assets (627,200) {627,200)
Amortization-

Unrecognized beginning obligation 33,855 33,855
Unrecognized net loss 202,546 202,546
236,401 236,401

1,676,493 1,676,493

Independent actuaries made an actuarial calculation of the projected obligation of the
retirement pension plan under the premise that the initial application date is June 30, 2000,
in order to determine the unrecognized beginning obligation, which will be amortized by the
Bank from July 1, 2000, over the remaining average years necessary for retirement of the

active group of employees.
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During the six-month periods ended December 31 and June 30, 2007, the Bank recorded
expenses for Bs. 1,676 million for both six-month periods corresponding to the contributions
to the trust of the retirement pension plan, which are shown in “General and administrative
expenses”. As of June 30, 2007, “Accruals and other liabilities” show a balance of Bs. 1,680
million, corresponding to the contributions for the six-month period to be transferred to the

trust.

From January 2006, the pension payments are made through the Trust contracted for these

purposes.

NOTE 21.- CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS:

As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the most significant contingencies and claims are as

follows:

a. Tax issues-

The Bank has been filed certain tax assessments, the status of which is summarized as

follows:

- The Bank has interposed Tax Contentious Appeals against Culminating Resolutions of
administrative summary issued by the Tax Administration (SENIAT), confirming
assessments for Bs. 7,804 million, Bs. 2,561 million and Bs. 1,712 million related to
income taxes and corporate assets tax for years 1997, 1998 and 1999. Presently, the
first appeal is waiting for sentence and the second and third appeals were partially
accepted on February 21, 2007, it was confirmed by the Court, then the Bank resorted to

a higher instance.

- The Bank has interposed a Tax Contentious Appeal against the Culminating Resolution
of administrative summary issued by the Tax Administration (SENIAT), confirming
assessments for Bs. 9,864 million related to income taxes for years 2000 and 2001 and
imposing penalties for Bs. 10,357 million. Presently, this case is waiting for sentence.

- The Bank has been issued an assessment for Bs. 748 million related to corporate assets
tax for years 1999, 2000 and 2001, which is waiting for the issuance of the Culminating
Resolution of administrative summary by the Tax Administration (SENIAT), after having
filed the corresponding writ of acquittance against such assessment.

60



The Bank has been issued tax assessments for Bs. 5415 million, corresponding to
obligations related to its role as withholding agent on current account debits maintained

in financial institutions. This case is presently waiting for sentence.

The Bank has been issued certain assessments for special contribution to INCE
(National Training Institute) for years 1997 to 2000 for Bs. 550 million. This case is
presently waiting for sentence.

The Bank has been issued certain assessments for tax stamps for years 2002 to 2004
for Bs. 744 million. The Bank filed the corresponding writ of acquittance against such
assessments and is waiting for the issuance of the Culminating Resolution of

administrative summary.

In the opinion of the external legal advisors and the Bank’s Management, the possibilities of
a favorable outcome for the Bank in connection with these assessments are high; therefore,
it estimates that the provisions maintained therefor as of December 31 and June 30, 2007,
sufficiently cover the liabilities that might arise from the assessments referred to above.

b. Other-

The Bank has been issued certain civil claims by third parties and has received
administrative instructions from the SUDEBAN, the status of which is summarized as

follows:

Some claims have been filed against the Bank by certain companies of the fishing
industry regarding guarantee operations to two shipping companies (Cases: Nissos
Amorgos and Plate Princess). These are totally covered with guarantees established on
behalf of the Bank by foreign financial institutions with which the shipping companies
manage their operations to date. Part of these claims has been rejected or the claimers
have desisted their actions against the Bank before the Supreme Court of Justice; the
others are waiting for the final decision by the Court.

On May 5, 2004, the Eighth High Court in Civil and Mercantile Banking Matters with
National Competence and located in the City of Caracas declared as out of law the
appeal filed by the legal counsels of the labor union "Sindicato Unico de Pescadores de
Puerto Miranda”" on the case Plate Princess, by ratifying in all and every of its parts the
sentence issued in favor of the Bank on December 14, 1999, by the Ninth Court of
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Banking Competence of the Judicial Circumscription of the Metropolitan Area of Caracas
and leaving without juridical effect and validity the guarantee granted by the Bank. The
plaintiff exerted the Abrogation Appeal against such decision and it was admitted on July
20, 2005. In virtue of this decision, the High Maritime Court with National competence
and located in Caracas, acting as resending Court, declared nullified the sentence
issued by the First Instance Court in Banking Matters on October 16, 2006 and
reinstated the cause to the stage that the Judge of First Instance in Maritime matters will
issue a new sentence. On November 20, 2006, the Bank formalized an Abrogation
appeal against the last decision, which was declared as accepted; accordingly, it
corresponds to the Judge of First Instance in Maritime matters to issue a new sentence.

As a result of the National Civic Strike that began on December 2, 2002, the SUDEBAN
issued certain administrative proceedings against various financial entities for the
presumed suspension of commercial services {o users in some agencies, without the
previous notice to such regulator entity, and the presumed partial reduction of the
standard service business hours during various days of January 2003. In connection
therewith, the Bank filed its defense arguments for the claims filed against it. On May 11
and 27, 2004 the SUDEBAN notified the Bank that the 45-day period set forth to decide
on the 8 sanctioning administrative proceedings filed for the presumed suspension of
commercial services would begin. On July 7, 2004, the Bank requested the accrual of all
the sanctioning administrative proceedings referred to above. To date, the Bank is
waiting for the resolution of this case. The maximum contingency related to these
administrative proceedings corresponds to penalties from 0.5% to 1% of the Bank's paid-

in capital stock unless they are accrued.

On December 20, 20086, through official document N° SBIF-DSB-II-GGI-G15-244986, the
SUDEBAN instructed the Bank to reclassify Bs. 159,927 million corresponding to
amounts not restricted in six-month periods prior to December 31, 2005 from “Available
undistributed earnings” to “Restricted earnings”, in conformity with a cautionary measure
granted to the Bank in 2002 against Resolution 329-99 dated December 28, 1999, which
instructed the restriction of 50% of semiannual earnings. Such instruction is issued in
virtue that on April 25, 2006, the First Court in Contentious Administrative matters
declared applicable the opposition appeal filed by this entity against such innominate
cautionary measure. On December 29, 2006, the Bank filed a reconsideration appeal on
the instruction referred to above on the basis that the Court on December 14, 2006, in
response to a request of clarification filed by another financial institution that was
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declared out of law by the Court, it stated that such measure was revoked and was not
declared nullified; therefore, its effects are toward the future. It also stated the right to
judicial guardianship effective during the time the innominate cautionary measure was in
force. To date, the Bank is waiting for the pronouncement of the SUDEBAN in this
regard. Additionally, on January 24, 2007, the Bank requested before the First Court in
Administrative Contentious matters a new nullification request together with the
innominate cautionary measure against the orders instructed by the SUDEBAN. On April
11, 2007, the Court declared as accepted the request of cautionary measure made by
the Bank, and accordingly, the effects of the restriction orders of prior period earnings
instructed by the SUDEBAN on December 20, 2006. On May 31, 2007, the SUDEBAN
consigned an opposition writ to the innominate cautionary measure ordered by the Court
on April 11, 2007, which was declared out of law on July 10, 2007, thus ratifying the
agreed cautionary measure and maintaining suspended the effects of the orders
contained in official document issued by the SUDEBAN on December 20, 2006 (see
Note 14).

According to the Bank's management, based upon the analysis of every case and the
external legal advisors' opinion, the Bank's provisions as of December 31 and June 30,
2007, cover sufficiently the liabilities that might arise as a result of the claims referred to
above.

NOTE 22.- BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Venezolano de Crédito, S.A. Banco Universal and its foreign branch are members of Grupo
Venezolano de Crédito and Grupo Vencred. Because of the nature of their business, the
Bank and its Branch have made transactions and maintain balances with companies of the
Group and their effects are included in their financial statements.

The most significant transactions carried out by the Bank with stockholders and other related
parties are mainly represented by investments and deposits, the effects of which are
presented as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07

{In thousands of bolivars)
Other operating income:
Commissions from services-

Transferencia Electronica de Beneficios, C.A. 225,792 224,314
Participaciones Vencred, S.A. 5,400 4,500
231,192 228,814
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Income from equity participation:
Participaciones Vencred, S.A.

Miscelianeous operating income:

Servicios de Transferencia Electrénica de Beneficios, C.A.

Servicios Vencred, S.A.

Financia! expenses:
Expenses for deposits in interest-bearing current accounts-
Transferencia Electronica de Beneficios, C.A.

Servicios de Transferencia Electrénica de Beneficios, C.A.

Other

Expenses for other demand obligations-
Venezolana de Bienes, S.A.
Other

Expenses for savings deposits-
Servicios de Actualizacién Total Automatica, S.A.

Expenses for other borrowings-
Participaciones Vencred, S.A.

Other operating expenses-
Valores Vencred Casa de Bolsa, S.A.

Operating expenses-
Inversiones Las Monjas, C.A.
Other

31-12-07 30-06-07
(In thousands of belivars)
6,458 11,609
225,792 224,314
17,897 12,855
243,789 237,169
481,439 477,692
592,252 110,854
76,052 10,044
10,505 9,516
678,809 130,414
397,281 -0-
11,853 15,475
409,134 15,475
1,135 943
163,587 142,761
-0- 37,492
460,424 289,286
210,820 179,218
671,244 468,504
1,923,209 795,589

As a result of these transactions and other less significant transactions, the following

balances are included in various captions of the balance sheets:

ASSETS:
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates:
Participaciones Vencred, S.A.

Other assets:
Transferencia Electrénica de Beneficios, C.A.
Other

LIABILITIES
Customers’ deposits:

Non-interest bearing current accounts-
Transferencia Electrénica de Beneficios, C.A.
Servicios de Transferencia Electrénica de

Beneficios, C.A.
Other

311207

30-06-07

{In thousands of bolivars)

5,254,185 5,247,727
20,159 24,627

24 11,659

20,183 36,286
5,274,368 5284,013
38,247,247 34,953,274
3,849,709 2,935,928
847,293 486,068
42,944,249 38,375,270
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Interest-bearing current accounts-

31-12-07

30-06-07

(In thousands of bolivars)

Promociones Vencred, S.A. 609,668 314,036
Inmobiliaria Galeria Los Naranjos, C.A. 561,724 1,348,483
Venezolana de Bienes, S.A. 474,529 160,021
Other 408,143 4,544 446
2,054,064 6,366,986
Savings deposits-
Servicios de Actualizacién Total Automatica, S.A. 17,043 26,739
Other 1,468 1,408
18,511 28,147
45,016,824 44,770,403
Other borrowings-
Participaciones Vencred, S.A. 5,504,033 5,655,294
Interests and commissions payable-
Transferencia Electrénica de Beneficios, C.A. 41,667 -0-
Other 15,969 1,170
57,636 1,170
Deferred income-
Servicios Vencred, S.A. -0- 2,571
50,578,493 50,329,438
NOTE 23.- FOREIGN CURRENCY BALANCES:
Foreign currency balances included in the balance sheets are detailed as follows:
31-12-07 30-06-07
Uss$ Bs. uss Bs.
(In thousands)
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks 13,344 28,617,736 14,710 31,547,528
Investment securities 65,715 140,932,491 75,436 161,779,615
Loan portfolio 8,929 19,149,780 3,021 6,478,247
Interests and commissions receivable 636 1,363,125 749 1,607,276
Other assets 53 114,282 82 176,518
88,677 190,177,414 93,998 201,589,184
LIABILITIES:
Customers’ deposits (67,897) (145,611,783) (66,981) (143,648,080)
Other borrowings {8,420) (18,056,586) 0- -0-
Other financial intermediation obligations (7.876) (16,891,051) (2,767) (5,934,424)
Interests and commissions payable (20) (42,894) (1) (2,350)
Accruals and other liabilities (224) (480,833) {255) (545,901)
(84,437) (181,083,147) (70,004) (150,130,755)
MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS:
Other debit memorandum accounts, net 16,534 35,459,345 (3,650} {7,827,762)
16,534 35,459,345 (3,650) (7,827,762)

their corresponding value in dollars.

The amounts shown in dollars include minor amounts in other foreign currencies such as

Euros, pound sterling, Canadian dollars, and Japanese yens, among others, presented at
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During the six-month period ended December 31, 2007, the Bank obtained exchange gains
for approximately Bs. 1,329 million (Bs. 174 million as of June 30, 2007), and losses for
approximately Bs. 15 million (Bs. 16 million as of June 2007), which are presented in the
statements of income in the “Other operating income™ and “Other operating expenses”

captions, respectively.

According to the General Law of Banks and Other Financial Institutions, universal banks
should maintain their net position in foreign currency within limits provided by BCV through
special resolutions. As of December 31 and June 30, 2007, the net foreign currency position
allowed by BCV was Bs. 94,157 million (US$ 44 million) and Bs. 78,020 million (US$ 36
million), equivalent to 30% of the net stockholders' equity, respectively. As of December 31
and June 30, 2007, the net foreign currency position maintained by the Bank, calculated on
the basis of the Bank’s individual financial statements under parameters provided by that
institution, amounts to Bs. 44,455 million {US$ 21 miflion} and Bs. 43,631 million (US$ 20
million), respectively.

NOTE 24.- EXCHANGE REGIME:

On January 21, 2003, through Decree No. 2278 published in Official Gazette No. 37614, the
Venezuelan Government empowered the Ministry of Finance to agree upon with BCV certain
measures to limit or restrict the free convertibility of the national currency and the transfer of
funds from the country to abroad. On February 5, 2003, BCV issued the Exchange
agreement N° 1 published in the Official Gazette No. 37625 that rules the foreign currency
management regime that imposes the restrictions referred to above and the creation of
CADIVI (Foreign Exchange Administration Commission), which is in charge of coordinating,
administrating, controlling and establishing the requirements, procedures and restrictions
required for the execution of this exchange agreement.

The official exchange rates fixed from the effectiveness of the exchange regime are as

follows:
Exchange rate Exchange
Effective from for purchases rate for sale
Bs. per dollar
February §, 2003 1,5696.00 1,600.00
February 6, 2004 1,915.20 1,920.00
March 2, 2005 2,144 .60 2,150.00
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On April 22, 2003, the Bank entered into the agreement related to the purchase and sale of
foreign currencies with CADIVI, under which it may participate in the activities related to the
management of the exchange regime through its main office and branches, agencies and
offices designated by the Bank. Such agreement has a term of six months that may be
automatically extended for the same term, except as the parties express otherwise.

On December 28, 2007, the new Foreign Exchange Crimes Law was published, which
derogates the former September 2005 Law, which sets forth the fact assumptions that can
be considered as foreign exchange crimes and their related penalties. These assumptions
include the nondeclaration of foreign currencies for exports and the purchase, sale, offer,
import or export of foreign currencies. The new law is effective January 27, 2008 and
includes significant changes regarding the obligations to declare and the actions that may be
qualified as foreign exchange crimes or administrative infractions. n addition, under the new
law, offers, announcements or disclosure of financial information on foreign currency
quotations other than the official exchange rate are not allowed. The new law sets forth that
liquidations of foreign currencies granted by CADIVI are nontransferable and those offered
goods and services acquired with foreign currencies authorized by CADIVI shall be publicly

announced, among other issues.

NOTE 25.- SITUATION OF THE VENEZUELAN MARKET:

a. Juridical and economic reorganization-

In January 2007, the Venezuelan Government announced new measures mainly
concentrated on the economic, social, geopolitical, financial and energetic sectors. Such
measures involve a general legal reorganization through the amendment to the National
Constitution, the amendment to the Commerce Code and the promulgation of an Enabling
Law that grants the President with the ability of legislating by decree during an 18-month
period in diverse matters of national interest, including financial and economic sectors. In
addition, the Government announced the nationalization of companies of the
telecommunications and power sector, which are considered as strategic. During the days
following these announcements, there are expectations on the way in which the business will
be conducted in the country in the future under the new legal framework; and accordingly, in
the companies’ operations. Until the changes announced will be implemented and the
market assimilates the implemented measures, it will not be possible to foresee the effect of
such measures in the future operations.
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b. Monetary Reconversion-

On March 6, 2006, the Venezuelan Government published Decree N° 5229 on Monetary
Reconversion Law in Official Gazette N° 38638 effective January 1, 2008. Under this Law,
three zeros will be suppressed from the monetary unit, thus establishing a new and minor
scale for moneys, prices of goods and services offered in the economy, foreign exchange
rates as compared with other currencies and wages and salaries. The new monetary unit will
be designated as Strong Bolivar (Bs. F). Effective January 1, 2008, the Strong Bolivar will
begin to circularize and during a period of at least six months it will circularize simultaneously
with the legal tender, i.e. the Bolivar (Bs.). Accordingly, companies shall adjust their systems
and operations and take all the necessary steps in order that since January 1, 2008, all their
transactions and balances will be totally converted to the new monetary unit, namely Bs. F.

In connection therewith, on July 26, 2007, the Venezuelan Federation of Public Accountants
(FCCPV) issued a pronouncement regarding the effects of the monetary reconversion on the
financial information derived from such Law and the Standards ruling the monetary
expression and the rounding issued by BCV. Additionally, the Accounting Manual added
certain modifications effective January 2008.

The most significant issues resulting from the changes to the Accounting Manual issued by
SUDEBAN and the supplementary application of the standards of the FCCPV are as follows:

» The effects of the rounding will be recorded in clearing accounts in other assets and
other liabilities, until the SUDEBAN indicates their allocation to income, while the
FCCPV sets forth that these effects shall be recorded in the income for the period in

which the procedure is applied.

+ The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 shall be presented in
current bolivars (Bs.} and may be expressed in thousands. Any comparative amount to
that date shall be expressed in the same measuring unit referred to above.

» For future use, the financial statements issued until December 31, 2007 shall be

converted into Strong bolivars (Bs.F) by dividing the amounts presented by one
thousand.
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¢ The financial statements published from January 1, 2008 shall be presented in strong
bolivars (Bs.F) without cents. Any comparative amount to that date shall be expressed

in the same measuring unit referred to above.

+ |In accordance with the new manual, the costs incurred in the adequacy process to the
monetary reconversion are recognized as deferred expenses and amortized over 1to 6
years, based on their nature, while the FCCPV sets forth that these costs are
recognized as expenses as incurred.

» The issues related to the monetary reconversion affecting the financial information shall

be disclosed in notes, based on the materiality principles of relative significance.

NOTE 26.- EXPLANATION ADDED FOR TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH:

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting practices
of the Venezuelan Superintendence of Banks and Other Financial Institutions. Certain
accounting principles applied by the Bank and its Branch in their financial statements for use
in Venezuela may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other
countries.
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EXHIBIT |
VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRAN 12
SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
(Stated in thousands of constant bolivars)
ASSETS 31-12-07 30-06-07
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS:
Cash 123.807.255 61.084.188
Bance Central de Venezuela 973.538.206 789.661.521
Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions 56 -
Due from foreign banks and correspondents 18.888.108 26.046.017
Due from main office and branches - -
Clearing house funds 28.933.328 127.499.773
(Allowance for cash and due from banks) - -
1.145.167.952 1.004,291.499
INVESTMENT SECURITIES:
Placements in Banco Central de Venezuela and
interbank transactions 770.362.942 900.434.743
Trading investment securities - -
Available-for-sale investment securitles 10.336.193 1.272.164
Held-to-maturity investment securities 122.602,372 171.738.643
Restricted cash investments 10.742.916 238.914.110
Other investment securities - -
{Allowance for investment securilies) - -
914.044.423 1.312.359.660
LOAN PORTFOLIO:
Curmrent loans 1.688.897.050 1.332.262.111
Restructured loans 2.733.062 3.846.634
Past-dus loans 4,198.856 10.596.071
Loans in litigation 3.929.64% 1.164.291
{Allowance for loan portfolio} {22.520.467} (19.566.389)
1.677.248.150 1.328.302.718
INTERESTS AND COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE:
Accrued interest receivable from cash and due from banks 42.474 6.032
Accrued interest receivable from investment securities 8.701.071 7.250.406
Accrued interest receivabla from loan portfolio 20.962.590 10.167.709
Commissions receivable 5§9.270 2.254 365
Accrued interest receivable from other accounts receivable - -
{Allowance for accrued Interest recelvable from loan portfolio and other) {160.430) {112.339)
29.604.975 19.566.173
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATES
AND BRANCHES:
Equity in other institutions 5.254.185 5.963.657
Investments in foreign branches or agencies - -
{(Allowance for investments In foreign subsidiares, affiliales -
and branches) {28.301) (32.161)
5.225.854 5.931.496
FORECLOSED ASSETS 882.359 1.113.705
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 117.344.546 118.606.277
OTHER ASSETS 49,016.497 37.323.693
3.938.534.786 3.827.495.221
MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS:
Contingent debit accounts 219.294.588 495.499.671
Trust assets 826.466.567 828.170.637
Other trusts - -
Other debit memorandum accounts 3.851.5619.556 4.139.672.888
4.897.280.711 5.463.343.196
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EXHIBIT |
VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANC 242
SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEETS AS QF DECEMEBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
{Stated in thousands of constant bolivars)
IABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 31-12-07 30-08-07
CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS:
Deposits in current accounts
Non-interest-bearing current accounts 1.139.020.763 961.706.779
Interest-bearing current accounts 752.187.010 559.032.319
1.891.207.773 1.620.739.098
Other demand obligations 656.131.602 1.006.281.396
Money transaction table obligations - -
Savings deposits 527.101.066 523.263.439
Time deposits 13.659.812 5.801.573
Invesiment securities issued by the Bank - -
Restricted customers' deposits 125.508.164 135.623.158
Rights and participations in investment securities 47,348,689 7.848.118
3.260.957.106 3.299.556.782
OBLIGATIONS WITH BANCO CENTRAL DE VENEZUELA - -
DEPOSITS AND OBLIGATIONS WITH BANCO
NACIONAL DE AHORRO Y PRESTAMO - -
OTHER BORRQWINGS:
Otligations with domestic financial institutions due in one year or less 31.627.624 21.107.305
Obligations with domestic financial institutions due over one year - -
Obligations with foreign financial institutions due in one year or less 45.322.342 11.737.283
Obligations with foreign financial institutions due over one year - -
Obligations resulting from other bormowings due in one year or less 50.430.340 -
Obligations resulting from other borrawings due over one year 1.075.988 1.222.782
128.456.294 34.067.370
OTHER FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS 16.891.051 6.755.900
INTERESTS AND COMMISSIONS PAYABLE:
Accrued expenses for customers' deposits 1.946.105 1.294,296
Accrued expenses for obligations with Banco Central de Venezuela . .
Accrued expenses for deposits and obligations with
Banco Nacional de Ahorro y Préstamo - -
Accrued expenses for other bormowings 128.109 36.858
Accrued expenses for other financial intermediation obligations - 1.496
Accrued expenses for obligations convertible into capital - -
Accrued expenses for underlying obligations - -
2.074.214 1.332.650
ACCRUALS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 118.120.803 104.306.875
UNDERLYING OBLIGATIONS - -
OBLIGATIONS CONVERTIBLE INTO CAPITAL - -
Total liabilities 3.526.499.468 1.446.019.577
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Paid-in capital 69.888.000 69.838.000
Restatement of paid-in capital 611.190.785 611.190.7385
Uncapitalized equity contributions 144,921,105 144.921.105
Capital reserves §37.364.113 530.800.037
Other equity accounts - -
Retained eamings {952.547.108) (976.178.363)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investment securities 1.218.423 854.080
Total stockholders' equity 412.035.318 381.475.644
3.938.534.786 3.827.495.221
PER CONTRA MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS 4.897.280.711 5.463.343.195
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EXHIBIT I
VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH
SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS QF INCOME AND ALLGCATION OF NET INCOME
FOR THE SIX-MQNTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
{Stated in thousands of constant bolivars)
31-12-07 30-068-07

FINANCIAL REVENUES:

Cash and dus from banks 58.642 55.962

Invastment securities 74.508.765 74.139.302

Loan portfolio 125.248.424 89.989.200

Other accounts receivable 2.861.353 2.363.464

Investments in Subsidiznies and affliales -

Main office, branches and agencies -

Other 31.826 355
202.481.010 166.548.263

FINANCIAL EXPENSES:

Cusiomers’ deposits 48.993.710 33.208.406
Qbligations with Banco Central de Venezuela - -
Obfigations and Deposits with

Banco Nacional de Ahormo y Préstamo -
Other borrowings 4.195.949 565.233
Other financial inlarmediation obligations 151.736 297.631
Undetlying obligations - -
Obligations convertible into capital - -
Main office, branches and agencies - -
Other 34.56T7 114,301

Monetary loss 3).419.800 17.488.778
8).845.762 51.764.349
Gross financial margin 118.635.248 114,783,934
IRCOME FROM RECOVERY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 329137 5.470
EXPENSES FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE AND IMPAIRED
FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Uncollectible loans and other accounts receivable 2.240.030 5.017.908
Crestion of alowance and adjustments of cash and due from banks -
8.240.030 5.017.906
Net financial margin 110.724.355 109.771.498
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 71888475 70.896.499
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 8.745.605 6.391.650
Financial intermediation margin 175.867.225 174.276.347
LESS- OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel 59.142.517 53.698.612
General and administrative expenses 39.653.953 .rrnzan
Contributions to Fondo de Garantia de Depdsitos y Proteccién Bancaria 6.749.164 6.182.979
Contributions to Superintendendia de Bancos y Olras Insiitucionas Financieras 2.079.852 1.833.113
107.525.486 90,486,825
Gross operating margin 68.341.739 74.789.522
Income from foreciosad assets 1.085.464 2.437.521
Income from special programs . -
Miscellaneous operating income 10.909.573 7.149.047
Expenses for foreciosed assets {685.630) (23.706.862)
Expenses for depreciation, amontization and impaired miscellanecus assets {358.381) (80.519)
Miscellaneous operating expenses (6.436.483) (4.225.319)
4.514.543 (18.426.132)
Net operating margin 72.856.282 58,363,390
EXTRAQRDINARY INCOME 11.544.758 950,488
EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES 446.180 470.672
Gross income before income taxes 83.954.860 56.843.206
INCOME TAXES 18.314.102 15,744,207
Net income 65.040.758 41.098.999
ALLOCATION OF INCOME, nat:
tegal reserve 8.564.07¢8 4,109.800
Statutory eamings-
Board of Directors 8.858.970 6.292 847
8.458.970 6.292.847
Retained eamings-
Restricted undistribuled eamings 22.760.501 17.166.963
Available undistributed eamings 27 45T7.211 13.529.289
50.217.712 30.696.252

85.840.768 41.098.999
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EXHIBITIV

VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007
{Stated In thousands of constant bolivars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income for the six-month period
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
from operating activities-
Income from recovery of financial assets
Income from sale of foreclosed assets
Extraordinary income
Allowance for uncollectible and impaired financial assets
Depreciation and amortization
Equity for the six-month period
Net change in other assets
Net change in interests and commissions recelvable
Net change in accruals and other liabilities
Net change in interests and commissions payable
Statutory eamings

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM {USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net change In customers' deposits
Net change in other borrowings
Net change In other financial intermediation obligations
Cash diwvidends paid

Met cash from (used in} financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Loans granted for the period
Loans collected for the period
Met change in placements in Banco Central de Venezuela and interbank transactions
Net change In available-for-sale investment securities
Net change In held-to-maturity investment securitles
Net change in restricted cash investments
Sale price of premises and equipment and foreclosed assels
Additions to premises and equipment and foreclosed assets, net

Net cash from investing activities
Net increase in cash and due from banks
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, at the beginning of the slx-month porlod

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, at tho ond of the six-month period

311207 30-06-07
66.640.758 41.098.999
(249.053) -
(1.085.454) (2.437.521)
{11.282.282) .
8.240.030 5.017.906
7.520.349 30.186.526
709.472 448.335
{14.220.721) (1.824.282)
{10.103.573) (1.062.602)
14.700.552 (10.409.519)
741.564 361.050
(8.858.970) {6.292.847)
52.052.652 55.085.945
{38.599.676) 415.581.055
94.388.924 {490.101.782)
10.135.151 1.238.331
(26.586.457) {31.930.107)
39.337.942 (105.212.503)

(1.917.420.084)

{1.682,595.743)

1.660.295.533 1.532.064.471
130.071.801 §2.853.092
(8.699.686) 1.720.452
49.136.271 8.178.930
228.171.194 306.490.521
13.382.365 2.172.596
(5.451.636) {1.217.647)
495.485.859 219.766.672
140.876.453 169.640.114
1.004.291.499 834.651.385
1.145.167.952 1.004.201.499
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EXHIBITV

VENEZOLANO DE CREDITO, S.A. BANCO UNIVERSAL

AND ITS GRAND CAYMAN BRANCH

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31 AND JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE 1.- SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

The inflation-adjusted financial statements, presented as supplemental information in
Exhibits | to V, have been prepared following the same accounting practices summarized in
Note 2 to the basic financial statements, except that the adjusted financial statements
include the effects of the inflation on the financial information. Therefore, they have a
different presentation under accounting standards provided by the Venezuelan
Superintendence of Banks and Other Financial Institutions for histerical financial statements
presented as basic information.

NOTE 2.- BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The financial statements adjusted for the effects of inflation have been prepared on the basis
of the Bank's historical accounting records and have been stated in constant bolivars at
December 31, 2007, based upon the general price-level method in order to reflect the
purchasing power of the currency at the last year-end.

The purpose of the adjustment for inflation is to restate the accounting records from
historical bolivars to constant currency of similar purchasing power, which eliminates the
distortion produced by the inflation in the financial statements as a result of the inclusion of
bolivars of different purchasing power. The resulting amounts do not purport to represent the
fair market values, the replacement costs or any other measure of the current values of the

Bank's assets or prices at which the transactions would be commonly made.

The financial statements of the prior six-month period (June 2007) have been restated in
currency of the last year-end and their amounts differ from the amounts originally presented
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in currency of the corresponding six-month period. As a result, the amounts of both financial
statements are comparable between them, and are also comparable to the amounts of the
prior six-month period, since they are all expressed in currency of similar purchasing power.

The Bank adopted the general price-level method to restate its historical accounting records.
This method consists of restating the accounting records through the application of the
general consumer price index (CPI) for the metropolitan area of Caracas, which is monthly
published by BCV, and estimates the constant prices of the economy. The indexes used for
restating, with 1997 as the base year, were as follows:

31-12-07 30-06-07
Year-end 752.90 662.52
Average index 694.77 637.45

The accumulated inflation rates for the six-month periods ended December 31 and June 30,
2007, were 13.64% and 7.76%, respectively.

A summary of the procedures applied to restate the financial statements for the effects of
inflation, in accordance with the general price-level method, is as follows:

a. Monetary assets and liabilities (cash and due from banks, investment securities, loan
portfolio, interests and commissions receivable, certain items of other assets, customers'
deposits, other borrowings, other financial intermediation obligations, interests and
commissions payable and accruals and other liabiiities) are presented with the same
amounts shown in the historical accounting records since they state the monetary value
of their components at the date of the balance sheet.

b. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities (investments in subsidiaries, affiliates and branches,
foreclosed assets, premises and equipment and certain items of other assets) are

adjusted by applying the CPI, in accordance with the date in which they originated.

c. Paid-in capital stock, retained earnings and other equity accounts are restated from the
date of contribution or origin, through the application of the CPI.
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d. The profit and loss accounts (statements of income) are restated based on the average
CPI for the year, except for costs and expenses related with nonmonetary assets that
were restated according to the adjusted values of the related assets.

As a result of the restatements made under the general price-level method, a monetary loss
arises, which is presented in the “Financial expenses” caption in the income for the period,
and represents the loss resulting from a monetary denominated asset position during an
inflationary period since a monetary liability can be paid with currency of lower purchasing
power while the monetary asset reduces its actual value.
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VEN EZ OL ANO ) | Unofficial chemen'ce Transtation

1T £ ~ ~ . . Bal e f March 31, 2008
DE CREDITO . anceas o " {In bolivares fuertes)

. Vlsuedumpdegédﬂo uéganwumasal ) C T ’ ——
- Iss aid-in Capitad : - . .
qu«am . www.venezolano.ppnz

0000247

Consolidaled

woia  "3e2% | Liabilities | Veozmla  Graches
Oporaions and Officas

Oparations. and Officos

Cash and Due from Banksy 1238007819 1339285301 Customers' Deposita ST AR A28 360006727
Cash 210,249,600 240,354,035 Deposits in Current Accounts 1814642477  1,895.405700
Banco Central de Venazusia 1,027,147025  1,027,147.825 Non-interest Baaring Current Accounts 1,085677.778  1,085677,778
Domestic Banks and Other Financial Insfitufions 0 U] tnterast Boaring Cument Accounts 728,964,699 809,727,922
Foreign Banks and Comespondents 5,076,667 8,109,405 Other Demand Obiigations 1,111,273505  1,111,400428
Wain Office and Branches 0 L} Money Transaction Table Obligations 0 0
Clazing House Funds 95,520,818 0507693 Savhgs Peposits 487,183,345 457,193,345
{Allowances for Cash and Due from Banks} Q 0 Depasits 4,889,758 5,417,924
invastments Securilies 853623427 1000444955 s«anteslémdhyhnsank gToA 10015049
Placerments in Banco Centra de Venezusta and Restricted Cuslomar's Depasits 970, ,150,
Intarbanking Transactions 700,351,762 700,245,850 Rights and Participatons on Securities 60,498,831 50,498,811
Trading 30;‘*5:;9 2 662 ng Obllgstions with Banco Central de Venezuela ' 0
Available Securiies 153,271, 153,11,
Held to maturty Secur 0 14T 04T 567 ﬁ:m and Obﬂgdlons with Banco Naclonal de 0 0
Rastricted Cash Investment 0 10,839,845
Other Securities 0 o Qther Bomowings 61,116,581 61,118,581
{Affowanca lor invastment Securfies) ] [} Oblig. with Domestic Financ. instit. Due in One Year or Less 32,341,572 32341572
Lozn Portlelio LTABATOR34, 1743470934 Obkq. with Domesic Financ. Insit. O Qvar One Yazx 9 9
Current Loans 1758732601 1758732691 Qblig. with Foreign Financ. Insti. Due in One Year or Lets 27,760,715 27,760,775
My YTy Oblig. with Foneign Financ, instl Oue ver One Year 0 0
Restruchred Loans 2,403,342 2400342 Obiig, R
Past<dus Loans 8000057 £001.064 ig. Resuing from Other Botrowlngs Dua in One Year or Less 0 o
Loans in Lisgation "237:20‘ 4I237I.204 Oblig. Resuling trom Ciher Borrowings Due Over One Year 1,014,234 1,014,234
(mwam for Loan Pcmolo] (23 asr.zso) (23,857,367 ncl lon Obiigations 11.140.877 1L 140677
:) 0640 [nterest #nd Commissions Payable 1662127 1.663.315
Aoauod Inhresl mmnmcmm Dus from Backs 1346 1,348 Aocrued Expensos for Customer’s its 1,812,149 1,613,307
Accrued Inferest Recstvabio from Investments Securitas 9,801,751 10,205,075 Accrued Expenses for Obligations with Banco Geatral de Venezuela 0 0
Accued Intorest Rocsivable rom Loan Portiokio 26,336,545 28,336,545 Pccrued Expenzas for Deposits and Oblgations with Banco
Comeissions Receivable 1,338,899 4,338,899 - Nacional de Aharro y Préstamo 0
Accrised Interest and Conmissions. Racaivable from 49,978 49674
Cther Accounts Raceivable )] 0 for Other Finarc. rtermediation Obligations 0 ]
{Allowance for Accrued infarest Receivable and Other) (241,755} (241,755) 0 0
Subsid lates and ches cuyed ] L]
Evvsstments In Subsidiaries and Affilatas 5,251,700 5,257,700 Acnmala_m_mmmhﬂlﬂrs 112318375 112,430,512
Imvestmants in Branches 18,037.211 0
(A for b & in Subsidixies. Afilaies and Subordinated Obligations '] [1]
Branches) {28,301} (28,301} Qbilgations Convertible into Capltal 9 0
Forecloved Agsets 514,967 14,967 Total Liabiitles 3723.698,184  3.876.417.872
Premises and Equipments 28,536,723 28538723 Opetationy 50519276 | S0519278
Other Assets 28,375 504 28842 158
Total Assets 4,058,138,860  4,210,570,548 Stockholders, Equity
‘ Memorandum Accoungs] Capital Stock 0208000 0084500
. * Paid-in Caplui 69,562,000 9,858,000
Adiustments to Stockhoiders’ Equity ]
Retained Earnings 113,807 968 113,507 968
ailzed Galn or on Avallatre fot Sale L)
{Treasvry lock} 0 ]
Total Stockholders” Equity 283,933,400 283,932,400
bilities and [} 8 .}
« NG PR YSPYEEES
Complementary-Information |
State, oe:inﬂﬂu e: 151,501,169
Public, N Transterred Investments
Municipal and  Other Entities
Typeof Carporate Central Central with Special Loans to Agricultural Sector 742817
Trust Individual Entiies Matiiia Administrations Regima Total
brvestment 1,553,706 10,891,832 0 0- 1] $2.445338
Guaranty 20,205,831 0 0 o] 20205831
Administration | 1,791,218 | 803,153,054 | 128828 78181 490,028 | 805,644,280
Mixad 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
Others [ 0 0 ] 0 Wortgeges in sccontance to the SpectalLawon |
T o T 1 " o mmmwmmmwm S b 2769414
otal 1,344,924 $40,250,31 28,628 8,161 193, 844,295,258 g A 3 S __3 7%
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) statement of Pubhshed Earnings for the Period from January 01, 2008 - March 31, 2008 | mwsasstans

Consolidated with
Venazuela Fordign Branches
Opesations ancd Offices

Elngncigl income — 126800723 127902907
Cash and Dus from Banks N 24,457
Investments Securities 20,197 825 29,671,654
Loan Partfolo 97,000,706 87,000,706
Other Accounts Racaivable 1,193,395 1,198,756
Investments in Subsidiaries, Affiatet and Branches Q [
Main Office and Branches 0 0
Other TAZ TA24
Financial Expenses 36115994 3621529
Cusiomens’ Daposit 25,318,375 35,417,678
Coligations with Banco Central da Venezusla [} i}
Oeposits erd Obligations with Banco Nacional de

Aharro y Préstamo 0 /]
Ochar Borrowings 763,775 783,717
Othar Financlal intermedizbon Obligations. 2100 2,100
Undartying Obégations q 0
Obiligations Convertible o Capital 0 0
Main Offics and Branches 0 0
Otter 3744 IL,T44
Groas Financiat Margin 90205729 91667099
Incorne lrom Racovery of Financiai Assets 95,620 65,820

ired Financial Assets 8

Uneaflectiile Loans and Olher Accounts Receivable 1,418,118 1,410,226
Aflowances ard Adjustments 0 0

Cﬂ'suidaed wih
Vonazwela Foraign Branches
. ar Operaions and Offices
Qthvar Opersting Incoms 24,888,595 23782627
Other Operating Expansas 3,558,901 3433405
Einancia) Intermediation Margin 110462925 110679314
Expenses 54895629 55036245
Personnal 27,861,976 21,888,839
General and Administrative 22026329 ..__22.160,687
Contitwtions Io Fondo de Garantia de Depdsitos y
Protaccin Bancaria 383711 1831.TH
Conributions to Superintendencia do Bancos y Oras
Instituciones Financieras 1,069,602 1,069,602
Gross Opeqating Margin 55567 20T - w ARBA2 4685
Income lrom Foreciosad Assets 559,811 559,811
* Income from o] 0
Miscelaneous Operating Income 4,192 916 4,194 441
Expensasror Foreclosad Assets 150,178 150,178
565 lor Depreciation, Amorbzation and Impaired
Msealamaus Assaly .73 273,103
Qpacating Exp 2830801 2.9074%4
Net Operating Margin STORSM2 _ ST065342
Extracrdinary Income 842273 842,273
Exracrdinay Expenses 488,339 330
income Taxes 6,800,000 6,900,000
MNet Income

Financial Ratios

2. Banking Solvency and Assats’
1, Stackholders' Equity Qualit';ﬂ v

4. Profltabliity 5. Liquidity

Alowante kr Ireesient

Gross Lasn Portiolia 102135

{Sckhokdey’
1.4 EqutysCpentore) 0 a4 21
Totl Azswtt .

G bz
plontadg et aaE3 22 Portoby

5100+ 063
Gross Loan Portiols
Ecqaty-Oparators)

Net come Curenl,
[1] 100 51
Average Agwet roos 523 Depasits ram e Pubic
WM » it Trnts

57 Negotmi pruents] 0y,
3 1002 1,95

x 400 = 37.82

42 Mot rcoma
Equity

_‘nw-GBlS

‘Management Board |

Alternate Directors

Gongzalo Para Aranguren

{On leave)

Aqustin Gabalgon

José Pio Hemandez

José Grasso Vecchio

German Garcla-Velutini
i Berfizhe

Lu“isall Berizht

S focias gj
; Germin Garcia-Velutini Anal. Mamnez Mena
Prasidont (E)

i

){a mﬁm’wz

Branches and Service Offices:

Caracas - Vanazolena de Cridito Maln Office: Urh. San Bernardine, Av. Mlamadz, Edit,
Venazoiano de Cridilo, P8, Tetr, 806.6111. Ofichna Cantro: Sur 2 N* 7, maSm Francisca.
s.mm:o-to«um.sﬁmwzs.cm La California Av, Francizco da Miranda, €.
Residencial La Cafformia, ESL N* 9. La Trinidad Centro Comercial %Tﬂﬂaﬂn

Comerdal Ay, Itorcomunal Guanenss - v, Urdanets
Plaza Espafia. Av, Vicloda Edif. Madllaﬂénao Flanla Baia Ln Florida Av, Andrés Bello
Residoncias Lido, Plonta Bja. Los Patos Grandes Av. Andros Baio, con 4* Transversdl, A
CIC Av. Las Palmas, Local 3, Canl.rn Guvencial Los Andes. Cumbres Ds
Curume Ceniro Curibres d8 Curumo, PB. EIRouIAv Feancisco. de Mzanda, Av.
Tamanaco con C. kiohedano, Caniro Sequros Sud Amvrica, PB5.M. La Castellana Edf. Centro
Latonia, Tore ING fronda Av. EmanMenuozaySmFﬁbe anmmwm
Los Alios. EPA San Martin Av, San Martin, Urb. Industrial San Martin. Las
Rt e B S
Hacaracuyy Centrt Comendal Macaratusay Plaza, nivel C-2, Exestsior Gama P Sarta
Catitro Expreso Contro Comermia Express, Chacaits,

&a‘?&WnMMrmC&lHanmemhdeﬂfWhathi&
0, P.B., Circuty 1 N* 2, Z Comerclat

mm

arqgssmb Edo.
M"“,;LL“ eliclas Urb. Baso Aragua, Av. Geal, Pgaz con 2* Tranvs, La Victoria Centro
Marichal enire Av. La Vicloria y Av, E! Pqu o, La Victoria, EPA Turmero Av,
ntercomunal de Turmero, Edo. Aragua. Hotel del Ligo Ar. agro, Maracabo. Pusrto La
Cruz Las Glru: Tarru BVC entre Intarcomenal A Bdloyk Vospuuo km mﬁda Av,
Gmtarmu Av. Inlarcomunal

g Fioﬁn. EPA La Gnnh(lC.Ll
nﬂn Bzhss. Lz Cruz PozuclmAv Nuova
Em Secior Las Vennaa Edo. Anzodilegui. Makra B Vi ia Carralera Panarnericana, Ede.

Makeo Valle de la PuculAv Rﬂm.inGdlegos. . Guirico. Makro Porlamar Av.
Francisco Faardo, viaa B Exgrm S&maszmnGw CC.
TMadeMMdaAvaelo.CC qiza,Urb Lasti:alewA::lgm
Vencedores do Araure, Edo. Poruguesa. Makro M. Rotaria con Ay, Canipano.

I Company Branches: Prucbr!.Gm‘Ha.SuokarruProdu& B:g,n:irahpcm&
Gambile, Gﬁsﬁra Hewlatt Packard, Lo Palos Grandes. Sha!QuIrriu. Rosal, Alimentos
Kdnmguamm&mmm Tdod. Pamita, Carscas

Sincor Josa, Anzodegul. B Univessal, Caracas. Sohngon Johnson, (‘am'&im Caracas.
Vericermos, Lira. Sincor, Pariagun. Bigott, L.os Dos Caminos. aaz:w Rosal. andal. La
Yeguara. BecoBlohm, Val Loqnuomm dl, Vaenda.

Abrozd: Geand Layman Edzabathan Suare, Phass Thres North Wing, Ground oo, PO, Bax 454,
Grand Caymen, Cayman Kands BWIL
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ssued and Paid-in Capital

VENEZOLANO

DE CREDITO

Batm Universat

Unofficial Convenience Translation

-Balance as of April 30, 2008"

{In Bolivars)

www.venezolano.com

Reserves 214,631,566 . e
RIF: 3:000028705 e T
Consofidated Consolidaled
o - s with Forelgn - - N wilh Foreign
i y.% } Venozusta Branches Liabilities J Vonezueia Branches
_Asse‘ls Operations and Offices t : Operafons nd Officess
Cash 20d Dys from Banks 126214071 §.020047.023 Cugtomers’ Deposits 2008 87R 307 | 3 145007258
Cash 110,817 364 110,718,759 Depesits in Corent Accounts 18156851,820 1,698431,124
Banco Central de Venazuela 768, 262,193 768,262,193 Non-intarest Bearing Current Accounts 997,048,492 492
DomesSc Sanks and Other Financial tnstituions 44,555 interest Bearing Current Accounts 817,705,128 7&]484612
Foreign Banks and Carespondents 5 978.227 8,709,723 Cther Daenand Cbitgatons 757300848 757,337,858
Main Offics and Branches 0 0 Money Transaction Tabls Qbligations 0 0
Claaring House Funds 142,311,732 143311,758 Savings Deposits 483,251,725 A3251,7%5
{ABowancss for Cash and Due trom Banks) 1] 0 Time Deposits 5,009,758 5,521,495
= Rope Jarme Restrmd.“ Ic: e Depos 52051 nrg 125,850, 51?
Placements in Banco Central de Venezuala and ustomer's Deposils ! 830,
Interbanking Transactions 515,853,800 §22,882 581 Rights and Participations on Secirities 84,704 545 64,704,545
Trading Sg:mes s4TeBls 55 70 Qbligations with Banco Central de Venezuela L] 9
Available for Sale Securities AT4 314,776
Hddmmgw Socuribes g 163612249 W 0 0
Rastricted Cash nvestment 10,062,448
Other Sectrities 0 % 0 Other Borrgwings : SOILTH0 51033672
A for | Securities) 0 ] Oblig. with Domastic Financ. lnstit Due in One Year o Less 20,057,764 20,057,754
Loan Portiglio 1840330076 1.840.330076 Oblig. with Domastic Financ. inst Do Ovar One Year [ [
1845400708 1.845.490.706 Obilg. with Forsign Financ. Instit. Dus in One Yaar of Less 29,310,086 30,025,043
Current Loans e Aol Oblig. with Foraign Financ. Instit Due Over One Year 0 [H]
Resyuchired Loms égﬂ;g e Qbiig. Resuting frorn Other Girrowings Due in Ona Yoas or Less 0 0
in Liigation 551,804 4551634 Gblig. Resuting from Other Bomowings e Over Ore Year 049,0% 949,930
{Allowanca for Loan Pertiolc) (24 7800200 (24,790.011) I I | s
Interest and Commissfops Recetvable 32183055  32.547.607 Interest and Commissony Pavatie 1700897 1711623
Accrued Intersst Raceivable from Cash and Due from Banks a 83 Accruad Expenses for Customer's Deposits 1,690,562 1,692.290
Accrued Intarest Raceivable from Investments Securities 6,024,187 6,400,719 Accrued Expenses for Dbligations with Barco Cectral ds Venezuslz 1] 1]
Accruad Inerest Raceivable from Loan Portiolio 24,603,430 24,603,430 Acerued Expensas for sits and Obligations with Banco
Commissions Raceivable 1,751,827 1,751.427 Nacional ds Vivienda y Hi ¢ o
Accrued inberest and Commissions Receivable from Acarued Expensas for Other Bomowings 19,330 19,330
Oftvar Acoounts Racetvable ¢ ] Actrued Expenses for Other Financ. Intarmediation Cbgations 1] 1]
{Atiowance for Acnoed Intarast Raceivable and Other) {217,000 [217,000% Acauod E;ponu;fu cmgm COther <} [}
Investm Subsidlaries, Hates and Branches 1 g atior 1] 1}
investments in Subsidiaries and Alates 5,250,092 5,258,062 Aﬂ:mlunﬂ_mbﬂ_mﬂmin 104,018,865 104,150,139
tvastments in Branches i 25.83‘.646 1] § !hl'ﬂl'll(ed Db“ﬂl_‘m! ] 1]
{Aflowance for [nvestiments In Subsidiaries, Afilates and
Branches) {28,301} (28,301} Qbfigstions Otires 1] 9
Foreclosed Assets 584,181 504,161 Total Lisbilties 21975005 INT05310
Premises and E ents 28,915,004 20.916,004 Qoerstiony 85051307 8505107
Othet Assels 26,945 026 27189437
509,546,
Total Avsets 3, 6,288  3.666,616.263 stockholdersl Equ!ty
| ‘Memorandum Accounts J Capita Stock PO55000  £0.885.000
- Fraans - Paid-n Capltal 69,888,000 69,583,000
Contingent Debit Accounts 200675304 209.805.316 Obligations Convertible Into Shares ] 9
TrustAssety T eALAS0NN9 me1esAIN UncapHalized Equity Contributions 21.385.000 21,385 896
1]

Public,Stats, _ Entitles and

Tranxferred Investment
Municlpal and  Other Entties L 1412945
Typa ot Copere  Centnd Canlral  with Speciai Loansto | Sector 13040747
Trust Indviduply Entities Adokistaf  Administrations Reglme Total o o :
mvestment | 1,518330 | 10,508,700 0 0 0| 1znso4
Guaranty o] 28225308 0 0 0 275,368
Adawcistabion | 1771474 | 801,694 m 124761 75671 a5 | 804,142,700
Mixad 0 0 0 [ 0
Others 0 o o 0 0 0

Total 3289813  B40.516942 124764 38N 15832 sMeL119
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|_Statement of Published Earnings for the Period from January 04, 2008 - April 30, 2008} mesear

Consolidated wih
Venazuela Foreigh Branches
Cperations and Offices

170.180.273 172,053,406
728 32,480
35,153,100 36,992,119
1,472,119 133472119
1,542,902 1,543,264
¢ Q

0 9
T424 7424
ATMATEl  aOTITN
YL TR
0 o

"o
¢

0
45051 45,051
1205512 124,075,105

85,620 85820

1,740,859 1,740,950
4] 0

{Consolidaled with

Venezuela  Foreign Branches
Operations
Net Financigl Marain 120
Cther Operating incoms 41,643,694 30,783,818
Other Operating Expenses 5,365,540 _ 5,493,352
Eltencial intermediation Margin 156918427 147700241
Lezs-Operating Expenses 73057783 73321812
Personnal 36,891,896 3690192
Getieral and Adriinistrative 49438 THIAN
%Mﬂ B:c:"iram o Garanta de Dapdsitosy 5,250,295 5,250,205
Confributions ko Superiniendencia de Bancos y Ofras
Insuciones Fnancieras 1,426,130 .o o425138
83,850,664 378429

072,909 078,999

Q Q
5,081,888 14,601,835
%6827 26,627

L

Expecisas for For:
Expansas for anuatnm Amortization and impaired
Mscakaneous Assets 366,833 366,633
9470718 9,568 630
TABSTAT3 10551373
227 221
54839 548.3%

15,100,000 15,100,000
85081307 65051307

Fihancial Ratios

B ind As ¥
1. Stockholders’ Equity z Qu!l.lh{t;n Sotvancy 2 e 3, Mansgement

4. Profitability

Alowance ki Ivesinet

[Socikds’
1.12&%,.«;.9_95 21 Securdey Y100 % 1,33 HM.EE!'_’J_.M. Pr R L I L. B

Orews |,in Portiolo WYMM

Gross Immatized

Awrage Asset

jpNmVammghngy gy Portiy 100 092 uME'E“._‘.EL..m.ng iy __Mekeom 601

Grosy Loan Portioli Fruancial incomw:
Equity+Oparaions)

Averae Stockholder’s
Equty

‘Management Board |

Alternate Directors Principal Commissaires

Gonzalo Para Aranguren  Aura Elena Aghero
{On leave} Hermann Jost

Agustin Gabaldon Alternate Commissaires

José Plo Hemandez Maiguafida Cisnercs
José Grasso Vecchio Adviana Rojo
Germén Garcla-Velsini

Joaquin Urbano Berrizbedtia

Luisa Urbano Berrizbeitia

m/m/%/

Ga:d: Mandnza

) did Mt
}é: Susma,Rnc(imnz
Controtier

Branches and Service Offices:

. Gardl a Siva,
. San Bemardina Av. Volimer,
Boulsvard do Sabana Grande. Lu mw« Edif. BVC, Cdle Loadres. Mom Grande Av,

Av. Rbmudo G

Planta Baja. Los Palos con 4* Trangvercal,
Ronedo Gallegas, C/C Av, LnsPa!rm Local 3, Coniro Gerancial Loz Andes, Cumbres De
Curumo Cantro Gomercial Cumbres de Curumo, P.B. EI Ronal Av. Francisoo, de Miranda, Ay,
Tamanaco con C. Mohedano, Centro PB.

- Guatre. A & Punceres y
Plaza Espafia. Av \nmm Edif. Macﬂlurrinuo, Plania Ba]m u Florida Av. Andrbs Beilo
Aw. Andrés Belto, Bolalta Ay,

G.ta'ga Maturin Av. Belivar con Calle 4, N* 30 Maracalbo Zona industrial Edi. Wilca |, N* 115
B CIreunvdaelen N* 2. Valancla Zopa Industrial Av. Henry Ford, Centro Comercial
mmmu Bmﬁmm L “Mlnsl.enms cm‘"“"”‘
to % Leones, oon
Policltnica Bsgﬂ‘mk!&h wu%'&.ﬂmwwnmuammam
Maracay liclas Urb. Base Aragua, Av. Gral. Paez con 2* Tranve. La Victorfa Centro
Comercial Cludad Morichal entrs Av. La Vicloria y Av. E] Peaje, La Victoria. EPA Turmero Av.
NmnmddnTumEdonHnmdd M , Maracalb. Puerto La
Cruz Las Garzas Torme BVC enire lnwcomunal A

Venecia, Edo. Anzoslogui. Ma
de la Pascua Av, Romulo Gall

: Procier & Gambée, Sorokaima Procter & Gamble,
Gamble, Guatire, Hawlett Packard, Ldeostmdes.SMlOtdrrlu,
Kdoms.mABE LnsRc.ms Tdud.CemP:md:.

Vmﬂm.l.rm&:w Paﬁaguén BmaﬁsDosC ookl A &?ma.u
Aminos.
faguara. BocoBlohm, Valencia, Leapoldo Aquarravers, Caracas mmﬁo Turbio,

Abropd: Grand Blzabethan Square, Phase Thioe Norh Groawrd Roor, P.0. Bax
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VENEZOLANO

"DE CREDITO

engzolano de Cridin, sa, Banco Unwersat

. Unofficial Convemence Translation

“Balance as of May 31, 2008
(In Bolivars)

lssued and Paid-in Capital $3.888
Rasaves 214 18,847 www.venezolano.com
RIF: J-000029709 e
F‘ = wih F e e P
S 1 co “ﬁawm . with Foreign
Asse Venazuela Branches ab Vonezuela Branchas
. __,.,a_.m!.:sﬂ._j Operations and Offices ard _E.i.._ . .I,“ties Opeeations ad Offices
Cash and Due from Binks 940904 928950670 Cuzsomers’ Deposils 2843282665 3002671016
Cash 122,845,407 122,948,832 Depostis in Cument Accounts 1836099026 1,715,592.320
Banco Central de Venezuela. 674,335,382 674,338,382 Non-interest Bearing Curreni Accounts 475,722,255 475,722,255
Domestic Banks and Other Financial instinions 0 180 Interest Baaring Current Accounts £50,377.671 730,870,065
Foreign Banks and Correspondents 6,624.575 B.040,115 Qther Demand Obligations 612,289,806 $12, 343,510
Main Office and Beanches 0 0 Monay Transacton Table Obligatons 0 1]
Claang Housa Funds 123,631,360 123,831,380 Savings Deposits 474,785,870 474,785,870
{Allowancas for Cash and Due from Banks) 4} 0 Time Deposits 1,858,758 3048434
Investmants Securities 438,036,399 581676310 gqcu:ﬁe: Icssuod by mansank 0318 04.g 7 91 222
Placements in Banco Central dé Venezuela and msifictad Customer's Daposits 318 127,991,
Iiecbanking Transactions 492 374 490 495,979,268 Rights and Paripatons on Secirres 53,910,259 68,910,259
Trading SO;I;:B: sea mg . 70103% 1 Banco Cents Venezuela 0 s}
Avadable Securtties 661, ) iqati
Hedd ko maturty § f 168111467 ng_ ity lndj ghdlgauum with Banca Nacional de . 0
Restricted Cash Investment 0 10,831,537 Vivienda y Habitat
Other Secuns. 0 0 Qther Borrowings 870600 54870800
{Aflowance ki Investment Securities) 0 0 Oblig. with Domestec Financ. Insbl Due in One Year of Less 26,273,973 26273073
Loan Portfnlio 1.544,893 511 1.844,693,511 Oblig with Domeatic Fwan. Insbl Dus Qver One Year 0 0
Custor Loans 1852351702 1852381732 Oblig. wih Forein Financ. Instl Duain On Vearorless  27.646708 27,646,706
Rastructured Loans 2314398 24306 Qblig. with Foreign Financ. Instd. Dus Over One Year 0 Q
Past-dus Loans “ 05T 830 11,057 839 Oblig. Resulting from Other Borrewings Due in One Yaar or Lass o 0
Loans in Litigation 424N 4292479 Oblyg. Resuiting §rom Other wmmﬂ One Yex 643,930 94390
{Allowancs kr Loan Portfolia) (25,122,935) (25,122,935 ancig Int: i ns A
Intetest and Commisslony Recetvable, 20091560 29460631 |nferest and Comm) Sshn; Payable 1870475 1,871,689
Accrued Intarast Reeewable Irnrn Caﬂ\ and Due m Banks 4,222 4222 Accrusd Expanses for Customer's Deposits 1842733 1,843,947
Agerued Interast Ra 254330 2,021,430 Acerwed Expenses for Dbiigations with Banco Cental de Venszusla 1} Q
Acorued intars st Receivable lrum Loan Portfoka 24,555,285 24,505,285 Accrued Expensas for Deposits and Oblgations with Banco
Commissions Recaivably 2,181,214 2181214 Nacional de Vivienda y Habitat 0 0
Accrued Interest and Commissions Receivable irom Accrued Expensas for Other Borowings 21,742 27,142
QOmer Accounts Racaivable . 0 0 Acerusd Expanses tor QOthar Financ ntermadiation Obigatnes 0 Q
{Afiowance lor Actrued knterest Racaivable and Other) {202,550) (202,550} Accrued apgms o Oblgm CXhar [} [
Investments jn Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Branch, 1,333 14 eued X xif iox (] 1}
tnvestments in Subsidiaries and Affiiatss 5,260,515 5,280,515 A&Qﬂﬂlﬁ_lnd_mh&d.hhlmbi 110,544,153 110.785.725
lrvestments in Branches 26,101,652 4
N Ty ' '
{Alowance for Investments in Subsidiaries, Affiztes and Subdrdinated Obligations 0 2
Branches) {28,301) {28,301) atjons Other 0 2
Foteciosed Assety 653,395 553,395 Iotal Latilities 2024042754 3,182,694,451
Premises #nd Equipments 1,542,678 31,542 678 Operations 19727 314 TRI2Z314
Other Assety 25,585,602 25,803,963 e e » e
Total Assets 3,388,476, 548,128,612 oo
BATENS 334 ~ Stockholders’ Equlty ;
B P ke B nt
! Memorandum Accounts | ok 69808000 69838000
b - Paid-in Caphtat 69,583,000 9,868,000
Coningent Debit Accounts _ XTTISN _ NIMG7ST2 bligat vertibla info Shy - J
Trusi Agsets 8590776% __ BE3.077.5% llzed Equf
Other Trusts )] [ Capftal Reverves 71804729 71894729
Debit Accounts for Other Trust Charges (Houslng. dlustments to Stockhoidery. £qu 0 0
Trust fin Regime de Vivienda ¥ Hibitat) [ 9 Retained Eemings 12507068 113807008
Qther Debit Accoynts of the Residential Housing Gai waltable for Sale Secur
SavingsPlan_ 0 9 0 ]
Qthet Debit Memorandum Accounts 5075080275, . 5078118878 Total Stockholders' Equity 284,705,047 284,706,947
0 L] IotalLlabilitles and Stockholders'Equity 3388476915  3,548,128.811
| Trust Assets _eﬁ {otay COmplementary Information -
[ : FCr . EA sy vt ieiiuiiehythl st |
Descentrallzed

Public,State, Entities and

" Transterred Inve siments 143,009.741
Municipal and  Other Entities

Type of Corporate  Central l%ﬂtntrll with Special Loan to Agricuitural Secter 2.203648
Trust Indtvidusls Entities Admibkinia Adminfsirations Regime Total
Inverstnenst 1514917 9480211 0 0 0| 11,004,128
Guaranly 0§ 2270712 0 0 o] ermeari2
Administation | 1,771,775 { 805485458 | 124761 75671 475,918 | 807.913,584
Mrxad [ 0 0 0 0 0
Omexcs [ 0 0 0 0 0

Prot 10 the Mortpage Cred] 633,391

Tolal 3285692 BRI 171 15671 ATSI M5 TN ection 1o he Lreditor DERBL

Return on Assets, 10.27%




e e i —

% _Statement of Published Eammgs for the Period from January 01, 2008 - May 34, 2008 "1 Bobvrs)

Consolidated with
Venezuela  Foreign Branches
Opecations and Offices
215904348 18 234047
430
41,231,224
172,847 908
1,843,472
D

vable
Investments in Subsidiaries, Affiliatas and Branches
Main Offica and Branches 0
Other 7424
59,832,431
58,854,097
1]

Financial Expenyes
Customers’ Deposit
Obligatons with Bance Central de Venezuela
Deposits and Obligations with Banca Nacional de
Vivienda y Habitat
Othar Bomowings
Other Financial Intermediation Qblgations
Oblig

Q
0

0
64,719 51,719
196.131.917 158,272,498
Incomme rom Recovery of Financial Assets 65619 85819
£ collectible an Finangtal 9,424 424
tincollectble Loans and Other Accounls Receivable 2,059,424 2050424
Allowances and Adjustments 0 ]

LCorseidaiad with
Venazuela Foeoign Branches
Oparatioas and Officas

et Financial Margln
Omer Operalm lncome 48,852.19 37,583,214
Experms 7,947,533 1137299
E' N 95,262 858 5
Less.Cperating Expenses 92,229730 £2.561,303
Personnel 46,400,379 45,440,581
General and Administratve 37483812 77752713
Contribwtons 1o Fondo de Garantia da Oepdsitos y v
Proteccion Bancaria 6,562,869 6,562,869
Contibutions to Superintandencia de Bancos y Otras
1,702,670 1,782 670
102,032,863 93,572,255

Instrtuciones Financieras
2,909,028 2909928
0

erating Margin
trcome from Foreckosed Assms 2

7,844,508 17424725
257412 257492

Income from Special Programs
Miscellanesus Operating Income
Expensas lor Foreclosad Assets
Expensas for Deprecizbon, Amortization and Impaired o
0
9,001,258 10,021,592
1036
842,273 842,273
43,783 643,783

Extraordinary Expenses
.

Incoma Taxes

MetIncoms

24,100,000
72721014

24,100,000
19721314

i
1

Financial Ratios |

R
2. Blnkinn Solvency and Assaty'
Quality

4. Stockholders’ Equity 3. Management

& Profitability 5. Liquidity

Alipuanca kx nvesiymanl
Securbes

[Swchhokie s’
1o Epplenon), w076 21 100 134
Total Axvets

Grons Lown Portioky
Griss renohikzad

uM}E. 0= 26245 22 Portoin

Gioss Lom Poila 1002 0.82
Equty«Dperatons)

Peracone Expensed +
u _Operstg Epenset) oy, a
wage Vi A X 85

37 _OpeawgEgeaws) 0. 2084

Francl Iorme

Currend Asyaty
Dreposcts ¥om the Publit
(Current Assaty « invesITeets i
izMHN = 5094

Customer's Depoxts

Hat ncome

0= 5. 51
reovorrerb b

¢ 100 = 3262

42 Net \ncorme

100« 6294
Stockholder’
WEM 1

Management Board |

President
Cscar Garcla Mendoza
Principal Directors

Altemnate Directors
Gonzaky Parma Aranguren
{On leave)

Agustin Gabaldon

José Pio Hemandez

José Grasso Vecchio
Germén Garcia-Velini
Joaquin Urbano Berizbelta
Luisa Urbiano Berrizbertia

Aura Elena Agoero
Hermana Jost
Maigualida Cisneros
Adriana Rog

Principal Commissaires

Alternate Commissaires

winidhh=  ( kit

Garcta Mundoza Ana |, Martinez Mena
Prasideat Sacretary

7
Vicenis A. Alvis Salas

Conlrolies Acoountant

An
yﬁa Susana, Mauoz

Branches and Service Offices:

Caracas - Venezotano de Cridite Maia Office: Urb. San Bernardino, Av. Alameda, Edil.
Venezolano e Crédilo, P B. Tef. B06.5411, Offiina Centro: Sur 2, N° 7, Mor{zs 8 San Francisco
Sucursales: Dol Qeste Av. Espacta, N* 26, Caliz. La Callfornia Av. Frannscn de Miranda, C.
Residencia La California, Edif. N* 9. La Trinldad Centre Comerdia Av. La Trinidad con

. Ballo Monta Res. Esquina Calles Las Clandas y Edrson. Chacao Edif.
EXA Av. Libartador, E) Paralsa Contrd Plaza Paer San Luis Centro Comercial San Luis. La

Av. Gared Gorzdlez Da Siva, oo Calle B Muta De Coco Centro Comencid Mata

de . San Bernardine Av. Voimer, Edi. C A La Elsctrioidad de Caracss. Galerias Bolivar
Bavlevard do Sabana Geands, Las Mercedes E4if, BVC, Calle Londres, Mens Granda Av.
Francison de Miranda, Edil, Mana Giands. Sebucan Ay, Rémula G Edif. Las Amédcas,
Locades AB y C. La Lagunita Av. Sur, Zona B. A, Libsrtador Ceniro cid Av. Lberiador,
antre C. Negrin y Av. Libertadot, Nivel #2, Prados Dl Ests Av. Paseg, Centro Comercial El
Morichal. La Estancia Av. La Estandla, Edil. Tora Diamen, Chuad. Leos Ruices Av, Ppal. de los
Rukes ouee con 1¢ Transy,, Edl. Prindipal La Urbina Catla 10, Edi. Anauco. Guarenas Contro
Comercial Buenaventsra, Av. infercormunal ~ Gustire. Urd. antre Punceras y
Plaza Espafia, Av. vmm Edif, Medularlétm Planta Baja. La FIorIﬁa Av, Andrés Ball,
Rasidenclas Panla Los Palos M. Andrés Bello, oon 4* Transverss. Boleita Av.

Lido,
RbmJuGalngus,QC Av.Las Piimas. LocdlkaoGa(mcidLosNﬂes Cumbres Dy
CermComualmemdeCuurrn F.B. El Rosal Av. Frantisco. de Miranda, Av.
ano, Contro Sepuros Sud América, P.B.-M. La Castellana Edil. Centro
Letonia, TmlNGBa:t,hmteAv Eugenio Mendaza y San Fek 4 Centro

, La
Médico Dooenta Los Allos. EPA San Martin Av, San Martin, Urb. Industrial San Martin. Las
Esmaraldas C.C. Trinalta, Av. La Trinidad, B Halilo. EPA Los mandleAZomimuidLos
Ruices. LmNaranios.lw BPaji,CC. GdenasLnsNam nivel Plaza, Urb. Lo Naranjos.
Cov Eeptoas Cat Comara oo oy 2 Excdelor Gand s Sta Exegs

Tamanacn 000

T Valencla Av. Bolivar, £dd. 109-18 Barquisimeto Carrera 19, ene 14 y 15. Agencla San
Mbac«mommaammnmmmm bo Av. Bella Visia con Cale
76. Puerto Ordaz, Calle Guri cruce con Calls Cuchivero. Cludad Ofeda Caeretaca N con Ay,

fronte al Centro Medico Lagunitas. E1 Tigne Av, Entsrcomunal B Tigrs, San Josa do

Guaripa. Maturin Av. Bolivar con Calle 4, N* 20 Maracaibo Zona Industrial Edif, Wilera |, N* 115
130, P.8., Circurvalacién N* 2. Valenciz Zona Industrial Av. Henry Ford, Centre Comercial
Bmluva\sm.rstrlalewd Anaco Seclor Noraste dal P Anzoo, entre Av. Lara y Av.
Joea Antonio Anzodtegul Barquisimeto {Los Leones) Av. Los Leones con C. Madrid, dentro de ka
Polidinica Barquisimolo, Edo. Lara. Vilencla £l Vifiedo Boulevard Los Naranjos, Urb. B Whedo.
Maracay Las Deliclas Urb. Base Aragua, Av. Gral, Pasz con 2' Tranvs. La Victoria Cento
Comeraa Ciadad Marichal entre Av. La Vicioria y Av. El Peaje, La Viclord EPA Turmarno Av.
Intercomund do Tumers, Edo. Aragua Puerts La Crx Las Garzas Torre BVC enire intercomunat
A Bello y A Vespucio Makro Mérida Av. Centanaric, Mévida. Makro Charaltave Av, inercomunal
do Charallave, SecuPasted.PumoFi}oEdd Seda Telcal, Av. Pumarosa con Calle Jocd L
Chirinos, Edo. Faion. Makre E1 Tigre Av. intercomunal B Tigra £ Tigrita, B Tigre, Edo.

Makro Paraguand Cametora Los Taques, sector EJ Taparo, Municipio Los Taques, Punic Fig, Edo.
Falcdn. EPA La Granja C.C. La Granga, Av Universidad, Valencia. Porlamar C.C, Ratlan Plaza,
Pampatar, Edo. Nueva Esparta. MahoVﬂoannptslanua.Edu Trufllo. Makro Barinas Edo.
Barinas. Puarto La Cruz Pozusios Av, N\En;: Ecparta, Sector Las Venecia, Edo. Anzodlagui

Cagua C. Sabana Larga con C. Cagigal, C.C. Trinidad Plaza. Mérida Av. Andres Balla, C.C.
Europlaza, Ush. Las Delicas. Makro Acarigua Av. Vencedores de Araure, Edo. Makro
Cumana Av. Rolaria con Av, Canlpano.

B Company Branches: Prockr & Gamble, Sorokaima Procier & Gambia, Barquisimeto. Procter &
Gamble, Guatire. Hewlsil Packard, Los Palot Grandes. Shell Quimica, E1 Rosal, Alimenios
Kelogg 5. Maracay. ABB.LosRuoes Teicel, Caracas. Pamatal, Caracas. Vencemos, Maracaibo.
Sincor Joge, Anzodtegui. El Universal, Cuams Johrsons Joheson, Caracas. Sincer, Caracas.
Vencemos, Lara Sincor, Pariaguan. Rigott, Los Dos Caminos. Bayer, El Recal. BacoBlohm,
Valencia Laopoldo Aguarevars, Caracas, EPA Cantral, Valancia. Rio Turtio, Barquisireto,
Abroad: Geand Cayman Walker House, B7 Mary Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-0002
Cayman Islands.
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'] Y EN E ZOLANO o N Usoficial Convenlenze Transiaton :
DE CREDITO - Balance as of June 30,.2008
m L. Lo ) - (1n Bclwars)
Comn ™ ] , 891,27,
Bawce Comralte 410521 361 $10521,361 No-dekare 2 Bearing Curmwil Actouns 1GR90 10IAENE% IS} 1 IMER
Dwe nmuthu-duurnmm s4 ) 56 Indewet! Bearing, Coscerd Accounts S06.0%8, 134 691,112,360 Gmiim 752107010
O brmEoron ks Gt 1A [ WS weLe Qb et ko [ECe STOEL 208 [XHY-]
Fonghiortmakr vl T T 5088 e T o i (i sssman swsmet s urg S77.101.066
. [Adowances ky cu. ot Dt ko Banks) o T ' 0 Tme 459750 1E50455 17089545 [SLE T
. Seoutits SSIMLI TAPATAOS  FMAIN06 4 odan wm"'wmw""‘“ mH= mm‘; “m"’ mm“g
. Mok Tmacion . - S50 2507078 WAL O RXIM] Rty tnd Partrazions  ivesiment Secovis TSN nsan ALMEMY AT
Trading Invemes Socurtie I ] ] : ] [+ with Banca Cereral e Veneoutia (] ] [] []
Pucgllahle-for-Sale eriment Secustics. Lamon sy 102960635 0.1614) Deocalry 20¢ Otgytions with Banto Mackat de
estirent Shcwhes 1 LRSS [ o> bikan 0 » B »
Reakiibd Cith iverimerss + " 1 Lz . I
Other bvespiment Sty H . 8 + Qrhue. - BOSEXY  JTNOSEYY  ITSSAYM  IA4EI
{Aowsnce iar IPvesiments Sewlics] [] [] ] L] Oblg wrih omeric Fancial ncliion Mnlh\'ncl.s ELL ke 34,600,750 AT EN 1EZTEM
Culiplry v Dl Pl e Ovt ot Qe Yo [ ) ] wamed . n
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FETH nTAR2 Zn1 211062
Past Don Lang 10967304 ssr,m L1905 1905
[RLeyes 45945 193954y S 31549
TABwcaCH b L Portctey) 0T 1M i 225N 461 22820467
rterast 2od Coemens JL108269 b}
4 o Cazhe and G o B 1802 44T 424
[ Securibes 4,75758) 5170667 034 L101071
Acrreed iniesedl Pnoeivabie bors Lt Porgiol o] H.IS; 0 =]
crngnd Wi sed Camirrinss Recuieatie fom O Acaests Aerricbie ] 3 L]
m—nhwmm Ooer} RIME - BEES - -fiaax ~Ha X
n TET ""'"'_n-u R UV 1Y 7 M 11, WY 111
p I HI M £ 13 M 17 %7 1V 1Y
Dabtay Accourty for Otver Tt Chitvpes
Diswatng Toth s Recirms 84 reoga AT N N s N LT ¥ TR [ L L 10 L M & 5T
ll T T 175
Dascontrakond Eatiies
. P, aad Othor Entits
l Type of Tremt Indbvid sl Eatiier A i and Comtral Adkrd with Specinl Reyione Tosl
Ivesiment 153,087 yamas ) ] [ 1,044,482
Goaraty ] 42190041 ] ] ] 47,190,081
Admini sk umas lluuw 124 THTE 420,94 17832006
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Ei TALTETH CK.
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feczues Facuats ] Lo Gext mrhrcones o 213204 210070 Lz a2
ez Qg e Branches. L] L] 0 L] Gironn Oy peing Wargh
1AM TAM 5K pLat] Ixyvet broen Fosmcirad Assets FLFIETY) %ﬁ" 1005064 1005054
FranchlEpotss . M. ZISMIM. GRS s [rsioiody s i amisn s —_— oo
e e Cortr e Vemezueta [EE T s i Eapermer b Fomclysd Assets A it 04864 i
Degets ad Obigakcrs b s Rt de Vi 7 4 o . ] Expermt b Depreciznon, Amottaston and Ungaied R . 2o Jam
B et O ] ] e L Vacolaena Operating Expemer 419617 L3306 543040 5,54 666
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e e H H o 3 Extraonsinacy Excpences Hm nim 00 g
&
s il bt bl s wcoma fa HA00000 740000 1.50000 1300000
Incane From Recwery of Francad Aasets [{%] [ 1] D bettycarae ASTON 1WA MINSH KIS
recnec iy 1000 v REe $0].700 L1 (0
Uncolactie Lo, and Other Accmces Rcossvable Zisas00 218,72 TRLTH TE6175 L e i sam seanu 1nixn et
e L] " 9 B of Dvackrs L0900 109000 LITAAM (L]
Mgl A Oficen; and Employees ] ] ] [
Othes Ciptrating Incoes 55, 79904 Wl 49.0%,1%0 ¥ ¥ Ot Captal Reserves L] L] [] [}
Otiar Cipacatng Esparees L2 LS prree SS7AN ;
Aation Wargn Lzt Caniedy 218 4T [T BAL BAE BB
: T
HiEigancialiRatics
1. Slechhwhbiry’ Equly 2. Manking Selvency ad Asrets’ sty 1. Mamsgament 4 Protridutty 3 Loty
N TR 7o M b Lo Fube bt | g g 44 11 e bpuatas Cpuviey Egmmt | gy 2 § 1 PO By " NPT 3 Lot passe. 2 M
Tl Al Oramm Lo Parivle =3 Aart g b Dvponiy bam S Fubl
1y, Stedylew  wpin ) G mmatiesd oy, . 0 80 1.7 Qo Esat Oparaing Experasty vug 2 33085 [T L. WY 7Y 1Y) o 3 oAt Smerers & Mg velomr b, g » 4 4L
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4t Okl
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Abroadt: Geand Caymm Waber Houme, 17 Mary Siwet, Georpe Fown, Grard Cayman KY 14001, Capin idands.



VEN E Z OL ANO Unofficial Convenience Translation

: DE CR EDITO s .Ba‘lham.‘:e as of J;:lly 3.(';\ ;::vgrsa) .

[

BetumopAspelsy 10.49%

:‘*“ed“‘i"dp"%‘f{é‘éé%??’égﬂaema posal LR T -
'ssu and Paid-in Capita B . e ) " . o GE
" Rosees3IIAATE o, o R e o , e, WwwW, venezolano com s
*’RIFJ-00002§?09 : S B BT Peg b . g
Congohd: Congoldated
, T with Foraign LT ST with Foreign
v Venazudla Branchas . ' Vonarzuela Branchas
l Assets | Voonda Liabllities . dor I
Cash and Ous from Banks . D54435035 857688354 Customers’ Deposity 2900583741 3172132752
Cash 135,781,085 133,582,510 Deposits in Current Accounts 1745108538 1,334,001 810
Banco Central da Venezusla 687,629,211 487,820,211 Nonulnterest Baaring Gureni Accounts 1,106,678.205  1,106,678,205
Domestic Banks and Other Financial insitutions ] o interast Bearing Cument Accounts 632,428,313 727,383,405
Foreign Banks and Corespondants 532911 8,458818 Other Damand Cbiigations 550,796,920 551,017,142
g:‘om mdgtmd\es 125, asg 12550??52 Money Trm:acﬁm%able Obligations ¢ 6
ing House Fund 455, 507, Savings Deposts 577000128 577,000,128
{Allowances for Cash and Due from Banis) 0 0 Time Deposits 1,559,758 2,106,133
Investments Securitles 870,177,825 1052003 892 RSmn_' o5 lsstmc by the Bank 1708 FOg 10625 453
Placsmerds in Bance Central de Venezuela and asticted Customer's Depoats 47,798, el
intacbanking Transacions. 45,307,004 853,202718 Rights ahd Paricipations on Securites 71321888 77,321,685
:rm Secuim sios Q 55 0 QOblipations with Banco Central de Venezuela Q (1]
v ale Securties 5,538,521 , 578,849
Hold o rzury Secuites 10301400 174016642 Syosta an Colkstions wih Bance Naclonal de o o
ushctedCash Invastment g 18.305.583 Other Borrowings 77 590,058 77 590,058
(Ahwam for Investment Securities) [ 0 QOblig. with Domastic Financ. Inslit Dug in One Yaad or Lass 54,527,197 54 521 197
Lean Portfolle 1701.173.587  1.701.173.678 Oblig. with Domestic Financ. Instit. Oue Over One Year
Currant Loans 1692536043 1602536043 Oblig wiih Foreign Financ. insill Ous in Ore Yoar or Less 22142280 22,1620
Restructured | 7032308 YT Oblig. with Foreign Financ. instit. Oue Over One Year Q 0
Pastdus Laans 27 105,869 27 106,074 Oblig. Resulting from Othar Bomowings Due in One Yeal of Less o 0
'yag’ Oblig. Resulting from Other Somawings Cue Cver One Yaar 919,981 910,981
Loans in Litigation 4,738,648 4,736,648 U
{Afiowance for Loan Pertiafio} (25328,080)  {25.328,206) Othes Financlal Imermadlation Qbligations 17,585,003 17.585.083
{nterest and Commitslons Recelvable 31574060 31.985.20¢ loterest and Commisslons Payable 1.108.020 1,108,179
Accrued Intarest Recelvable rom Cash and Dus from Banks 5491 5401 Acorued Expensas for Customed's ks 1,081,057 1,082,607
Actrued nterest Recalvable koim Investments Securitias 1.203122 1813452 Acorued Elpenseskx Ohligations with Banco Central da Venszuela 1] 1]
Acaryed Intsrest Receivabls rom Loan Portole 24,210,350 24.240.390 Accrued Expensas for Deposits and Obligatons with Banco
Commissions Recelvabh 409,182 469,162 Nacional de Vivienda y Habitat 0 4]
Acarued intarest and Commissions Recelvable from Accruad Expenses lor Other Bomowings 25,583 25,563
Other Accounts Recenable A 0 0 Accrued Expanses lor Other Finane, Inlermediation Obbgations 0 0
{Allowanca for Acoryed Intarest Raceivabie and Gther) (313,305) (213,205) Accruad Expansas or Obigations Other 0 0
nvestment sidiaries, Affillates snd Branches 2 5234082 Acotued Expenses for, Subordinated Oblgations 0 LI
:nvesknanls: grubddlaﬂes and Affikates .';.282.383 5,282,383 Accrugls and Othet Liabliiiles 143640024 143826851
nvesiments anches 13013,154 0
{AIwaNS ko vesmats i Subsiiarie, Afits and Subordinated Obigations g ¢
) (28,301) {28,301) Obdigations Qiher 0 9
Forecigted 20812515 2812515 Total Lizt¥iitles 329506436 341224294
Premises and Equipments 31,322,507 31,372,507 Onerations 12622004 17622384
Other Assets 25,605,811 20,776,498
Total Assets 3639350238 320 | Qeackhiclders! Fauity
;- Stockliolders’ Equity
Capjtal Stock 69880000  0ORE8000
Paid-n Capital 69,388,000 0,888,000
Chbfiogtions Convertible Info Shates 1] ]
Capltel Reserves 6031843 70931842
- onts iders' Equity 1] Q
etal I 199.010.297 190.019.207
c] Ll Avaltableior Sals Secycltles 5900380 . 8090280
(Treasury Stock] 0 o
s . s2221416 362221416
l b ! 6
Descentralized
Public,Stats, Entitles and
Munlcipsl and  Other Entitles
Typa of Corporate Central Cantral with Special
Trust gy Eofitlen Mvbkizhn  Adinlstrations Reghme Total
ivectmers | 1817031 | 10307043 0 0 o esasn
Guaranty 0 27,450,402 1] L] Q 21450402
Administraion | 1820845 | 853821683 132,598 8411 485517 | 871,158,002 aTo > ord o g ¢
. 2 S 3 0 A 3 \om o sector in scoomlancy to the f
. Others 0 S0 o 0 0 [ Mortczoes In sccordance to the Speclal Lawon
: to
Tolal 5878 806440028 12516 80,411 G55 910,554,408 actlon 10 the Martgage Creditn S
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|_Statement of Published Eafriings for the Period-from Jul.01,°2008 - Jul 31,2008 | > | mesas

Consobidatad wih . Consolidaied wih
Venezuala Forugn Branches w  VgnaZuela Foraign Branchas
Operations and Offices " Operations and Offioss
Einanclyl income 47.210453 47,516,183 Net Einsnclal Margin 34950473 35245 548
Cash and Due fram Banks 1822 11,602 Ottt Oparating Incoms 7,044 297 7.513582
Invastments Securites 0,618273 9013733 Othvar Oparating Expensss 1,298,574 1,382,835
Loan Portiollc N 37,130,082 37,130,082 Einancial Intermediztion Margln 41302198 41376292
Other :::uvrs 'mm As0.4m8 80478 y3-Operating Expenses 19,831,010 19,884 119
e e s Bt : bo| o g2 e
General and Administrative T.I01725 ER TN Y
Otter 0 0 Coakibvtions to Fondo de Gararia de Depistos y v
Flnancial Expenyes 11062017 11878675 ;P‘fot!‘cubn Bagcaia ) " or 1,140,218 1.10218
Customars' Deposit 11,721,540 11,738,197 il dencia do Bancos y Oras
iigations with Banco Cantral da Venszusla 0 0 Instuciones Financieras 356,534 358,534
Depasits and Oblgations with Bance Nacknal de s Operating Margin 2471088 0462173
Vivienda y Habitat 0 0 :noomt :‘rm f.s:walwﬁ Assety 27.‘03 27.403
Incorna {rom M
Other Borrowings 128373 128,374 ol Operaunmr 770,000 771708
Ciher Financial Intermediation Obligations 0 ¢ hareous
Urmdyng Obligations 0 o Expenses lor Forackised Assets . 147 491 147,491
Others Obligations. 0 e Expenses for Depraciation, Amorization and impaired
Main Ofice and Branches " o ﬂﬂmiﬁp’:ﬁmw 4o aBsi
Other 12104 2104 Mt Opersting Margin 2E119 21081149
Gep99 financh Margln_ 35348435 35.037.508 Exyacrdnary Income 15,235 15,235
Income from Recovary of Financial Assats 0 0 Extraordinary Expensas 80,000 00,000
es for Hlectible an alred 1) 1 Gross Income Beforelncome Taxes .. 21022384 21622384
Uncollectbbe Loans snd Other Accourts Recavable 391,963 391,863 Incoma Taxes 4,000,000 4,000,000
Aliowances and Adjustments [ 0 et Income 11,522.334 11622384

_Financial Ratios ]

1. Banking Solvency and Assety’
1. Stockholders' Equity leit;g v 3, Manzgement 4. Profitzbllity 5. Ugquidity

ockhaldery’ Abowance dor invesimenl {Parmonosl Expenaes «
3.1 EROperiom) o e 10,99 21 Sacuribes cio0e 147 11 _Opeatmbpeen) . ogqr 4 Methcom o olsms 51 CunentAsars 2100 3954
Total Aty Gross Avarage Yieking Aseel Avmcage Arset Daperaity hom B Pubiic

{Parsonnsl Expenses

. [Curani Acyehs + Eweriments m
wioo= 185 1 Oprmwgbpemes) L, angy a2 Nebems o s3 szﬁg‘_"‘ﬁ_.m.wg

" "'"‘“____ﬂ_..":?‘. 100« 270.45

Equiy~Operaion)

Financal income WES;;JWI

Cuktorwe’s Depowty

ManagementBoard |

President Altemnate Directors
Osear Garcla Mendora GonzabPa‘raArmqueﬂ Aura Elena Aglero
Principal Directors {On leave) Hermann Jost
José Radael Lovera Agustin Gabaldon
Rafacd Aforzo Hemander  José Plo Hemandez
José Manued Vedutini José Grasso Veeshio Adriana Rojo
Jorge Almandoz Marte Germén Gancla-Vedutini

Olga M. Berrizbedia Pérez  Joaquin Urbang Berizbeitia

Ramon Abascal Alvarez Luisa Urbiano Berrizbedia

Maiguatida Cisnercs

Principal Commissaires

Altemate Commissaires

mer//dﬁ’

Gm:a Marduu
Presidon!

L

Rosa Francia Gonzdlez
Controlied (E)

Branches and Service Offices:

Carrcas - Venerolany de Coédito Main Office; Uth. San Bernardino, Av. Alameda, Edil.
Venazolano da Crédito, PB. Tell, B06.5511. Oficina Cantro: Sir 2, N° 7, Mot‘asaSmFra‘m
Sucursales: Dol Qesta Av. Espata, N* 29, Calia. La Californla Av. Francisco de Miranda, C.
Residencial La Caforéa, Edit. N*9. La Trinidad Cantro Comerdial Sorocama, Av. La Trinklad cor
San Miguol. Bello Monta Ros. Balpeca, Esquina Calles 125 Clencias y Edison. Checao Edil,
EXA Av. Ubamdo- El Paralso Conlio Paza Paez, San Luls Centro Comersid San Luls. La
oon Cakie 8 Mata De Coco Cantro Comertial Mala
. C.A_La Elactrickiad do Caracas. Galetias Bolivar
Buuievard de Sabana Granda. Las Mercedes Edul BvC, Calle Londre& Mcno Grande Av.
arnisco de Mranda, Edil. Mene Grande. Sebucan Av. Romula
Localns AByC. La Lagunita Av. Suf, Zona B. Av, Libertador Ceniro
antra C. Negrin'y Av, Liberlador, Mivel P2, Pradas Dsl Este Av. Paseo, Cantio Comatcial El
Morichal. La Estancia Av. La Estancia, EdF. Torre Dianen, Chwiao. Los Rulces Av. Ppal. de fos
Ruices cruce con 1 Transy, B¢, Principal, La Urbins Cafle 10, Edlf. Anaugo, GulumuCento
Comercial Buensventura, Av. Snlercorrunal Guarenas - Guatie, Av. Urdaneta wiiye Puncares y
Plaza Espafla. Av, Victorla €4, Medilorrdnes, Planta B3ja. La Flaflda Av. Andrés Beﬂo
Residancias Los Palos Grandes Av. Andebe Bollo, con & Transvarsal. Boletta Av

£'8

. Eugerso Mendoza y San mucunmcmult:an
Médico Docante Lot Afllos. EPA San Martln Av. San Martin, Urb. Industrlal Sen Martm. Las
Esmwraldas C.C Trinalla, Av. La Trinidad, B Hatilo, EPA Los Ruices Calie A, Zona Industrid Log
Fices. Los Naranjos Av. Bl Paufi, C.C. Galerias Los Naranjos, nivel Plaza, Lrb. Los Haranjos.
MmyMoCmdMacamz;HazadelExcdsbr&numuSauEam

Comercial Expreso, Chacalto. Santa Fe Centro Comercial Santa Fe

bx.mr\hfmh‘ Bolbvar, E0E. 109-18. LishmnCa'ru‘aIS.mMHS.AgmdlSm
mwwcmwwmgqmmm Av. Bola Vista con Cale
I&MMLm&nmmCﬂem cludadclodaCmuleAv
Inkexvomund, kerie al Contro Madico Lagunilias. E1 Tigre Av, intercomunal B Tigre, San Josd do

Guanipa. Maturin Av. Bolivar con Cafle 4, N* 20 Maracaito Zona Industrial Edit, Wiera l, N* 115

B, Crtunvalacion N* 2. Valancia Zona industrial Av, Haivy Ford, Centro Comerciat
Bmhwwdlmmuuu.mpd Anaco Secicr Noreste del Parcelarnisnts Anacy, entro Av. Lara y Av.
Joba Antonio Anzodtequ. Barquisimeto (Los Lecnes) Av. Los Leones oon C. Madid, derto do La
Pollclinica Barquisimetn, Edo. Laca. Valencla El Videdo Boulevard Los Navanjos, Urb- El Wihedo,
Marluy Las Daticias Urb. Bass Aragua, Av, Gral, Pdez con 2* Tranvs. La Victorla Centro
Comainial Ciudad Morichal snira Av. L3 Vicioda y Av. E] Peaje, La Victorda. ERA Turmero Av.
Inareormuna de Turmen, Edo. Aragua. Pueco La Cruz Las Garzas Tone BVC anfre inlsropmunct
A Batloy A Vespucio Makro Mérida Av. Centonarn, Mérida Makro Charafave Av. intecoomunal
oe Chardlve, Sector Pasea Real. Punta Fijo Edi. deﬂTdunl.Au Pumarcza con Cale Jooh L.
Chirings, Edo. Falodn. Makro E1 Tigre Av, Intarcomunal B Tigrs-8) Tagriko, € Tigre, Edo. Azodingul.
Makro Paraguand Carretora Los Taquas, soctor £l Taparo, Lok Tagues, Punio Fjo, Edo.
Faloon, £PA La Granja C.C. La Granja, Av Universidad, Valencla. Portamar C.C. Raftan Plaza,
Parpalar, Edo. Nuwva Esparta. mmmmm.,mmﬂammmam
Barinas. Pusrty La Cruz Pozustos Av. MmaEmSoc(an;s\hnoda Edo. Anzodtegui.
Makro £l Vigia Caveteca Panamericana, Edo. Mérida. Makro Valle de la Paccua Av. Romulo
Galegos, Fdo. Gudrioo, Makre Poramar Av. Franciceo P via a © Vala, Edo. Nueva Esparta.
Cagua C. S#bana Lacga con C. Cagigal, CCI’ Plaza, Mirida Av. Andres Bollo, C.C.
Europlaza, Urb. Las Delicias. Makro Au. Vencadones de Araure, Edo. Poriugueca. Makro
Cumana Av. Rolaria con Av. Canipano, Barquisimeto Av. Les Indusiras.

I Conpany Branches: Procied & Gamble, Sorokama, Procler & Gu‘l’ﬂeBa'T.am Procter &
Gamble, Guatire. Hewla11 Packard, Los Palos Geandes. Shell Quimica, El Rosal, Aimenios
Kdloggs Maracary. ABH, Los Ruioss. Teloal, Caracas. Pamalal, Caracss. Vencemos, Maracaiba

incof . €l Universat, C:aca: Johnsond Johnson, Caracas. Sincor, Caracas.

Loz Dos Caminos, Baye, E] Resal. Bacofliohm,
Turblo, Bargisirsto.

Abroad: Grand Cayman Walker Housa, 87 Town, Grand Cayrnan KY 19002,
ym. Mary Skreet, Goorgs Town, Cayrnan




VENE Z OL ANO . . ) Unofﬁciai Convenience Trar.i-slation

DE- CREDITO " . Balance as of August 3‘{!1; Bzogrgrss)

- Venezolano de Grédito, 5.4, Banca Universal - =

. Issued and Paid-in Capital 59,888,000

Reserves 263454613 : www.venezolano.com
RIF: 1000028709 L } R
Conschdated . " . . Cons:ﬁ:;‘d
iy it Fore e s s a4 o o Fon
i Asse i Vorerula Brarces ab < Vonozuela Rranches
a__._mm,*;sl_.] Operatons and Offices ﬁl.'_!“,_!!!}_!g —t Operations and Offces
Cash and Due from Banks §021,40.103 1022.118.161 Customers’ Deposits 1216252544 3933426812
Cash 118,481,147 118,582,572 Deposs in Cument Accounts 1,897,463,103 1,983, 706,400
Banco Contral de Venezuela . 796,014 579 06014579 Non-dnterest Bearing Cument Accounts 1,166,236,385  1,166,218,385
Domestic Banks and Other Finandial insttutions ] ] Interest Baaring Curent Accounts 731,226,738 822,470,035
Fol_dw Banks and Comraspondents 6,258 442 7,135,085 Other Demand Oblgations £63,719.073 564,112,427
g:“o“mm?:\;?ﬂ mo;asmg 100 365912 Noney Tramaacton Table Onigatons 5 4
aring House 385, 385, Savings Deposits 626,121,258 626,121,258
{Alflowarices for Cash and Due trom Banks) 0 0 Time Deposits 2,123,758 3670,823
tnvestrents Securitiey 1092286 141 1281 307 263 &unm&m bymn;l;:m o ng - 302
Pl is B m Customes's i 007, 128,903,
.,,m,,;}mw;;';" ade ta and 955070382 064334945 Rights and Participations an Securibes B1827400 81,827,400
Trading Sowgﬁas 558 0 s 0 Igatio entra szuela 4] 2
Avaiiatie for Sals Securities ,581,319 621,447
Heid 10 matsily Seccrfies 191/035,060 203,047 303 3 Mty mdeﬂi ations with Banca Naclonal de 0 0
B o Masent g ams Other Borrowings 87000377 __ 87008327
(A for Investment Securiies) 1] 4] Qblzg. with Domastic Finane. lnstit Due n One Yaur or Less 18,885,967 18,885,987
Loan Portfolle 1682716408 1682716406 Oblg. with Domestic Financ. Instit, Dus Over One Year 0 4
Current Loans 1688243562 1,686 243562 Oblig. with Forgign Fiaanc. Instit Dus i Ons Year o Lass §7.203,379 67,203,37¢
Resiu Loans 51219 ‘ 2251219 Qblig. with Forsign Financ. Instil. Dua Over Ona Yaar 1] [+]
Past-dus Lpans “‘833:253 14528450 Oblig. Resuiling from Cther Bormowings Due in One Yaar or Lass 0 0
Loans in Libgaton 4703947 AT0.047 Oblig. Resuting trom Gther Boncwings Dus Over One Year 919,981 919,981
{Allbwancs %o Loan Partioho) (25320580)  {25.320,791) 2 ediati igations
Intetest and CommisylonsBecelvable . 30721037  J1.042553 est lsslons Payaf
Acorued insecest Receivabi from Cash and Dus lmm Banks 1,045 1745 Aeied Exponsss for Customer's ity 1,104,168 1,405,183
Acarued Intersst Recaivable from ) 10,154 648 10,476 184 Accrued Expenses for Obligations with Banco Central da Venezuela
Accrued Interest Recaivablo from Loan Porticko 19,957,804 19,067.801 Accrued Expensas for Deposits and Obligations with Banco
Commissions Recetvable . 526,748 026,145 Nacional de Vivienda ¥ Habitat Q 0
Accrued tnterast and Commissions Receivable from Accrued Expensas for Other Borrowings 34,796 T8
Othar Accounts Recsivably . 0 0 Accrued Expensas for Other Financ_ Intermediation Obligations 0 0
{Alowance Jor Accrued Interast Receivable and Other} {320,905) 1320,5065) Am-ued E’M—'ﬁ! b, Cbigamns Other 1] 1]
Investments in Subsidiaries, Affillates and Branches 18,420,144 5234961 F atiox (1} 1]
:mowvmts in grubsdums o Affiiztes g,ﬁ.mz 5,283,262 mmnmmmmﬂ_____mmzx_nmmm
Investmants in Sranches 13,185,183 1] :
) ' '
i phite 5 n Subsiciries, Afiates and Subordinated Obllgations 0 13
Branchesy) 128,30%) {28,301 Qbligatinns Other q [
Foreciosed Asyets 2645319 2645319 atal Ljabi: 3,551,322.002  3,728,621.433
Premises and Equipmests 31,057,914 31057914 Qperations 35222027 35222027
Other Assets 40,298,978 41,042,498
Total Assets 1919886642  £097.126,075 stockh°|ders! Eq“ity J
th‘lemora'ndum Accounts Capitel Stock__
~ Paid-in Capital 69,320,000 9,608,000

Central
Trust Individuals Entitles Advnidntos  Administrations Regime Total
Investment | 1,652,081 11,271,472 ol 0 0 12923553
Guaranty 0| 27emase 0 0 a| 276873258
Adminisyation | 1820145 | 890.085260{ 122518 80411 495577 | 892502910 ' 5 . ordancs dhylatin
Wixed 0 [/ 0 [ 0 0 L = PO
Otors 0 0 0 0 0 0 Morigages in sccordsnce to the Soecix Lywon
- Protection to the Mortgage Creditor 47,878,590
Total 3481236 929,000,094 132518 20,411 495,577 §33,189,821 Prot o the Mort L ”m
Beturn on Assets
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Statement of Published Earnings for the Period from Jul 01, 2008 - Aug 31, 2008

Opergbons

Recetvable
Imvastments in Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Branches
wain Office and Branches
Other

Financid Expenses

2,288
22,038,164
13,606,760

927568
Q

0
252,033
24,240 157

Censoliciaied wih
Vonazuela Foreign Branches

90020011 07444982

and Offices

22373
225836,148
73,606,760

927,658
Q

0
252,03
24274 061

Customers' Deposit

jons with Banco Cenyral de Venazueta
Deposds and Oblgaions with Banco Nacional de
\.'rviendayiiabitat
Other

Other Financial Imm'ned(atnn Obligations

23947837
4

incoma from Recovery of Financial Assets

e for Uncollect \mpaited Fl 3t
Unooliectibie Loans and Other Azcounts Receivable
Afiowancas and Adgustments

23581,461
0

Net Flpanchal Margin

' Venezuela
Oparatrons

| {in Bokvare}

Congoidated with
Foreign Branches
wd Offices

12132016 12.718.887

Other Operating income
Otner Operating Expenses

14,436,839
3,439544
53470814

14 250,957
315046
B3581.090

Less-Operating Expenses

40,356,195

40,448,248

Personnel . -
General and Admirisirative .
Contribubons to Fondo da Garant:a de Depdstas y
Proteccidn Bancana
Contributions 1 Superintendencia de Bancas y Otas
Instituciones Financieras

Gross ating Margin

2.6522702
15,692,485

2,260,435

782,572
43071619

21641234
15,758.007

2,280,435

762,512
41,112,850

Income from Foreclosed Assets

Income from Special ams

Miscellanecus Operating Income

Experises for Foredosod Assats

Expensas kx Deptnm Amortzation and Impared
Mscatianeous Assats

Mscel Operating Exp

2z Mg
1,724,895
280,798

¢
916,570
A 82679

227.843
1727112
0,1

0
860,018

Extraordinary Income
Exwaordinary Expansas

Income Taxes
Netipcome

15,235

8,500,000
35212027

15,235
20,000

8,500,000
5222027

Financial Ratios |

1, Stockholders’ Equity

2. Banking Solventy end Assaty’
Quality

3. Msnagement

4. Profitabllity

5. Liquicity

ANicware# lor investrni

{Siockhoders
11 EElpeony) e 940 21 Sacurtus
Totl Assets

Non-Yekdng Agsels
12 ~Tomamcar "R 21085
Eduaty-Opecatons)

ctcd =148

100 1,14

(Pmmw'

3 OpmamqgEpemest | . ggy 41

wmm

31M:m 54 42

Financal lncome

Het Ihcorme

e i 564 &1

Net Income: .
5 w100 = 59.07
Equey

Current Aty

100« 31.75

Dépomts o Be Pubic

W“‘Aﬂlﬂ Inveivunty
57 Mogoldle svuments) 0 6571
Custorner's Deposity

| Management Board |

President
Oscar Garcla Mendoza
Principal Directors

Alternate Directors
Gonzalo Parma Aranguren
{Onleave}

Agustin Gabaldon

José Pig Hemnandez

José Grasso Vecehio
German Garcla-Vehni
Joaquin Urbano Berrizbeitia
Luisa Urbane Berrizhesia

Principal Commissaires
Auwra Elena Agliero
Hermann Jost

Alternate Comumissaires
Maiguaida Cisners
Adriana Rojo

Mﬁ,méﬁ

Germin Garciz-Velutini
Presidend (E}

Ll

7{: Susanaﬂiguoz
J Controlir

Branches and Service Offi ices:

Caracas « Venczofana de Crid:ro Main Office: Utb. San Berhardino, Av. Alameda, Edif.

e de Crédito, P.B. Tall, B06.6111. Oficing Cantro: St
Sucursales: Dol Oeste Av.

Resiconcial Lz citma.&ﬂ
San Miguel. Bello

2N
a’ia. N' 29, Calia. La Calliornlta Av.
La Trinitad Contro Comeccial
Cahies Las Clencias y

4 San Francisco,

?rnnuxn de Miranda, C,
R

La Trinklad con
Chacao Bl

Etuina
EXA_M Libectador. E]PmlsoCsntroPlazath.SmLuh Centro Comarcial San Luis. La

Av. Garei Gonzdlez Da Siva,
. San Bemarding Av. Vokmer,

a oon Calle 8 Mata De Coco Canino Comercid
i, C.A La Elocircidad go Caracas. Galerias Bolivar

do
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Ex

Summary Translation of Minutes of the April 08, 2008
Ordinary Shareholders Meeting

The resolutions adopted during the April 08, 2008 Ordinary Shareholders Meeting are
summarized as follow:

1. The approval of the "Proposal to modify the nominal value of the shares that
presents the Board of Directors".

2. The approval of the emoluments of the Board of Directors in VEF. 5.000,00 by
session.
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Summary Translation of Press Release
Date: March 07, 2008

The Bank gives public notice of Ordinary Dividend No. 664 for the amount of
VEF. 0,01 per share, payable atter March 14, 2008 to those shareholders registered at May
25,2008

Summary Translation of Press Release
Date: April 10, 2008

We hereby inform you that Venezolano de Credito S.A. Banco Universal in its General
Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting that took place on April 08, 2008 decided the
following:

1. It will increase the nominal value of the shares of Venezolano de Credito, S.A. Banco
Universal by changing the nominal value of each share from VEF. 0.50 to VEF. 500,00 and
consequently reducing the total number of shares by dividing the total amount of the shares
by 1.000. For this reason it will be necessary to have an exchange of shares, by means of
which the institute will exchange 1 new share with the new nominal value for every 1.000
of the existing shares with previous nominal value.

2. The date of exchange will be May 15, 2008 (Effective Record Date of Benefits).

3. At exchange date or Effective Record Date of Benefits, for every 1.000 shares held with
a nominal value of VEF. 0,50 per share, sharcholders will receive 1 new share, with a
nominal value of VEF. 500,00

4. In view that the Constituent Document and Statutes of the Bank, do not recognize the
existence of fractions of shares, and with the intention of facilitating the process of
conversion of the nominal value of the shares, the shareholders that do not have a total
number shares that is divisible by 1.000 will be able to negotiate, in the Caracas Stock
Exchange, the sale or purchase of shares so that their total number of shares is divisible by
1.000 and they are able to complete the exchange equitably; until May 09, 2008 (Deadline
to trade with benefits)

5. On the date of exchange (Effective Record Date of Benefits), when the nominal value of
the shares is modified, the total number of shares that are divisibleby 1.000 that are
registered to each shareholder to-date, will be acquired and paid to pro VENCRED, S.A.
based on the market value, calculated as the average value of the shares of the Bank during
the 02 days previous to May 09, 2008 (Date limits of transaction) exchanged on Caracas
Stock Exchange.

6. To avoid having stock-exchange operations with shares of the Bank with a nominal value
of VEF 0,50, traded later than May 09, 2008, the Bank will ask for authorization to the
National Values Commission and Caracas Stock Exchange to suspend the quotation of its
shares from May 12, 2008 to May 15, 2008, starting again the quotation on May 16,
2008, with the new nominal value of VEF. 500 per share.



Summary Translation of Press Release
Date: March 18, 2008
Publications: “El Universal” and “El Nacional”

Shareholders are notified of Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting to be held on April 08,
2008 of the following matters to be decided at such meeting:

1.

To consider and to resolve the "Proposal to modify the nominal value of the shares
that presents the Board of Directors " with the consequent modifications of the
Constituent Document and Statutes.

To consider and resolve on the provisions of Section B of Article 34 of the charter

and Bylaws of the Bank, about the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Committee.
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